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Murali Nagapuzha is a native of Muvattupuzha, Ernakulam district, Kerala. The artist does not have any formal education in art. He has a
B.Sc in Zoology but he has international recognition for his unique style of artistic expression, that he mastered on his own. Murali became
quite popular among the fraternity when his style of using nature on canvas was compared by critics to that ofthe French genius Henri
Rousseau. The natural abundance of beautyin his home state Kerala is quite prominent in his creations and his admirers across the globe
praise him for the display of contours and colours from the God's Own Country! He has received many honours and awards including the
Pollock — Krasner Foundation Grant, National Fellowship from Ministry of Human Resources, Kerala Lailitha Kala Academy Award, Kerala

ChitraKala Parishath honor etc. He has hosted fifty exhibitions including nine solo shows across the world.
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&feTq PRUY BfddarssR Hiziafed faf@es (3h®!):

HEDRI 3hEAl H U df b olley
T,

3 TR 1967 &F WM, SeTT BRAT BiedssR HiRiTwRfed fafids
(EhP!) 3B JeBNI NiGIe B U R0l IRe & w9 § 3R ¢, 31
HRAR B H ABRIFHP SGelld & ol Ufdeg el il e auii I, 3hap!
DI fdd TAEPRI HifCY (SgHIUH) GRT Uil Afth TAhel B 3c1G
BRITR & HJATd & HER TR MY 300 A HebRT Al J g
BT AR 1 TP IAT P R & HIRIAT &1 T8 ¢, ST ASDRI & H STh!
31fgeir ated, w2 3R g &t gerfar &

quick g1l AR & i dTel Sg-3153 JebRT A b w7 &
S, UTH TR Bl wTfiies AR & A 159 3R T AeRge ad%
Tt TR R P egh1d AR Bl FeIaT BT AR Sl §1 7T 57
e ARl & A1 1A Sheb! HIST 35,600 H 3D HgBRI
fAfeRlY & faenet Aead & w9 § JIeRid 8, 5HH I 80% waifid ¥R
R &1 A AgBRI AR G20 R & B! Bl Shep! b 3= IUraaryof
IR UgH H HEeaqUl <l & w9 H B el &1 PIAR 23 a3
EHeb! I I F&HT DI bl AR Yoll W 20% SATHIN AR RIpd
52T &, S EpRI & & Ta 317 &1 Ig —RRPIA 3R Iad AP
& Ufdl STheb! 3 THYT I gAfT &1

SHp! Palld, Bicll, PATR, 3adll 3R IRIE § Ui deb-1ebl w9 I
37d AT sBret &1 It adl &1 37 Il SHhIsal Bl Hatl Jeer
oMl (SUAUHTR) 3R UBlpd Weie YTl (3EUATH) & dgd
YHITOI o 31T &, Sl aReTe GaidT 3R Faiferuf 2R & ufd
AT Tfddgdl BT TR gl

feeBr13 B o vt 3791 Hfciagel FalRid #vd gY, sthel A 1 IR
(TRT) T YRFITTA B, ST AP ITAPT Bl HH BRA 3R Hefed

| g |

JiaelT afoll @wiic / Aonla Nano Plant
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I P T P 3899 J U 1T W1 &1 I I Bailed o
! vgel) fafmior gRAen TTe 8 & 1 I g1 S a1 3fidell 3R
BeTYR H AT A S H1 st H fIRAR §3HT| U FATSRUT 3Jebc] Icvep
ST P HTd Bl §Y, SHb!  Pallel B Ueb fegfAes A1 St
fafAmior gfder g Il FaER B AR AP dgH P AT, A
TACSIUA-AI=IAT Ui A1 St Wit 3reiem g (THeRme)
Hldd, BT AT B, S AH1-30RP! H 3FHeM BT AP dgH 3R
TTaRUT 3 3%t P HA37 &Y Sgrat oA & fore mfifa 21

319t afep 3R T faRAR B §U, el A 3MHH, 1S, JPTel
3R qug H RUTifes IYeh 3eH/FAERID SHhTS S ¢, B b
IR & H 21 APTaH 1 I1G g8 &

fopal & BedTuT & iU Sheb! bl Ufdidgdl a1, B A, FHoT
fa 37K faQ 3717 & S Ixeb &l 7 g¥1b RUTiifaes fafdefiasor &
yfafafad 2t 81 3 3em amfior a5fg 31k SR FaieRor B AP dgH B
2 MM Pl H3Tgd B ¢l

EDRI Hedll 3R HepR! RIgId! gRT AR, ghep! 34 RIgid! &1 319
Wl ARG TagRl § AbT §9 A UbIpd Bl ¢, R 505
yeHl B aRGRTd], diedite uPligRl, I g 3R ImIfSie
foeR gAfd 2 2l

AR &1 &R Hifal 3 Tl 379 Wi ufdagdr 37 T8 faeR ugal &
fTQ 370 e 3 HiezH & Sl BN W1l BT MR &1 g37T 8,
RN febTT T H2Ah ST §U TG 21 b Tel IR Bl HTgcil el
R @8l
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INDIAN FARMERS FERTILISER COOPERATIVE LIMITED (IFFCO):
A GLOBAL LEADER IN COOPERATIVE EXCELLENCE

Vil

Established on 3rd November 1967, the Indian Farmers
Fertiliser Cooperative Limited (IFFCO) has grown into a
pioneering institution in the global cooperative
movement, committed to transforming Indian agriculture.
For several consecutive years, IFFCO has been recognised
as the world’s No. 1 cooperative among the top 300 global
cooperatives by the World Cooperative Monitor (WCM),
based on the ratio of turnover to GDP per capita -
reflecting its unparalleled strength, performance, and
impact in the cooperative sector.

As a multi-state cooperative society wholly owned by
cooperatives, IFFCO extends membership opportunities
to agricultural cooperative societies across all levels-from
village-level primary societies to state and national
federations. Founded with just 57 member societies,
IFFCO has grown into a vast network of over 35,600
cooperative societies, 80% of which are at the primary
level. These cooperatives play a vital role in facilitating the
distribution of IFFCO’s high-quality fertilisers to farmers
nationwide. For 23 consecutive years, IFFCO has
rewarded its members with a 20% dividend on paid-up
share capital - among the highest in the cooperative
sector - highlighting its dedication to equitable and
sustainable growth.

IFFCO  operates five technologically advanced
manufacturing units in Kalol, Kandla, Phulpur, Aonla, and
Paradeep. All the units are certified under the Energy
Management System (EnMS) and Integrated Management
System (IMS), reflecting a strong commitment to
operational efficiency and environmental sustainability.

Demonstrating its commitment to sustainable agriculture,
IFFCO pioneered the introduction of Nano Urea (liquid),
an innovative solution aimed at reducing chemical usage
and enhancing crop productivity. The journey began with

Wollel ol Wiie / Kalol Nano Plant

e a

the commissioning of its first Nano fertiliser
manufacturing facility at Kalol, followed by rapid
expansion with new plants in Aonla and Phulpur.
Strengthening its eco-friendly fertiliser portfolio, IFFCO
launched a state-of-the-art Nano DAP facility at Kalol. To
further drive innovation, it established the NABL -
accredited Nano Biotechnology Research Centre (NBRC)
Kalol, dedicated to advancing research in nano - fertilisers
and promoting environmentally friendly farming practices.

Expanding its global presence, IFFCO has formed
strategic joint ventures / subsidiary in Oman, Jordan,
Senegal, and Dubai, thereby enhancing its contributions
to the global fertiliser sector.

IFFCO’s commitment to farmer welfare is reflected in its
strategic diversification into complementary sectors such
as insurance, agrochemicals, rural finance, and special
economic zones. These ventures reinforce its mission to
drive rural prosperity and agricultural transformation.

Guided by the Cooperative Values and Cooperative
Principles, IFFCO actively integrates these principles into
all its business practices, ensuring transparency,
democratic participation, member engagement, and
social responsibility across its operations.

Through its enduring commitment to India's Green
Revolution and its support for national development
initiatives, IFFCO remains a cornerstone of agricultural
progress, empowering Indian farmers and fortifying the
nation’s food security.

e a
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35,600+

Member Societies

50M+

Farmers
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FERTILISER
INCLUDING
NANO

LOGISTICS

GENERAL
INSURANCE

SERVICES
TO FARMERS

Subsidiaries,

AGRO Associates & JVs

CHEMICAL

RURAL
FINANCE

KISAN SEZ

WA 8" GLOBALLY
DIVERSIFIED
COOPERATIVE MODEL

Phulpur Unit 3MidelT 3PS Aonla Unit URTENY SBTS . : Bengaluru
Phulpur Nano Unit 3figelT 441 g8 Aonla Nano Unit Paradeep unit Nano Unit
P.O. Ghiyanagar | .37, 3% P.O. IFFCO sifa: g Village: Musadia @iie . 75, Plot No. 75,
Distt: Prayagraj - | e3afmdi@@idq | Township 4t37. IRIE™ P.O. Paradeep enfie &, Industrial Area,
212404 TR Refl- 243403 | Paul Pothen Nagar | J¥gs@g PR | Surinder ¥31-2, IgREge | Phase-2,
Uttar Pradesh IR U Bareilly- 243403 | f3ie: TR é?s‘ftrt‘?ja’\;aagtggghpw_ i, T, \C/nlaa’;r;arggr?g:mi
Uttar Pradesh 754142 3R | S e Hleh-562135 Karnataka 562135
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e FgrIdr/ | Subsidy /
R Concession
IR Turnover
3R Other Revenue
Pl T Total Income
BREGELS Cost of Sales
&I APt
TIEN, STt "
4 I A Profit before
lﬁam Dep.,Int. &
I.Tax (PBDIT
(s (PBDIT)
fat ePTa Finance Cost
I8 / Depreciation /
gfiefed Amortisation
B qd o9 Profit Before
( ) Tax (PBT)
2y Tax
B YYTA Y | Profit After
(diud) Tax (PAT)
IR Dividend
BT Cooperative
Education
e Ffer Fund
o -
FEPRI G, | Cocnerate,
‘jzlﬁ'qfu'l 3R gelzzgzonsltructiont
ﬁfﬂ'ﬂﬁ@ ungve lopmen
qlt Donations
e Retained
GLK Profit
o
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TEN YEARS’ FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2024-25

16,930.02

24,313.86

41,243.88

2,412.70

43,656.58

38,550.64

5,105.94

3,811.05

2,822.96

1.00

2,679.42

OPERATING RESULTS @ FTH
(%In Crore)

2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16\
15,629.60 |17,933.34 | 15037.31 | 15250.58 14896.63 | 14,039.41 | 11,406.79 | 12,066.16 | 15,663.87
23,844.44 |42,390.66 | 25134.36 | 12586.28 | 14,515.81 | 13,812.33 9,380.76 | 10,064.07 | 14,021.11
39,474.04 | 60,324.00 | 40,171.67 | 27,836.86 | 29,412.44 | 27,851.74 | 20,787.55 | 22,130.23 | 29,684.98
3,187.39 2,665.76 1,726.55 818.18 629.78 694.30 2,726.31 466.87 715.67
42,661.43 | 62,989.76 | 41898.22 | 28655.04 30042.22 | 28,546.04 | 23,513.86 | 22,597.10 | 30,400.65
38,213.93 | 57,527.27 | 38424.24 | 25048.59 27178.86 | 25,893.83 | 21,042.54 | 20,387.06 | 28,196.17
4,447.50 5,462.49 3473.98 3606.45 2863.36 2,652.21 2,471.32 2,210.04 2,204.48
453.86 699.97 364.41 689.42 1059.03 995.85 763.98 864.34 906.77
759.15 655.71 608.59 547.25 523.90 498.13 450.10 329.08 277.82
3,234.49 4,106.81 2500.98 2369.78 1280.43 1,158.23 1,257.24 1,016.62 1,019.89
791.92 1,054.08 617.21 615.89 275.87 316.65 320.07 331.92 314.39
2,442.57 3,052.73 1883.77 1753.89 1004.56 841.58 937.17 684.70 705.50
122.60 122.53 126.69 125.35 125.49 99.06 84.11 84.17 84.86
14.43 10.53 3.84 3.04 2.05 1.62 1.45 1.35 4.06
1.00 - - - - - - - -
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 3.50 0.50 0.50
2,303.54 2,918.67 1752.25 1624.50 876.02 739.90 848.11 598.68 616.08
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE YEAR 2024-2025

Production of Fertilisers

93.10 Lakh MT
(Highest 95.61 Lakh MT in 2022-23)

Production of Nano Fertilisers

456.93 Lakh bottles of 500 ml
(Highest 479.38 Lakh bottles in 2022-23)

Urea Production

48.17 Lakh MT
(Highest 48.85Lakh MT in 2023-24)

DAP Production

25.04 Lakh MT
(Highest 29.99 Lakh MT in 2022-23)

Production of NP / NPK / WSFs

19.89 Lakh MT
(Highest 32.04 Lakh MT in 2010-11)

Production of NP / NPK / DAP / WSFs

44.93 Lakh MT
(Highest 46.81 Lakh MT in 2022-23)

Sales of Fertilisers

113.78 Lakh MT
(Highest 136.58 Lakh MT in 2020-21)

Highest Sales of Nano Fertilisers

364.28 Lakh bottles
(Previous Highest 326.53 Lakh bottles in 2022-23)

Sales of Urea

67.32 Lakh MT
(Highest 86.89 Lakh MT in 2020-21)

Sales of DAP

25.62 Lakh MT
(Highest 32.80 Lakh MT in 2022-23)

Sales of NP/NPK/DAP/WSFs &
other products

46.46 Lakh MT
(Highest 57.65 Lakh MT in 2010-11)

Fertiliser Dispatches

112.58 Lakh MT
(Highest 132.46 Lakh MT in 2019-20)

Profit Before Tax

% 3,811 crore
(Best % 4,106.81 crore in 2022-23)

Profit After Tax

32,823 crore
(Best % 3,052.73 crore in 2022-23)

Turnover

3 41,244 crore
(Best Turnover ¥ 60,324 crore in 2022-23)

Highest Plant Productivity

2,757 MT/Employee
(Previous Highest 2,728 MT/Emp. in 2022-23)

Marketing Productivity

13,358 MT/Employee
(Highest 15,838 MT/Emp. in 2022-23)

Composite Energy Consumption

\

5.255 GCal / MT of Urea
(Lowest 5.230 GCal / MT of Urea in 2023-24)

2024-2025_
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EXIGEIEEGIEPIC
orfereit 3 2ita 3719 379
SOURCES & APPLICATION OF FUNDS
. R BIS H)
forferi @61 i / SOURCES OF FUNDS

(%In Crore)

NI 202324 | 202223 | 2021-22 | 202021 | 2019-20 | 2018-19 | 2017-18 | 2016-17 | 2015-16 )

%aaé IR Eg:’itéls B 62006 630.13 | 61265| 63429| 627.01| 62834 627.57 | 42055 | 42085 | 424.39

mae;qaa gﬁf;[,\;%& LYRVIRIM 05 14511 |22,839.75 | 19,924.34 | 18,170.36 | 16,545.20 | 15,641.91 | 14,886.32 | 7,686.53 | 7,087.26

@@ | Net Worth  [PXREIYMN 2577524 |23,452.40 | 20,558.63 | 18,797.37 | 17,173.54 |16,269.48 | 15,306.87 | 8,107.38 | 7,511.65
BUT- Borrowing-

- Long Term 45500 | 675.00 | 1,000.00| 45000 | 975.00 750.00 | 1,125.00 | 1,509.02 | 127.83
H0T- Borrowing-

- oomowing-  REELLNEN 6689.12 | 909530 | 8247.70 | 747298 |13494.55 | 13,282.17 | 9,412.78 | 10,123.96 | 14,116.05
% !mi Ei:fiﬂt‘;d LR 44449 | 49201 508.41| 53568 | 57595 808.75 77070 | 599.46 |  369.23
ERRAS Liabilities & [rOWRWEN 506045 | 547077 | 5519.21| 349377 | 4381.86 | 3.939.78 | 3,632.75 | 243050 | 2,854.63
qraemT Provisions
et Total ELWLINEM 38,433.30 |39,185.57 | 35,833.95 | 30,749.80 | 36,600.90 |35,050.18 | 30,248.10 | 22,770.32 | 24,979.39
g

. R Bs H)
forfeIt et 3tey9iist / APPLICATION OF FUNDS
(%In Crore)
faerwmll | Net Fixed h
aRwEreEd | assets (incl.  WESYERYAN 1591323 | 14,764.01 | 13,558.60 | 13,255.74 | 13,216.36 | 13,204.69 | 13,234.95 | 6,612.30 | 5107.88
(I Ystiorad | Capital Work-
BRI ) in-Progress)
BT Investments ~ [EWIVAOM 403581 | 4,020.82 | 3977.40| 393022 | 401807 | 362618 | 293379 | 2469.48 | 3.401.82
ke Other Assets,
qReiOfRy, | Loans & TALYRIN 18,484.26 | 20,400.74 | 18,297.86 | 13,563.84 | 19,366.47 | 18,129.31 | 14,079.36 | 13,688.54 | 16,469.69
EGE: DL Advances
L Total LEWLINEM 38,433.30 | 39,185.57 | 35,833.95 | 30,749.80 | 36,600.90 | 35,050.18 | 30,248.10 | 22,770.32 | 24,979.39
o
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SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

fawitar 37e]ate / FINANCIAL RATIOS

P ———
2024-2025

rIyZEVEl 2023-24 | 2022-23 | 2021-22 | 2020-21 | 2019-20 | 2018-19 | 2017-18 | 2016-17 2015-16\
cimAgEEd | oheraing
rofit to 4.77 4.24 3.62 9.04 6.92 6.36 219 7.68 517
STeT AT (Siftered) Turnover (%)
qer A Profit Before
gﬁgﬁﬁl (“ﬁ:,;) Taxto 8.19 6.81 6.23 8.51 4.35 4.16 6.05 4.59 3.44
Turnover (%)
- : Return on
ST SRR Capital 11.00 15.01 9.95 10.29 7.39 7.46 8.61 8.86 9.60
gfcrermy (Ffaerd) E 0
mployed (%)
RacrdqR S gert | Profit Before
Hope-qd e Taxto 12.55 17.51 12.17 12.61 7.46 712 8.21 12.54 13.58
(sifdrereT) Net Worth (%)
Racrqmfa B e | Profit After
& gyd o Tax to 9.48 13.02 9.16 9.33 5.85 517 6.12 8.45 9.39
(wfcreren) Net Worth (%)
. . Fixed Assets
3 gRdfi
Turnover 2.57 4.26 3.00 210 2.22 2.10 3.06 3.78 6.04
SHAR (M (Times)
PR Working Capital
N, (’I‘;:;i;[ Turnover 2.75 4.28 3.42 213 1.95 2.23 1.89 1.72 2.37
(Times)
Inventory of
TR 7Tl Y o
Finished Goods 0.55 0.44 0.41 0.50 0.72 0.59 0.45 0.47 0.35
e (e fash) (Months Sales)
Inventory of
o AT g 9T Raw Materials
[rht <Y AR & Packing Materials 0.85 0.60 0.76 0.85 0.79 0.77 0.71 0.72 0.68
(|1 WUd) (Months
Consumption)
T Trade
SRl Receivables 2.24 0.74 0.60 1.59 2.36 2.43 3.68 4.08 2.31
(e fR66Y) (Months Sales)
1] 3T Current Ratio 3.97 4.01 3.60 4.44 4.99 5.08 4.26 6.48 6.85
R 3T Quick Ratio 3.07 2.98 2.54 3.66 418 4.07 3.60 5.45 5.91
BOSRA I | e 0.28 0.42 0.45 0.42 0.84 0.86 0.69 1.43 1.90
c N -~
HHATIAT Bt 3cdTgadT / EMPLOYEES PRODUCTIVITY
HHETRE B Hem No. of Employees 4432 4454 4316 4313 4503 4614 4764 5,002 5,257 5,519
yfe rfamn) fadhr Sales per Employee
L ) (Z Crore) 9.31 8.86 13.98 9.31 6.18 6.37 5.85 4.16 4.21 5.38
~
ST § APTeH Contribution to
L @ B3 Exchequer (Z Crore) 2544 2036 3128 2157 1586 1712 1391 1,043 1,530 1,774

10
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SIGNIFICANT HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR 2024 - 2025

| gdTciol / Operations ‘
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SIGNIFICANT HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR 2024 - 2025
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fa<it=r / Financials ‘

2020-21

Net Worth
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5000 Py
2500
1000
0
2023-24 2024-25
Profit Before Tax
900 PY
750 ®
500 454 PS

2024-25

2023-24
Interest Cost

12



*“r International Year

of Cooperatives
k 2025

Cooperativ z\ﬂ m Id

f‘ a Better Wo

M/s. ASC & Associates
Chartered Accountants

F-7, Lajpat Nagar - llI,
New Delhi - 110 024.

Fad vead! s e
TS AbEecH

VW - 7, ATSTId ofold-|ll,

derfores SRaTadieTs
STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. G S Mathur & Co.
Chartered Accountants

A -160
Defence Colony
New Delhi - 110 024.

Fraed STt v TgE TS el
CICOR CaRT:)

T-160,

M/s. S Mann & Co.
Chartered Accountants

1006, Vikrant Tower,
Rajendra Place,
New Delhi - 110 008.

AT TH HTel U el
1SS B eH

1006, fassia efae,

M/s. S K Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

302-306, Pragati Tower,
26, Rajendra Place,
New Delhi - 110 008.

T U P AedT Us B
qES BT

302-306, FoIfd 2fag,
26, ISIE TH,

M/s. J C Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants

B - 17, Maharani Bagh
New Delhi - 110 065.

el 3 &t Seer G dueit
S BT

ot - 17, ABTRAGT &ToT
o1& feeett - 110 065.

fstsar wietrelt
o1& feootl- 110024

a8 feooft- 110024 I5Teg W,
o1 fesott- 110 008

18 feeeft - 110 008.

HAAA! AATANET D
CONCURRENT AUDITOR

M/s. Dhawan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

312, Wegmans House
21, Veer Savarkar Block
Shakarpur, Vikas Marg
Delhi - 110 092.

HFH Tael U3 el
TS FABPecH

312, JoTatel B13H 21,

e ATAIDT o P NBIYE,
farasTer @, feeett - 110 092.

BANKERS

N

ﬂ ICICI Bank

N A

stondarnd
charterad

&

Indian Overseas Bank

OSBI <

¥/

A A
(D 1081 saxk

_I‘ AXIS BANK

A A

_

I} MoFC BANK

Indusind Bank BpBs =

ey
Tres iviatshs e
L e b Bo® L

T p—

13



COOP== g;;uca :

THE LAUNCH OF

Q;: International Yea
2025 of Cooperatives

Cooperatives Build
a Better World

= phammn g R

P —
20242025,

14



*“r International Year
“( 2025 of Cooperatives

Cooperatives Build

f‘ a Better World

HEIPT b HIegH I JHSR

I ILh ST

mmmmﬁg@m

il

IARTSER FgBIRAT aY (HTSATERIT) TG b HHTISTep-311feb bRy
H TEBRI AR T AT PI 35PR P P faerm H TRy Y &l U
Ay gel gl SHBI 389 II-WERIAl, URMRS FERAl 3R
AIB i RI b HiegH A FHTaLf fdebr, IRTs H B, ASPIR Joid
3R Idd fAeN § 3% IPIeH & aR B SIPwaedl deHl ¢l
FHIAA Bl FGTdT &, HHTSIP SIEIGR] bl 1T & 3R ATHUT fdehr
BT A B &b H1ea A, HgbRI AT e Y Ad [ a1ed!
(GHEIST) & U PR H Hgaaqul el FAurdl g1 3rearst ifd
I B THITd B, FEPRI 6 B Wedllfed B4 3R AP
TP P! AT B & folv U Hd & o H BRI el ¢

19 5f, 2024 I I Y HERAHT 4 T 2025 P JARTE HgbIRAT
¥ (3MSaTSH-2025) TN b, fSiTepT faw o ‘ST HATY U
e g &1 fAmfor St &1 9 3f9e vy wRa & A
e o g 71 & TR I I B el 3mgH ¥ 3wy &
Hifep 1wl faPNT 3R Idd PN & it v § TedR!
AR T IREATBRI &HAT TR SR S €19 elTS, 2024 B JTh |
Y Y PR B IR Y I-TA AT BRA & GRIH T
Hiue di=r ARSI fobaT 1T, SR g 3ficlet o folv Igeh I1g
% g BT g B TS|

3MSaTEafi-2025 BT AABING YR SV AP Teb! FHeH
B3| ST SIS S GRT SIRTSC AePR] e (ERAT) I
FEAPT A 37K FEPINAT HAerd P Apfae § 25 FdeR, 2024 B WRd
Heuy, 8 faoell § faa 1| 89 BRIH P 3¢l YRd & A"
e o ARG HIGH A 3| SH YT o Tl HeHfeH AT e,
STt & 30 FeMrwi=il HeTfen HA13 BiHebIHeDT, B e ud

HEPIRAT HAll, WRA IRBR, 4 310 2018, YR H TGeh ¢ b Al
ot oMwell omd 3R 3ERAC 3rezrgt o RIS TaTeR! Afed s UfafSd Aar
<MAT gUI

379 HXg U107 H YR b A1 FeTHE 3 G0 & WehTRal &b Hgd IR
SR Tl 9 SR I @1 3,000 UfawifiEt 3 opT o=, o
PR 100 &2l & 1,000 FARRTET UfAAfE onfie &1 89 3R Pl
M & T, YRA ISR & ST AUPT GRT 3MSHT T & GRHE
MSared-2025 &I JAMA U 81 fodhe SIRT fasar I/, it JgadRl
G & A APTEH &1 Ui &l

Ui o BRiH § AR 3R 3ARRTSRT 0T AfchdT 3 Ty,
U T, BRIITCTY, Yeiai 3R HRepici PBrishH Mfiet A1 fady
A F FEeBIRAT H ZaT37 bl WPlaRT TR e g 35T I, HedR!
HE1! P &2 el b fawars 1€ 31K IS WedihT &1 Jfaersi-d
S b felw Yedfda1 3 R Far fbU 31T | HiRgpciep cbrRighH & qarall
21, 3BUT gl 3R IS T 37BTGH] Bl 37bT EH GRT TR ARA
37R @i Tl o1 yeef b 7| eI & fore e, PRI, SRR,
IRIORTY 37R I B F(AC, JSRIA YHUT BT oY RIS b srim

TSRV BRIHH Bl BIe-ge 3R TR RIdb J ATd-THTHR IR
351 ST 2171 339 PTe Pefdie B Agfeld B F T, o1 & A=
2=l & 10,000 WiUet & g TIU 70| S 3Tcral, Joft BRI gees -
S AreT-Tsst, gied fase, Sidet 3R 3= g enfier € i
TITeRUT RSl 3R oI35 Tl BT 3TN F=eb AR b 0| )
PRIBH P G AT 1T Bl Ay @rawet § RERAT 3R FHTa T
& Ufcl 3! HI Ufdagal I 31 317 waifasd fasam
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EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES THROUGH COOPERATION:
HIGHLIGHTS FROM ICA GLOBAL COOPERATIVE CONFERENCE

il

The International Year of Cooperatives (IYC) is a global
initiative by the United Nations to highlight the role of
cooperatives in socio-economic development of
communities. It aims to raise awareness of their
contributions to inclusive growth, poverty reduction, job
creation, and sustainable development through self-help,
mutual aid, and democratic governance. By fostering
financial inclusion, promoting social responsibility, and
supporting rural development, cooperatives play a key
role in achieving the UN Sustainable Development Goals
(SDGs). IYC serves as a platform to advocate for policy
support, encourage cooperative formation, and
strengthen global collaboration.

On June 19, 2024, the United Nations General Assembly
proclaimed 2025 as the International Year of
Cooperatives (IYC-2025), with the theme “Cooperatives
Build a Better World.” This global theme resonates with
the Hon’ble Prime Minister of India Shri Narendra Modi’s
visionary call for “Sahakar Se Samriddhi” (Prosperity
through  Cooperation), as both emphasize the
transformative potential of cooperatives in achieving
inclusive growth and sustainable development. A soft
launch was held on July 9, 2024, during the UN High-level
Political Forum at UN Headquarters in New York,
reaffirming UN support for the cooperative movement.

The official launch of IYC-2025 took place at the ICA
Global Cooperative Conference, organised by IFFCO in
collaboration with International Cooperative Alliance
(ICA) and guidance from Ministry of Cooperation, on
November 25, 2024, at Bharat Mandapam, New Delhi,

— . 2
SHRI AMIT SHAH

HON'BLE PRIME MINISTER OF INDIA

India. The event was inaugurated by the Hon’ble Prime
Minister of India, Shri Narendra Modi, alongside
distinguished leaders, including the Prime Minister of
Bhutan, H.E. Tshering Tobgay, the Deputy Prime Minister
of Fiji, H.E. Manoa Kamikamica, the Hon’ble Minister of
Home and Cooperation, Shri Amit Shah, the UN
Representative in India, Shri Shombi Sharp, and ICA
President, Shri Ariel Guarco.

In his keynote address, the Hon’ble Prime Minister of India
emphasized the significance of cooperatives in the
country. The event hosted approximately 3,000
participants, including 1,000 international delegates from
around 100 countries. To commemorate the occasion, a
postage stamp dedicated to IYC-2025 was released by
Department of Post, Government of India, during the ICA
Conference, symbolizing the cooperative movement’s
global contributions.

The five-day event featured speeches from Indian and
international dignitaries, panel discussions, workshops,
exhibitions, and cultural programs. Special sessions
focused on youth involvement in cooperatives, film
screenings narrating cooperative stories, and providing
networking opportunities to facilitate global
collaboration. A cultural program showcased Indian
classical and folk dances, presented by Padma Shri Dr.
Aruna Mohanty and her team from the Orissa Dance
Academy. Outstation tours were also organised for the
participants covering Delhi, Agra, Jaipur, Varanasi and

Statue of Unity, Gujarat.
——

25" Movermber, 2024 | Bharot Mandapam, New Delhi
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The ICA event was thoughtfully designed to be both
carbon-neutral and paperless. To offset its carbon
footprint, 10,000 Peepal trees were planted across
different parts of the country. In addition, all event
components—including fabrication, conference Kkits,
bottles, and other materials—were crafted using
environmentally friendly and sustainable resources. The
exclusive serving of vegetarian foods during the entire
event further underscored its commitment to
sustainability and inclusivity.

The International Year of Cooperatives 2025 is a global
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call to action, showcasing cooperatives as key drivers of
sustainable and inclusive growth. To turn its vision into
action, IYC 2025 will follow a clear plan focused on
coordination, advocacy, communication, and national
efforts. A central team will guide and align all activities
with the year’s goals. Cooperatives will be promoted at
major global events like COP30 and the UN Social
Summit. Public awareness will grow through strong
media campaigns, and national committees in countries
like India, Japan, China, Brazil, and the US will lead local
efforts to make the initiative a global success.

24, Bharat Mar

‘

wdapam, New Delhi, India
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SHPI B -1 3a%P [CbI3H Py Bl & H va IRAA=BIRT BeH Bl
A Bl &, 3 R 3R Eed SR aRaRe 3avp! 1 A &
fT U 31Ma FHEM FEH R4 &1 I IRIRS IRG B
3G Bl TG H SR Vg &, 395 D 39T - ST I &R
g A Gardl, Sict YguUT 3R M3 N 305 H gieg & -3
fert BT epTd & off gfg Bl 81 el b A1 IReb U dal b
37A2NYU Pl FGIBR, 3A%P P B Bl BH PP 3R GIfaR0T &
3P, AP YTl B Fem3 &1 Welfed B 4 Al &l
T FRA |

SHheh! A A1 3R b VIS I 3R SBR ST §U A GRAT i wdT=
5T 81 39 AU K9 J YR ST, I8 JATHA B o oI, SHabI 7
15 P-ScTarg &1 & 98 IHH TR TR1g10T v &, S fezama s ¢ o
A AT T 3R A S} 359 RE IR IR Bl 50% b Sl
T B ¢ 3R A1 &Y 307 3R FHct P IOTE B Tl Fhd &l TR
IRBR P I AU (S1370) &b APiGeH & ¢ 30 310 g uRiern &
1,470 Q-wite UG e &, e 411 I 3% 3MSHIUAR-BaIdp
A Bl R 3% JuId B FRA! B R & aifds Ser-ganfed
3O A o 5T Hb |

I 3BT P TR 3R 3TINT & AT ST & AN A T SHB!
Hige A facist/aeiees Ugd & H1ed I A &l wpfier) &l 37k dsf

Improved germination and growth in maize crop
observed due to IFFCO DAP seed treatment

B3 e 81 3 Tig aRdfds IHT & U el &1 B B 8, S8l
fa5aT A1 3RDBI b T Pl TedeT WU I &4 &1 7 HISe FoRes]
BT A TSI FHGTRI 1 gfaRor & Yfcl fSHGR Wl 6 3R dg &
foTe ST foban &, Foe TR 2f1eh 3dvep! R FeRRal 7 g8 &1y
2024-25 H, 3! 4 21 311 & 1,517 3Tidl § 203 FeRes AT {3,
SR 39 IRaHBR! 9ee H 87,633 fpwi IS R R 31

ITRNYAPD 3cdTa JfAL3T Pl HeG A SHab! b -1 3dvep Y A=yl
I 3 I &1 SSid, 1 3R TG I 3R S et § fafe
TRATU ST dB-ieb B 31T § 78 BT eh B W &1 UhUsh
IARTER TS GRT febI35 BN & U Y APTGHBAT b &9 H 71,
1 3RB Bl AR YRA U8l B dad YR IRBR gRT off JrefT
o STl &, 5 9RA & B 3R 31 HsTad 5 B 3T i
EAENIGIE]

SHa! 7 391 TIPS, A1 5ie6 31R 271 BIUR S FarRY & JTe 379 AT
IR TP BT fARAR BT STRT T &1 IE FPIft qAiaRoig yofra
I BH B GU TGl Dl dGTeR Py & WA B 7T IHBR & I
&1 3T &I, BH Y @RI 37R SgcRk Jal IR & H1e, A1 3o
U AP cTiet, o135 3R FiTeH-Here ity MR dx P13
G132 &, T IR 3Tl i) 3 pfRy Fre=i & 3ffie 3rpn v &
2 8 vel 8l

Visible improvement in maize crop growth observed
in Maharasthra after nano fertiliser application.
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NANO FERTILIZERS
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IFFCO’s Nano Fertilisers represent a transformative step
towards sustainable agriculture, offering an innovative
solution to the limitations of conventional fertilisers like
Urea and DAP. While traditional fertilisers have been
instrumental in boosting crop productivity, their overuse
has contributed to soil degradation and less efficacy,
water pollution, and increased greenhouse gas emissions
along with escalating costs for farmers. IFFCO’s Nano
Fertilisers address these challenges by enhancing nutrient
uptake, reducing fertiliser losses, and encouraging
eco-friendly, cost-effective farming practices.

IFFCO has further enhanced the quality of the Nano
Fertiliser and launched Nano Urea Plus. To ensure its
widespread adoption, IFFCO has conducted large-scale
trials across 15 agro-climatic zones, demonstrating how
Nano Urea Plus and Nano DAP can correct fertiliser
imbalances by up to 50% while enhancing yield and crop
quality. These trials, initiated under the guidance of the
Department of Fertilisers (DoF), Government of India,
include 1,470 two-plot demonstrations, with over 411
ICAR-KVKs monitoring their impact across various crops
to ensure data-driven adoption.

IFFCO’s Mega Campaign for the Promotion & Application
of Nano Fertilisers has further accelerated farmer
engagement through the IFFCO Model Nano
Village/Cluster initiative. These villages serve as real-time
demonstration sites, where farmers witness first-hand the

benefits of Nano Fertilisers. The success of these model
clusters has encouraged neighbouring communities to
transition towards environmentally responsible farming,
reducing dependency on traditional bulk fertilisers. In
2024-25, IFFCO established 203 clusters across 1,517
villages in 21 states, directly engaging 87,633 farmers in
this transformative initiative.

Backed by state-of-the-art production facilities, IFFCO’s
Nano Fertilisers are gaining global recognition, with
various entities in countries such as Brazil, Kenya, and the
United States expressing strong interest in adopting the
technology. Recognised as a key contributor to
sustainable agriculture by international organisations
such as the FAO, Nano Fertilisers are also supported by
the Government of India under the Atmanirbhar Bharat
initiative, reinforcing their role in strengthening India’s
agricultural self-sufficiency.

As IFFCO continues to expand its nano fertiliser portfolio
with innovation like Nano NPK, Nano Zinc and Nano
Copper, these advancements are reshaping the future of
agriculture by enhancing productivity while reducing
environmental impact. With higher efficiency, lower input
costs, and improved soil health, Nano Fertilisers are
driving the transition toward a more resilient, sustainable,
and resource-efficient farming ecosystem, positioning
India as a global leader in next-generation
agricultural solutions.

Nano fertiliser shows visible impact on cauliflower
cultivation in Jharkhand.

Gujarat farmers witnessed healthier cotton crop
after nano fertiliser application.
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SHal gRT HclTel et STH2AC 3Hd BT RIS |

a9 2025 Y=TY0T J 37cichc] HETH BATRICH SieTTe Yo & 57 AdTed]
(3112.2024 - 3112.2025) &I a4 | AT 3R BN sflad B o
RIATHT H JIR IR 3 dTed gaT YuUT Sielled et &1 Ffd § ghebl gRI
& Y Wll-fbAT TR el alel FHTBRI Bl 11 @lRd U BT “Hiedled
et Tfcl S e Hleed FH TAT 2.5 TRI BYY B “HieTTet Qered Ffdl
el T e AT a1 STTAT §1 30T &RERT SIRA Plctsrll pid &b
3R YTHIBR P AR Ygisifel 33 &q Shap! 1 9T, Wifedd 3R
TR BT 421 b T 2MeR| H Fiellet et ST 3o9d BT AT
I e &l

2 Pel H 20 HIE, 2025 Pl al@43 & giert el gfase & sHered
309d T 3RS a1 =T 59 SR & Wfgc, RBmm, I 3R
MA-TPe A S STH-HH BATBRI A 3791 Pl P 371G fSERT| BRiHH
T & STEx V-1 A2 & A1eaH F RAguTerist & Sfidd Sfctd IRdd
&I IS | BRIHH b 7 AT 3R STHL-BIHR & 39 AT HgHfeH
it FTST gt A gfietTet Qe & Sfiad 31K Ta-1 BH R bfed o yeeft

%1 3gHTeA fad|

BRIBH BT ARG I [AAT BT BT Hg @M1 27 I H UG
AT Gebst FBAUTST 3R e BerrbR 2t 319N UTsed - 379 fafe
31ETST B IPT SRR & Y U 3720 BT U1 faba|

BRIHH b 3Tc] I “HNeTTed YT, P BT, P& 0T H dieid gu Al #IST
R8T 3 I 35 ietret St & 3u=IRT A 5 AHIfSTes faga137 61 3R
e T €, § 7 ot YR afcts g1 g & Hislg &1 $fiefier o &
AR &Y AT Il U 361 Pl 3 IPT RART' Bl cbaiet WMot AT

37efermedt e HA FEF a2 311 BTl I8 Ues O AR e guur 8, 57t
& T | UifYep 89711 39 AR R s Hfafe & &9 H 77 & Py
it ot I gy el dT AgbRar HEA g 1 df v v1dte off 3ufd
o

ghepl Heger 4t faella Jamof 3 U JPTd wvor H Siele Qe &
Hgcd bl ifahe fbaT| Siietlet et ol IeT AT TR slield U oiddeb 2t
T8 ST 3 gl o T RARY 31157 ot & il & < JgE Al B
EH! B e e . 36T 2 et 7 shap! dRaR &Y 3R I
HAIIT &b Yfd 3R e Tl 361 el b wlich BTl bl Silfdd
G- 3 ol STl = WY, ATE 3R IRPfcl FebIS BT TS foblT ¢

RPT GERT e, TS 3R Bl T H dield gU afeld AfASR &l 51
PBILN BGH - Tal 3 33 IU=IN b Be1e] THIST ! AT TR HoTeR dcl
&1 2 STPRYT 3 1=y 3uTees ot YA Yo 3 33 Rier &Y gar
ATl §U el fob &b fabafl off 0 T Ug IR Ueb T &1 372 FAaetell 81

TfeRI 3 3178 H dietet Yaet’ I H gierel St 3 diF 2t 3y ae,
TRg-31aree gl deT MY, HATER-TUESH o AR 3R IR
Bfd At AT HARIT F 379 FEROT A1 BT fBArN fHig) arsioit
¥ o HigveR Al

MepaTRIesT 2t ATferit 3raRell 3 Rferan ok fo=n 1 e e, 7 &
R ofioft R gARY.. SR Al Mt B SRaf gRT gfept o e S
foRITI 39 31aWR W gUUT A7ed Hd 3 7T RERT TR 3R Aleds &

IRAfA gRT Il 1 e IR
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IFFCO CONSTITUTED AWARDS

IFFCO accorded the prestigious
Sahakarita Ratna Award
2022-23 to Shri JPS Rathore for
his exemplary leadership in the
cooperative sector.

IFFCO accorded the
prestigious Sahakarita Bandhu
Award 2022-23 to Shri Kanji
Bhai Bhalala for his dedication
to strengthening primary-level
cooperatives in Gujarat.

FAI honoured Shri Ashok Gulati and
Dr. Mangla Rai with the prestigious
U.S. Awasthi IFFCO Lifetime
Achievement Awards for 2023-24.
Shri Gulati was recognized for his
unparalleled contributions to the
fertilizer industry, while Dr. Rai was
awarded for his lifelong dedication
to agricultural research &
development.
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Shri Chandrakishore Jaiswal
was awarded the Shrilal Shukla
smriti IFFCO Sahitya Samman
and the first-ever Shrilal Shukla

smriti IFFCO Yuva Sahitya
Samman was awarded to Smt.
Renu Yadav.
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& S 3Tdcll SIS Bl YRATY 36 T (THUIE) A PR diR
Y RATERUT IRV YRDR (AZEISH ISP FH) - AT RIBR
(EECDEISEEI

&  SHd! HIdl-| SIS Dl Hall TR&TVT § WG BRI & ol 3dEB
& B 3TR U A v AdiamRofia H31t At TR (39AsT) I 3sif
TRETUT GRBR (3UFASIAT) — 2024 T g3

& S AT SHBIS Pl 3ro1l TRET0T & JeeRg-1Y U & feld
3aep & 1 T AST gRT A HRIR 1-2024 U1 g1

& B! ATl SHTe Pl Hall Jaed H 3Pyl & folv 259 I
JRBR-2024 & 3P Td Rl JeleT uRReie (A3E377E ) B 3R A 3pe
35511 P2AA SHTS JRBR A FHTA fobm I

& SHPI Gl ShIS DI FIBVNY ATGAIRIG IR Ud IR
geer & foll IaRe Al & 3 d sMesd dpide aTs WRea
U IRET RIBR — 2024 (FISTAT) YT g3T!

& SHPI HGAT SB1S bl AT U8 FfcIc] BIRH, & S 3
SN (3f3aT), BIcTebTdl GRT HfARd ST ¥R & JRaf TR
QRIBR — 2024 BT [t =ity fobm 7=

& SHP! Belldl gBls Bl HRAR ISR JR& IRTG (THUIRAIATE) I
=T & & e 3 HG3i o folu wifeH JRRepR - 2024 T g3

& P SHIS P 9 JgH - IRG AfAHTor &5 H Joft 7 shogey
SR REBR YT G|

FAI ANNUAL SEMINAR 2024
ZER AND AGRICULTURE
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SUSTAINABLE FERTILI

& SHP! BAYR SPhIe-| BT IR UGS 35511 ARGV REBR - 2024
& B Y2H RIBR 37R BeTqR gobTe-I| T T YHIUT U5 T g3

& BAR-lI 3B Bl 11 RIdeR 2024 Bl eerTae H A13MSE gRI 3at

e § 3PPl & il 259 IS RIBR — 2024 H 3P Hra1l HAA
SIS & RY N 1A 3T 71T

& BAR-| SbTS Bl HIBNEINS GRT S Tge & ded Ho1l H2lel SHIS
TRIBR U1 g3l

& THD AR SbTS Pl 27 AR 2024 I a1 H M HAR i1
I gIfaReT yeeA § 3T U & fow Ide a7 # gfafdd
AfTH RIBR YT g3

& THB| BARR Shls Bl g3l PBRIGH H I B ST I 3NvIed
e 5 3cpE Ucifedl o folv 3a0f RIeBR off e

&SB! URIGY SHIS Bl THY/TTte PHitcia BfcagsR wiic -
2023-24 % iU UBU3ATS YAfaRUT IREJUT RIBR e

& URIEI SIS I it R JUMferdl & dret & felw J[orarT
3R 9AfeRUT YeieA AT IRYH (MSRSUAT) gRT 2023 & fow
BIciT YRaTT IPEAT RIBR - GifeTH I FH1d faam |

& URIGI S8 Bl Irall IREAVT H Icp¥dl & foiw 338 (Yot
&) GRT 311 IR&T0T RIBR - 2024 &1 fafnfor Aoft & =7 o=
— 33 RIBR 3R 4.75-3R AT off et

<

i, Aerocity, New Delhi, India
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ENERGY MANAGEMENT, ENVIRONMENT & OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY MANAGEMENT (OHS)

¢ IFFCO Aonla Unit received the Environmental
Protection Award (Nitrogen Fertiliser Plant) - Special
Award (Winner) for the third consecutive year from The
Fertiliser Association of India (FAI).

& IFFCO Aonla-1 Unit received the Energy Conservation
Award (Runner-Up) - 2024 from the Uttar Pradesh New
and Renewable Energy Development Agency (UPNEDA)
in the Fertiliser Sector for commendable work in
energy conservation.

¢ IFFCO Aonla-Il Unit received the Prashasti Patra-2024
from UPNEDA in the Fertiliser Sector for notable
achievements in energy conservation.

& IFFCO Aonla-lI Unit was honoured with the Excellent

Energy Efficient Unit Award from the Confederation of
Indian Industry (CIlI) under the 25th National Award for
Excellence in Energy Management - 2024.

& IFFCO Aonla Unit received the Golden Peacock
Occupational Health & Safety Award - 2024 (Winner)
under the Fertiliser Category for Occupational Health &
Safety Management.

& IFFCO Aonla Unit was declared Winner of the
prestigious National-level Safety Innovation Award -
2024 by the Safety and Quality Forum, The Institution of
Engineers (India), Kolkata.

& |IFFCO Kalol Unit received the Platinum Award - 2024
for Highest Outstanding Performance in the
Manufacturing Sector from the National Safety Council of
India (NSCD).

& Kalol Unit received the GSS Safety Award in the

category of Large Enterprises-Fertiliser Manufacturing Sector.

& IFFCO Phulpur Unit-I was awarded First Prize and
Phulpur Unit-1l received an Appreciation Certificate at the
Uttar Pradesh State Energy Conservation Award - 2024.

& Phulpur-1l Unit was recognised as an Excellent Energy
Efficient Unit in the 25th National Award for Excellence in
Energy Management - 2024 by CIl on 11 September 2024
in Hyderabad.

& Phulpur-1 Unit received the Energy Efficient Unit award
under the same initiative by CII.

& |IFFCO Phulpur Unit received the prestigious Platinum
Award in the Fertiliser Sector for outstanding
achievement in Environmental Management from Grow
Care India on 27 November 2024 in Goa.

¢ |IFFCO Phulpur unit also received the Gold Award for
outstanding achievement in OHS Management from Grow
Care India at the same event.

& |IFFCO Paradeep Unit received the FAI Environment
Protection Award for NP/NPK Complex Fertiliser
Plant- 2023-24.

¢ |IFFCO Paradeep Unit was honoured with the Kalinga

Safety Excellence Award - Platinum for 2023 by the
Institute of Quality & Environment Management Services
(IQEMS) for adherence to best safety practices.

& |IFFCO Paradeep Unit also received the State
Champion - Odisha Award and a 4.75-star rating in the
Manufacturing Category of the Energy Conservation
Award-2024 by Cll (Eastern Region) for excellence in
energy conservation.

& A star rating certificate for Safety, Health &
Environment (SHE) - 2023-24 was awarded to the
Paradeep unit by CIl, Eastern Region, Kolkata, on 22-23
August 2024 at ITC Sonar, Kolkata.

& Paradeep Unit received the Kalinga Environment
Excellence Award - 2023 in the Five-Star Category from
IQEMS for environmental performance.

4 Environment Protection Award (NP / NPK Fertiliser
Plant with Captive Acid Category) - Special Award
(Winner) for the third consecutive year (Paradeep Unit).

& Occupational Health Safety Award by Fire and Safety
Forum Mr. Rajnikant Sharma, DGM (Fire & Safety), IFFCO
Kalol unit, was honoured for his exceptional contribution
to OHS management.

& International Safety Award (MERIT Award) by British

Safety Council, UK, IFFCO Kalol received international
recognition for its commitment to workplace safety
and health.

24



f‘:‘k International Year
of Cooperatives
é 202.5 -;::_‘::-r: es Build .
.c'* a Bett

& I3MENE, AT 8, PIIBIAT GRT 22-23 3PRA 2024 Bl 3TNl
R, BIABIAT H SPle Pl JR&T, TR 3R YR (THUE) -
2023-24 & felT IR 3T YH10T9H U fasam |

& URIEY $HT8 A FAIRUT Fa2H & foiv HERIgUATH J Bigd-R
Uit § BfciT FATERUT Il JRBR — 2023 U1 {3521

& TTERUT IREIVT GRBR (BRd Uiig Juft & A2 vAdl/udics 3dvb
) — TPTAR TR a9 3 GREBR ([I1T) (IRTEY Sh15) |

& AT g AR 3diS" - Shebl Ballcd gabls b A IeTIebid
2T (39 HETvIsiereB, 3TILHA Ue IR&T) T OHS Heie H 3p APTal g
BRR U TR BRA gRT FHTAd {1 |

& "SI R 3dTs (ARe 37dT8)" - Shah! Helle Shls Bl OHS
yde H 3cpedl & fov fofeer IR SRR (IP) gR1 IHIAd
[CERIRIE]

FATIR 3R TG 3 DR

& SHD] Bl SHIS &I THUTS dfies AMTR-2024 & "Sied) /
UAUTh P § TarRT WP & S-8139 BrI-aa— & H1edqq I
3G 3R fFHTITdr ¥ FeR" & v GER JdIY Tb-1h oid &b
foT0 UhU3TS REBR el

& BISAI SHBS A JeTls 2024 H 339 S (INSSAN) T FHeTH
31R 25 ARG URART IITHBAT T H dbg I Sid: of "31fd
3PEA RIBR", U "3BTl RIPR" 3R T "AfIT [RapR”|

& PBISAI ST A o a¥ 2023-24 & fIT YI1d TIsi1 H 3pedl b
AU "HIAY SBIS RIBR" (IATYT b §1G A 1041 IR, SR ufdsicr off
onfie 8) 3R "t HHaRT YRR TRSR" (AT & a5 F BE!
IR) T T

& fARTd RIBRI H "Hd9S JeTd RRBR" (fgelid RPR), al
"HicHT RIBR" AR "HALE FeITd FH-Ib RIPR" AMAA 2

& SHDI A 3BIS A “3oll G&TdT o foll Iratl T § vt g
&I J: IRUTNT PR & fell THUHTE I A G RIBR - 2024
(fstar) s

& SIF (INSSAN) gRT 3RS 259 318 URAR ST RS
I (18-19 SIS 2024, TBIT B2 TR, 78 o) H, gl BeAgR
S A Teb-T1ehT IRfeil, Fisfey, ART, GReR 3R Sfdar afadifidis & fae
“3fd IPTAI RIBR”, “IpTcll RIBR” 3R “fAfAT REBR” 1 fsaT|

& BAR S A 22-23 TS 2024 B UHUHEI3TES, [HATH H 37TRAITSTd

25

12d g% gfIe gA1a U fohufefadt Hie A oivRT R off St

& THhe! URIE SBTe Pl fad a9 2023-24 H 3Hda2fid STeapl )
R BPI HAR /TR b w9 H PIGH o fell R 3icdce i siempf
STTRIEROT & GIRAT SHTOTOR! 1] 3Tl

& S URICIY SHBIS of 21 RIdeR 2024 Bl IRIEIY SeRTTg e 0T
gRT fad ad 2023-24 & iU ARRT HAAY 3RS RIBR 4t TaH
[CRIRIEI

& URIEY SHBTE Bl 2022-23 & c1U Shep! I BHIART YT1d A1t b
ded JeTd AT § 3@edl TSR (fasian) 3R 31f&ead apier!
QRIBR (YT ST B3|

& URTEY s618 1 vaudt, diodt 3R Sttt S A 3nfsen =
Iceebl qRYE (NTHERR) gRT 3TN “BRH Jfga (U31E) -
31 fAdRT & AU 3dTed Soi” fAvy R U 3Ry gfaifiar &
ifesm Aot (Sud) 3R ST Aot (e 37k diodh) & dgd ScdgHd
3PEAT RIBR - 2023 STl

& THP! HERTY 315 BRI 1 “IAd PN MeNfIfsal &b 3HaRur &
foT0 ThU3TE REBR el

& SHPI IERIA IS BRI P “URd H JgH UIveb dedl b Jaeia
37R fAqUT” & foTU THUATE RIBR el

& 31AHaH APGRT (RPR (3Ufdsid) - SHHB! Bald Shbls Bl
UBUASIATS, IBIM H 22-23 Jclle 2024 P ARSI 12
3R-HTS FATAR 3R FIATHBAT 96 H PR &l auf (2022-23
37R 2023-24) & foTT 9T g3

:aa‘a)smmuaeh:

& ORI 318 &l UBU3NTE I 2023-24 & [l HRIFSH Se-2MHdd
fRAHCE, TASTPT 3 12 FYeh ®Y A Teb ATURIT 36 SHTS (PIctard
3b) o AT AAS IeE H&f REBR H1 g3

& URIEY SHBTS &l UBUATE I 2023-24 & AU 3RS BiepiNe
UfAS SIS o fAIT A 3cTe Heel REeBR 4l H1ed g3T|

& IS 3BT DI 57 2024 T UHUNE GRI YA “Sudl/TdIh
PR B 7T YAPT & A1edH A IcTeesdl 3R Aeaa-irdr sgrr”
2fieieh oig o el fgefid QREepR TITect 3711

& TR YIS 37818 (2016-17) — SHheh! deilc] SbTs ol "ag o Joft
H I[SRIA IRPBR b I Ud GferoT f[AUPT gRIT 3ufdsiar Sifiie fasa s



INNOVATION AND CREATIVITY AWARD

¢ IFFCO Kandla Unit received the FAI Award for 2nd
Best Technical Article at the FAI Annual Seminar - 2024
for “Improving Productivity & Reliability through In -
House Implementation of Innovative Modifications in DAP /
NPK Complex”.

¢ Kandla Unit also won multiple honours at the 33rd
INSSAN National Convention and 25th All India Creativity
Meet in July 2024: two “Par Excellence Awards”, one
“Excellence Award”, and one “Distinguished Award”.

¢ Kandla unit secured the “Best Unit Award” for
Excellence in Suggestion Scheme (for the 10th time since
inception, including Runner-Up) and “Highest Employee
Participation Award” (6th time since inception) for FY
2023-24. Additional awards included “Best Suggestion
Award” (2nd Prize), two “Consolation Prizes” and “Best
Suggestion Coordinator Award”.

& IFFCO Aonla Unit won the Best Article Award - 2024
(Winner) from FAIl for “Redefining Operational
Philosophy in Power Plant for Energy Efficiency”.

& At the 25th All India Creativity Summit organised by
INSSAN (18-19 July 2024, Scope Convention Centre, New
Delhi), IFFCO Phulpur Team secured “Par Excellence
Award”, “Excellence Award”, and “Distinguished Award”
for technical presentations, essay, slogan, poster, and
poem competitions.

& The Phulpur Team also won 3rd Prize at the 12th
Inter-Unit Innovation and Creativity Meet held on 22 - 23
July 2024 at FMDI, Gurugram.

& IFFCO Paradeep Unit received a Certificate of

Appreciation from the Inland Waterways Authority of
India for its contribution as a major cargo mover/operator
on inland waterways in FY 2023-24.

& Paradeep unit was also awarded 3rd Best Importer
Award for FY 2023-24 by the Paradeep Port Authority on
21 September 2024.

<& Paradeep Unit received the Excellence in Suggestion
Scheme Award (Winner) and Maximum Participation
Award (Runner-Up) under IFFCO’s Employee Suggestion
Scheme for 2022-23.

& Paradeep Unit's SAP, PAP & DAP teams won
Productivity Excellence Awards - 2023 under Platinum
Category (DAP) and Silver Category (SAP & PAP) in a
virtual competition themed “Artificial Intelligence (Al) -

&
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Productivity Engine for Economic Growth”, organised by
the Odisha State Productivity Council (OSPCQC).

¢ |IFFCO Maharashtra State Office received the FAI
Award for “Transfer of Improved Farm Technologies”.

& IFFCO Guijarat State Office received the FAI Award
for “Promotion and Marketing of Micronutrients in India”.

& Maximum Participation Award at the 12th Inter-unit
Innovation and Creativity Meet IFFCO Kalol Unit was
Runners-up for two consecutive years (2022-23 and
2023-24) at the event held at FMDI, Gurgaon.

BEST PRODUCTION PERFORMANCE

& Paradeep Unit received the Best Production
Performance Award for an operating fertiliser unit
(Complex Fertilisers) for 2023-24, jointly with
Coromandel International Limited, Vizag, from FAI.

& Paradeep unit also received the Best Production
Performance Award for an operating Phosphoric Acid Unit
for 2023 - 24 from FAL

¢ Kandla Unit received Second Prize for its article titled

“Enhancing Productivity and Reliability through
Innovative  Modifications in DAP/NPK Complex”
published in June 2024 by FAI.

& Cleaner Production Award (2016-17) by Forest &
Environment Department, Government of Gujarat, Kalol
Unit received the Runner-up award in the “Large

Sector” category.
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Instituted by the International Cooperative Alliance,
the Rochdale Pioneers Award stands as the highest
recognition in the global cooperative movement.
Named after the Society of Equitable Pioneers, who
founded the first modern cooperative store in
Rochdale, England, in 1844, the award honors
individuals who have led transformative, innovative,
and financially sustainable cooperative initiatives.

On 26th Nov, 2024 at the Global Cooperative
Conference in New Delhi, Dr. U.S. Awasthi, Managing
Director of IFFCO Ltd, was conferred this
prestigious award, becoming only the second Indian
recipient after Dr. Verghese Kurien.

Dr. U.S. Awasthi, Managing Director, IFFCO Ltd, has been honored with the esteemed title of “Fertiliser Man
of India” by Sahakar Bharti. This recognition celebrates his visionary leadership and outstanding lifetime

contribution to revolutionizing fertiliser and agriculture sector.
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Sidcll BT 3c1e J¢T 3al &, oI fobr3s 31K P2 IR 3BT Bl
JGTAT & 3 83 B &I HafeeH fHehfT|

P15 3R WS Wcll & efRPBIV & 3IRY, SHP! A A1 TAGIP, 1
BIR 37R A1 i & i & 12 7T A1 3RS et Pl favdR faan
gl

SH! 3 SR-ATHER Ugal! & H1ezm  fasdm) &l I/h a1 31
T3 f3BT Bl SgTar o & 319 M § 127381 &1 HReC (WebRY
yrioT AR 23e) & H1ezm A fBAM! Bl 3dTehdl sgH 317 JoT
TSNS § GUR @H P ol sha! 4 YFe SR ugiol I o
TfAeT0T BRIcHH 37R edT FHfOT dget a1 ST T &1

39T HHISR fSFCY Y Tget b 31T Seld §U, Stheb! A T A
I (HTSHUHS), I Sl 3R dfd el ol R JerRid
31K AP BEGRT YeH PBRb Fedl BA1 SR I 8l I8 Tpldd
IET3N 3 Gfedl BT & FEr—rar off YaH i &1 3 AR TN
feepT3: PN, ATHITSIh BTl 7R TATARUT TRETUT & Hfel SHeh! I FHYUT
I HSIgd B &, 311 Ueb TR, IA1a2h 3R wafaror & ufd Geier
HEBRT AR o5 P HR EBBIVT &b HRY &l

bl i | LR
A ﬂ |!I F."
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Reffor 3B vd sl & e Hed & P14t fefld
FEoft 5fl &1 ghepl & Hear b &Y H YT Faifid g W semg ad gul




Dear Cooperators,

A LANDMARK YEAR FOR IFFCO:
INTERNATIONAL RECOGNITION, NEW
LEADERSHIP AND FIVE DECADES OF
EXCELLENCE AT KALOL

The past year has been a landmark one for IFFCO, marked
by significant achievements that reaffirm our commitment
to cooperative excellence, innovation, and sustainability.

We are pleased to announce that, following the
constitution of the 15th Representative General Body
(RGB), a new Board of Directors has been successfully
formed at IFFCO. The election for the new Board was
conducted smoothly and transparently under the
supervision of the Cooperative Election Authority
appointed by the Central Government. The RGB has once
again demonstrated prudence and responsibility in
electing board members, reinforcing its role in ensuring
strong governance at IFFCO. This reflects its dedication to
transparency, accountability, and the cooperative ethos,
ensuring that IFFCO continues to thrive.

Furthermore, it is a moment of immense pride that, for the
first time in its 130-year history, the International
Cooperative Alliance (ICA) General Assembly and Global
Conference were hosted in India. This landmark event,
inaugurated by Honourable prime minister of India, Shri
Narendra Modi ji and organised by IFFCO in collaboration
with the ICA and the Ministry of Cooperation, Government
of India. Hosting this prestigious gathering underscores
India’s growing leadership in the global cooperative
movement and reaffirms our commitment to
strengthening international cooperative alliances. Marking
a proud milestone, the Managing Director of IFFCO was
conferred the Rochdale Pioneers Award—the highest
honour bestowed by the ICA—during the conference, in
recognition of his exceptional contribution to the
cooperative movement.

IFFCO’s journey of excellence began with the commissioning
of its first Ammonia and Urea plant at the Kalol Unit,
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fondly known as the Mother Plant of IFFCO. This iconic
facility laid the foundation for IFFCO’s remarkable
contribution to India’s agricultural growth and
self-sufficiency in fertiliser production. We are proud to
announce that IFFCO Kalol completed 50 years of
successful operations in April 2025. This milestone is a
testament to our commitment to innovation,
sustainability, and cooperative empowerment.

FARMERS FIRST:

IFFCO’S SERVICE-DRIVEN APPROACH

As a part of its commitment to farmers’ welfare, IFFCO is
further expanding the Pradhan Mantri Kisan Samriddhi
Kendra (PMKSK), enhancing farmers' access to
agricultural inputs, services and advisory support related
to farmers community. Additionally, IFFCO is scaling up
the production of Nano Urea and Nano DAP bottles,
reinforcing its mission to promote sustainable and
efficient fertiliser use.

In line with our vision for sustainable and precision farming,
IFFCO has expanded its nano fertiliser portfolio with the
launch of Nano NPK, Nano Copper, and Nano Zinc.

IFFCO remains unwavering in its mission to empower
farmers and foster inclusive development through its
not-for-profit initiatives. Through CORDET (Cooperative
Rural Development Trust), IFFCO continues to provide
training programmes and capacity-building initiatives,
equipping farmers with modern agricultural practices to
enhance productivity and improve rural livelihoods.

Furthering its social responsibility initiatives, IFFCO Kisan
Sewa Trust (IKST) continues to support marginal farmers
and underprivileged communities by providing medical
assistance and educational scholarships. It also extends
financial aid to victims of natural calamities. These
collective efforts reinforce IFFCO’s dedication to sustainable
agriculture, social welfare, and environmental stewardship,
aligning with our vision of a self-reliant, inclusive, and
environmentally responsible cooperative ecosystem.

| ¢

> |

The Returning Officer along with the newly elected Board of Directors.
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8 IS5 & 77 TeodATel HaT bg
STaielt I1< U< fopdTel
%l HITH Tolld T
W €l Bl o Il J[TarATgof i gge bl 3Yfel|

BT Bl dpIh! TTe 3R B Jaed Apfge
UeH ATl

T ek, Jal WIeTuT I 3R Hies SHIRGeH
BT ARSI
YT UTI37 A d-fay e &1 faaRuT|

o Sict-H-geehic 3R fAdy ISP SN Fararyof
3RD! B TGIT ST

o yfivr &R H 3ifaw i de Jgeh 3R Fae

o Pl 5384 Pice BRIHHI BT ARSI

o 92 B W] BT TS|
o 667 folgh! dog dIfHdh HfARIUT (TIHHUICT) BRicH Ju-|
e 546 1G] RI&IUT Ud 519-3¥ep TR 31 3RS |

o I 38,963 HaT I oI faAwoT, 51 34,047 A7
7 HISTSH TG URISTT 9 3 Hiead J wietuT U v

o JgH 4INeh dcdl b TV 4916 el THHI BT qR1gv|
o 2527 fopfedhet g1ge UdpaT (IM3SUT) fobesd B faeRum|

JOh! B
PH3S dold
* Pl 15,803 B %e

Fod, S 14,62,443
T Je=|

41

&SI BT Biec! Saciadic
Fi3iasfea

MRS THTd
e 151 YA P aifAdhl HepRl ARl (fupusHvs), 4
19,118 T (32% HigeTl W) |

® 50 BIHR MR 3PHTSSIM (VHUI), 5 24,183 I6X|
o 1,914 35 TR G (THTTSHN), f5H 19,564 FeH (94% Higed0) |

di51 3TeH HRiHH
o IR Vel fId IFFDC & Ugel slisT U101 YAPIATET H 4,735
ST AT 1 aigon|
o Y 2024-25 X 3.57 ¢TRG fadee YHIOId ofisii &1 3|
® 26 Pcll bl 87 A 3ediie ob ciec], f51-1H 18 7 o <1fAc|
o Bl I 27 fafa Il & 3,715 fFea gisfas ot
37X 1142 faicet Tesil 3 aitet off 3uctee] FHRIT 0|
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77 Farmers Service Centres across
8 states Empowering Farmers

at the Grassroots Indian Farm Forestry Development

Cooperative (IFFDC)

Supplying quality agri-inputs under one roof.

COMMUNITY IMPACT:

e 151 Primary Farm Forestry Cooperative Societies (PFFCS) with
19,118 members (32% Women membership).

Providing technical advisory and crop management
guidance to farmers.

Organising farmers’ meetings, soil testing campaigns,
and field demonstrations. 50 Farmer Producer Organizations (FPOs) promoted, with
24,183 members.

Distributing crop-specific literature in local languages.
1,914 Self Help Groups (SHGs) supporting 19,564 members
Promoting innovative fertilisers like Water-Soluble (94% women).

and Specialty Fertilisers.

SEED PRODUCTION PROGRAM:

4,735 seed samples tested in IFFDC'’s first Seed Testing
Lab (Uttar Pradesh).

Strengthening last-mile delivery and farmer
engagement in rural areas.

3.57 lakh quintals of certified seeds produced in 2024-25.

26 crops, 87 varieties under production, including 18
new varieties.

3,715 quintals of hybrid seeds and 1142 quintals
vegetable seeds of 27 different crops have also
been made available to farmers.

Promotional and Farmers
Extension Programmes

5384 Field Programs undertaken.
92 Crop Seminars organised.

667 Sales Point Personnel Training (SPPT)
programs conducted.

546 soil testing and bio-fertilizers campaign.

°
38,963 soil samples analyzed including 34,047 soil

) . ’ including wom
samples analyzed by 7 mobile soil testing vans. (Including g8

. .
4916 soil samples analyzed for micronutrients. Ilzra:;:(sj,laelr?geavgeilr?g

2527 Critical Input Package (CIP) Kits distributed. SOIL TESTING & FE
® 109,468 soil samples te:

® 55,634 samples analyzed
and micronutrients.

6.76 lakh liters of liquid bio-
7.57 lakh liters sold.

IFFCO Farmers
Friend Club

® 15,803 Farmer’s Friend
Clubs having 14,62,443
farmer members.

Village Adoption

® 241 villages adopted.
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RIS AEHIRAT G HA1 & A0 shep!

P ASHY

Iy 2025 B YT MY GRT AT FEBINAT a¥ P R H A1
e 37 2, SrieeT fawy & “HedpNl ARITE U SEa¥ giAam &l
fAmfor et &1 59 ded g R & TebRT AR 31 v B
IS WG 3TE &1 SHep! 7 TebRI SJgTd R FRRAT P AT B
& oI Y% Ul W &4 Hiad PRd gU Alsdled! 2025 b v
37911 BT ANSTHI IR Bl & | AT AT Ueb T Tieifiesd 8,
ot 3897 PN T H AU Ugd 3R T Wriiary gRAfdd
P P folU Tgbr! A B Yriier) o1 AR a1 &1

AP STerary AT 1 IHe(F B P AU, SHPI 39 HHATRET
3R 3T SHSAT A Bla 301 Bl HRUTS b W 3 R & 10
ARg U2 T P iU JEIRIUl HAFATH R BT SHbT el
IMSATSRA-2025 F SR "Bl de HIRMRRT" §941 &, 3
gfaRUT TRET0T 3R R&RAT & Ul gHIRY Mgl ! gridT g

AT TR ELERIL

S| & JUTeAel b &Y H U FafRId g W 9eTE & gul
%! 3R SUPH UgTIP HufAay 3 fAsare 3R
ATYGAT & 8 B ePITdR Jgas ugef fasan
gH I8 Fard gu g2f & 32 8 b gher! 7 gRuRes, A1 3R A
3ARPI H RBR 3G 3R bl & A1l Rpis BRITR 3R T &
f35aT 81 39P HeTral, BANY Wedd Hudl 3R IgwH 3T &
FATERUT a2 3 FHT AR I1G S &

Sire sfear widarssr Hu-l (Feah)
fSIB®! ) 72024 H 4.85 TR o BIRIhING TS (P,05) BT 3cd1e
PP 102.12% T &THT 3UAPT UTET |

3N Ef2ar BiéarssR Ul (3iHsHa!)
TAATEURAIT ) 4 2024 H 2.08 e Hied gfkar 31k 012

43

Afer feT TRy 3mfAa1 3491, 3R 662.311 e 3mRS! Sier
PBTISRG delT 248.340 AT 3MRE! ST’ &1 a9 TTd AT &1 [BT|

SR T vpAE (FATES)
P/IMST T 2024-25 F 3797 TR 3R RN Re BT xR 5|

g=dis R g A1 (sAva)
ST 7 2024 B SHPBI B 4.01 ARG & BRIBING URIE (P,05) T
afd fa=m

SHoI SaITR faifiies

P! IR A 3 a9 2024-25 H ¥ 2,965 TRIS BN BRIGR BT,
foRTE Sl 1 St -1 RAT 3R A1 Shedt H fasht &1 12% APTeH
&1 APTREI gHaR &I fadhl 87,875 e, APIRGI-aRal &l 1,622 fob.
1. 3R FReT-ab Bl 90,000 M2 ep Ugd TS|

SHbI-URH BT YIS Wisde faffies
SHa]-THH! iU IS UTsde [ffics 7 T 365.28 RIS Bl BRIAR
fasa, ST el ad &1 goH T 7 6.5% 31 g1 a9y &9 , Sl 4
ATIYIGAT H 38% & gfg &si Pl 3R 379 76 & §1G Ugall aR 250
RIS &b 183 Pl UR fobaT|

SHb! fBaH BIEAd

Shah! T Whrens A fax ay 2024-25 H 38,000 H 31 AEH| Bl
¥ 1,800 I8 AfAARd fau, 37t <7 oy 2023-24 H T 870 TRIS &
Hidbg I GPAT &1 HYA 7 T 37 PS BT PR Yd @Y Gof [T 3R
fopRIeT I UU-/ReTa pI Srafafeias o FHoT T U1 |

%! fHur fAAY 3nfefe aF Eeradsis)
HEPUSSIS A o TN 2024-25 HT4.4 BRI BT Yd AT Gl fapaT|

Y UST BIeAfAIe USaTssi (TAUUHU)
UAUURU 3 fad g 2024-25 T %1,328.58 7RG BT 213716 81 |

3 af 2024-25 &, S BI-2IfBAT A 7 8,505 B (GWP) BT AT
b 3T 31R ¥ 6,660.40 RIS P 8.52 @G Gl BT (AU B

3 3UCATRIIT S 1 HoTad af e IURATA 2T ST TERIS buf
3R IYh 3T gRT G R H P TR Bl A1 B 3R bR
1T 2 B T ST e gt B3 Bl R el 1



IFFCO Chairman and MD presenting a memento to Shri
Amit Shah ji, Hon’ble Union Minister of Home Affairs and

Cooperation, Government of India, on the occasion of
the Golden Jubilee of IFFCO Kalol

'€ a

IFFCO’S ROADMAP FOR CELEBRATING THE
INTERNATIONAL YEAR OF COOPERATIVES

The year 2025 has been designated by the United Nations
as the International Year of Cooperatives with a theme
“Cooperatives Build a Better World”, and cooperatives
worldwide have been entrusted with an action plan.
IFFCO has formulated its Action Plan for IYC 2025,
focusing on key initiatives to strengthen cooperative
engagement and sustainability. A key priority is the
membership drive, aimed at expanding the participation
of cooperative societies to ensure broader reach and
deeper involvement in agricultural development.

To support global climate action, IFFCO will launch a tree
plantation drive, planting 10 lakh trees across the country to
offset carbon emissions from its employees and production
units. The goal is to become a “Carbon Neutral Cooperative”
during 1YC-2025, underscoring our commitment to
environmental conservation and sustainability.

IFFCO AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES CONTINUE TO
EXCEL IN PERFORMANCE AND PROFITABILITY
We are delighted to share that, IFFCO recorded strong
turnover, total sales and profit after tax with efficient
production and sales across conventional nano and
specialty fertilisers. Additionally, our subsidiaries and joint
ventures have performed exceptionally well, contributing
to overall business growth.

Jordan India Fertilizer Company (JIFCO)
JIFCO produced 4.85 lakh tonnes of Phosphoric Acid
(P,0Os), achieving a capacity utilization of 102.12%.

P —
2024-2025

Oman India Fertiliser Company (OMIFCO)

OMIFCO sold 2.08 Million MT of Urea and 0.12 Million MT
of surplus Ammonia during 2024 and recorded revenue
of USD 662.311 Million and Profit after Tax at USD
248.340 Million.

International Trading FZE (KIT)
KIT expanded its trading footprint and shareholder
returns in 2024-25.

Industries Chimiques du Senegal (ICS)
ICS exported 4.01 lakh tonnes of Phosphoric Acid (P,Os)
to IFFCO during 2024.

IFFCO eBAZAR Ltd.

Achieved a business turnover of ¥ 2,965 Crore in FY
2024-25, contributing 12% of IFFCQO’s total Nano Urea and
Nano DAP sales. Sales of Sagarika-Granule reached
87,875 MT, Sagarika-Liquid 1,622 KL, and Natural-K
90,000 MT.

IFFCO-MC Crop Science Private Ltd.

Recorded a turnover of ¥ 365.28 crore, reflecting a 6.5%
growth over the previous year. Notably, the company
achieved a 38 % rise in profitability crossing the ¥ 50 crore
milestone for the first time since its inception.

IFFCO Kisan Finance Ltd.

disbursed ¥ 1,800 Crore in FY 2024-25 to over 38,000
customers, doubling from ¥ 870 Crore in FY 2023-24. The
company recorded a PBT of ¥ 37 Crore and obtained a
long-term Bank Loan Rating of AA-/Stable from CRISIL.

IFFCO Kisan Special Economic Zone Ltd (IKSEZ)
Recorded a Profit before Tax of ¥ 4.4 Crore in FY 2024-25.

New Age Financial Advisory (NAFA)
NAFA has achieved turnover of ¥ 1328.58 Lakh during the
year 2024-25.

In the year 2024-25, IFFCO-TOKIO booked a premium
of ¥ 8,505 crore (GWP) and settled 852 Lakh claims
worth ¥ 6,660.40 crore.

These achievements reinforce IFFCO’s strong global
footprint and the key role its subsidiaries and joint
ventures play in driving growth and serving farming
communities worldwide.
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30T I R, She! AT T A Jdd TATeH YsieH BT qHH BT 2l
TSUBUBE R & HIEIH F 29,421 §0aR &R YA Pl o1d fAfderdr a1
¥ gaot o 7| 3eeiRa-1g ¥ F, FdeR 2024 § 3TV AERIAT 3R
dfYe FHTH P PBled Peflie B WS S AU, AEUHUHERT 7
BIei-ce¥el AN YA B U Uidet & 10,000 W TPIUI

! 3791 fafAHfor swreal § fiHersw SN 3cusi- B &l dF & Ufd
Ufdag g1 2024-25 H, A1 JRAT @ Pl 37168 R didal (500
et 3R 1,728 fbefl. IAPIRSGT R g 89,890 Hifews o ARG
IR P 3G YRURD I3R! Bl Gl H CO, 3T H HHLF
63.86 TTRE 31R 4.02 TG H1.2 (TASY) & AT BHI a1 & JPTar
fea|

39 FAAT GGl bl HoTel bRl §U, Seh! A Y WA 3R braferal
¥R 3311 Sl w1 Bl &, 51! Pt 21U T 6.45 HTETE
% (MWp) &1 2024-25 H, 24 TR IRIFT 7 6557 BITETC-31ER (MWh)
3187 35311 3607 BT, FSIIRT CO, 351 H 4590 Hl.2 & &BHI 315 | gh
3ATET, SHheb! 3 1YY IR, Il e T 3R &1 B AGU™ B
HTEH 3 GTT & 3TAPT P 3IHled Bx1 SR T 8, T 2024-25 F
S9! Ui 3TG s¢|sq|'ffrﬁ%qrﬁé?rwffaﬂw4%ﬁa?ﬂ’ré?
M 340 ARG T HieR (m’) Bl S go| AL 3NeHAbIepur Haieft
i Tgell F 35511 Qa1 961 & de FATaRvT Hee off SiEeR g31 8l

Ha! 7 fIRARd 3deH 3R (SUBR) & H1ead I qAeRol
& U SeR! @ off 3 JerT &, SR 2024-25 & 33,400 e

Anl Yeor

EdhIe A TR

an-ﬂ'tqm sﬂ!ﬂﬁ"‘l?lrs

AR e b YA<ishu] b1 Jfaer el €1 3 9 qafaror e 3R
IR TTel! B FHTETY BT Sgrat S H Swep! bl offiast &l g2Ifd 21

AT P & H §Hb A Pl bR P §Y, 3l Pl 2024 &
HARTER 3RG JY (METHV) gRT “I&APT Fele o= A1 fasan
IIT 7| A T 23 S B At 30 3R Bl Y i1 71T &1 396
ATET, SHeB! 7 SUBY &I 3dTG JeieH Uga & Ufd 3791 AR
gfdegdl & foiu g AT T SRBR R gU HATSUBU S “IR&0T HR
HERUT” BRIBH b dad YHIOI 70 dfY 30 Ul H I U b ®d
e ganel

I[oTaT 37R R8T & Af Y AT AT el

3Tl & I SHebI P JHYUT 3T I Hel 3701 &l S T
FHARRIER TR TR HIRIAT AT Yeie HIeb! Bl YTt B & | S0P HId
Holl Y& (ATSTHAT 50001:2018), GAGRUT YeieH  (HTSTHIAN
14001:2015), VTG Yefe (3METH3N 9001:2015) 3R TGRS
R 3R JR&T (TSTH3N 45001:2018) & AU yIfoid €1 b
3], Pellel 2IBARIY HR hapl JXAer Pl YRR I fafce
B (ST B M ASSRAT At T Joredt & dad
T FHIUT fAreT g37 &1

HI3RP! & BN ¥ IAdn AFG JARd d4 & g,
RIS REd Hex (THN3RRN), TAUEIU gRT YHIOTd A=l
YT TORIEIUH 37R 3MSUH3T TieroT faferlf &1 ure gfAf3d T &l

HEBR A T

Shah| bl HI SbTs Ud Fo JRAT T, Belled (FSRIA) P Ul Siclt FHRIE' AT 'slist A bg' & AR TARIE P 39 H, g Al o
HFAT 21T, HIHIT B I8 Ve HgepTRT Hall, WRA IRBR, Shebl b HehaT 2t feefia Hemofl, veef G2 57, 363 2iesR el 21 Sthep o a2l Heel
& HETPTUT & 1Y HY R
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Beyond manufacturing, IFFCO actively supports
sustainable resource management. Through the Indian
Farm Forestry Development Cooperative Limited (IFFDC)
transformed 29,421 hectares of wasteland into
biodiversity forests. Notably, to offset the carbon footprint
of the ICA General Assembly and Global Conference in
November 2024, IFFDC planted 10,000 saplings of
Peepal, ensuring a carbon - neutral event.

IFFCO remains committed to reducing greenhouse gas
emissions across its manufacturing units. In 2024-25, the
production of 371.68 lakh bottles (500 ml) Nano Urea Plus
and 1,728 KL of Sagarika Liquid, 89,890 MT of Sagarika
Granular together contributed to estimated reductions of
63.86 lakh and 4.02 lakh metric tonnes (MT) of CO,
emmisions respectively.

Strengthening its sustainability initiatives, IFFCO has
installed solar power units across its plants and offices,
with a total installed capacity of 6.45 MWp. In 2024-25,
these solar plants generated 6557 MWh of Solar Powet,
reducing CO, emissions by 4590 MT. Additionally, IFFCO
continues to optimize water usage through effluent
treatment, rainwater harvesting, and loss prevention,
leading to a reduction of around 4% to 340 lakh m?® in
freshwater consumption across its five production units.
Various plant modernization initiatives further enhance
energy efficiency and minimize environmental impact.

IFFCO also advances environmental responsibility
through Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR),

T

facilitating the recycling of 33,400 MT of plastic waste in
2024-25. These efforts reinforce IFFCO’s role in promoting
eco-friendly and cost-effective farming solutions.

In recognition of its leadership in sustainability, IFFCO was
named an “Industry Stewardship Champion” by the
International Fertilizer Association (IFA) in 2024, a title
awarded to just 30 fertiliser companies across 23
countries. Additionally, IFFCO retained this status for its
continued commitment to IFA’'s product stewardship
initiatives and remains among 70 global fertiliser companies
certified under IFA’s “Protect and Sustain” programme.

SETTING GLOBAL STANDARDS IN QUALITY
& SAFETY

IFFCO’s dedication to excellence extends beyond
production, with facilities adhering to internationally
recognised management standards. Its plants are
certified for Energy Management (ISO 50001:2018),
Environmental Management (ISO 14001:2015), Quality
Management (ISO 9001:2015), and Occupational Health
and Safety (ISO 45001:2018). Additionally, the Kalol
township and IFFCO Head Office hold Platinum
certification under the Indian Green Building Council’s
(IGBC) Green Residential Society Rating System.

To ensure the highest standards in nano-fertiliser
development, the Nano Biotechnology Research Center
(NBRC) follows accredited ASTM and [SO testing
methods, certified by NABL.

Hon'ble Union Minister of Home Affairs and Cooperation, Shri Amit Shah ji, planting a Banyan tree (Vat Vriksh)

under IFFCO’s tree plantation initiative 'Ek Ped Maa Ke Naam’, organized at Pethapur, Gujarat.
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Shah! P 3G SHISTT 2024-25 H AU AHH MU el 81, i
AT Bl FGI- B felU 3ad JHrofi-aad 3UT Bl Uehige bR §U A
&A1 R HIfeid g | ellcd, el 3R BerqR H HHAIT-ZRAT TR
P Y- Higell 3R IRIET F Hbied IRIRT 7 Ahadgdd
3cTe @8 Y U, o) Rl i bt el 3 & folw 3 s[uraan
aTel 3aRepi bl FARAR ATt G g2 1 Bt 38 31T 9310 oRg
.2 e, R 4817 @Rg Hi.2H -1 aiftd iR 3R 44.93 &g Mg
T, U, STedl, SerIuRIvS e &1 Gatdl 3R =T s1e
G P oT0 T 3T 8T R B R 8 &1 IRAT TG ¥ 2024-25 F
SRTA Ufcl e JRAT IR 5.255 7. et bl T fAfIE Hatl @ud giviet
Eall

3Tl SeBTS - 3 eb BT AT HAAS HGe BRd U 13.57 IRg Hi.ed
3T 3R 23.79 @Rg .2 IRAT BT 3cdTaH Tl ST ave, IR
ZHIS F 22.13 7RG Hi.ed TAdl/3Ied) 3dRe! B A1 379 dd Pl Jdrq
3cTeH Gt fobaT| A2 & 24.21 g Hl.ed IR URIE 3R 850.15
BoIR HleT BRBIRG TS B Rebis 3cie g3fl BelRR Shls &
JRAT-1 T A 7.64 @G H.2A JRAT B AT ITAH aIfiie Iedre
IR 35311 35311 et b e &, 50 3 QRIHT Beilet gbTe A 7.972 3.
& /M NI BN 39T 3716 a6 Bl Fe A AR a1 @ud
BIRIET R Uep T HI-eb 32T f3saT
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URYRe 3SRBI I HPI 96 G, THb! A AH1-39%ep 3cd1e & U sgd
&I 3R Jee bl ad 2024-25 H, SHPI A 371.68 TG dddd -1 IRAT
/ T AT R 3R 85.25 TR Fcfed A1 310Ul BT 3G faaT, TRy
febI® P § FarR 1 HicdTe el 3= ardl dlct Wves ded
ST & g I 30! &b TAfaR0T fecd Wl 3 dafafde efdein
& HIRY ¢, 571 YATRUT R Y dlet GHI bl AH BRA gU el
Jeeesdl G el gl

99§ & ERM e el

SH! 7 a¥ P SR 11218 RT Hi.e IfHS! arel 3! I feh af
&1, T et ay 6 g & 1.91% 1 i 3 gifar &1 g $ b
0.73% 1 &I & A1 67.32 ¢RF Hl.27 I, STaidb s1ud! Bl faehl 6.49%
Pl FRIGe & A1 25.62 RE Hied W Il Tdl/Tdies 6l fSehl o
Fafferes 29.47% 1 gfg §8, SN 19.24 ARG Hl.eH b g TS|

Wl B Fdfetd GIeb cledll bl S@cil HTa2FehT Bl e H 3d §U, Shepl
¥ U PigeT T H 5Tt faeta 3R faforse 3avap! 3 3T P 3R J¢T
fean 21 T8l IR pithe, TAdles 18:18:18 3R THUIS 19:19:19 51
IR IcUTal T 3cdTeH b 511 38T &1 SHheb! A APTRGT 3N i s
&, ST G AdTe 3Heh-311eMRd 3Id e BT Wie M THIR &1 Ig
fARIs &0 3 gferoft 2T Y B TaeABAT3N Bl 4T H e faesRd
T ST €1 & Rl 2T GHGR Gl &l H 30eTee] 1
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PRODUCTION PERFORMANCE DURING THE YEAR

(-

u

IFFCO’s production facilities continued to set new
benchmarks in 2024-25, operating at peak efficiency
while integrating advanced energy-saving measures to
enhance sustainability. The Ammonia-Urea complexes at
Kalol, Aonla, and Phulpur, along with the Phosphatic
complexes at Kandla and Paradeep, successfully met
production targets, ensuring a steady supply of
high-quality fertilisers to support Indian agriculture. Total
fertiliser production stood at 93.10 lakh MT, comprising
48.17 lakh MT of Neem Coated Urea and 44.93 lakh MT of
NP, NPK, DAP, WSFs, with plants operating at high
capacity to maintain efficiency and reliability. The Urea
plants achieved Composite Specific Energy
Consumption of 5.255 GCal / MT of Urea during the
2024-25.

The Aonla Unit achieved its highest-ever production,
recording 13.57 lakh MT of Ammonia and 23.79 lakh MT
of Urea. Similarly, the Paradeep Unit registered its
best-ever performance with the production of 2213 lakh
MT of NP/DAP fertilisers, along with record outputs of
24.21 lakh MT of Sulphuric Acid and 850.15 lakh MT of
Phosphoric Acid. The Urea-l Plant at Phulpur Unit also
reached its highest yearly production of Urea at 7.64 lakh
MT. In terms of energy efficiency, the 50 years old Kalol
Unit set a new benchmark by achieving its lowest-ever
yearly Specific Energy Consumption at 7.972 GCal/MT of
Ammonia. These exceptional achievements reaffirm
IFFCO’s relentless pursuit of operational excellence,
energy efficiency, and sustainable growth in the
fertiliser sector.

P —
dl 2024-2025

Expanding beyond conventional fertilisers, IFFCO
reinforced its leadership in nano-fertiliser production,
manufacturing 371.68 lakh bottles of Nano Urea / Nano
Urea Plus and 85.25 lakh bottles of Nano DAP in
2024-25, driving innovation in sustainable agriculture.
These advancements in high-efficiency nutrient
solutions align with IFFCO’s long-term vision of
eco-friendly farming, minimising environmental impact
while ensuring enhanced crop productivity.

SALES PERFORMANCE DURING THE YEAR

IFFCO recorded 11218 lakh MT in subsidised fertiliser
sales, reflecting a 1.91% increase compared to previous
year. Urea sales saw a 0.73% decline, reaching 67.32 lakh
MT, and DAP sales declined by 6.49%, standing at 25.62
lakh MT while NP/NPK sales showed the highest growth at
29.47%, reaching 1924 lakh MT as compared to
previous year.

Recognising the growing need for precision nutrients in
agriculture, IFFCO has strengthened its production of
Water-Soluble and Specialty Fertilisers at its Kandla
Plant, manufacturing key formulations such as Urea
Phosphate, NPK 18:18:18, and NPK 19:19:19. IFFCO has
launched Sagarika Gold, an enhanced variant of its
seaweed extract-based plant growth promoter, tailored
specifically for southern states. Available in both liquid
and granular forms, this formulation is designed to
support regional agricultural needs.

FERTILISER SALES DISTRIBUTION ACROSS 30 STATES AND UNION TERRITORIES THROUGH
IFFCO’S COOPERATIVE NETWORK

22.32%

14.99%

41.41%

13.49% 2.27% 5.52%

Societies

Marketing IFFDC

Federations retail outlets

IFFCO Farmers Agros &
eBazar centres Service Centres Other channels
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PRODUCTION PERFORMANCE / m%ﬁa
2024~ 2025 2023-2024

Kalol

Falcl

Phulpur-I 7.05
Lagieed] 109.4 100.9
Phulpur-II 12.00
ReIRII

Aonla-l 12.26
3TideTrH
Aonla-ll 11.35
3TideHI

. Production (Lakh MT) . Capacity Utilization(%)

NP / NPK / DAP / WSFS
gt / vdias / Siudt / seguaee 2024~ 2025 2023-2024

Kandla - NPK / DAP / WSFs
Hisell - TTqP / Sedl / Sguaeh

Paradeep - NP / DAP
IRIGY - U4} / Sedt

. Capacity Utilization(%)

. Production (Lakh MT)

N/ P205 /U4 /P205 2024~ 2025 2023-2024

INJ
T

‘P205’
d}235’

. Production (Lakh MT) . Capacity Utilization(%)
%l%NO FE?TILISERS.)(LAKH BOTTLES) 2024 - 2025 2023 - 2024
Na'&g#;%%"gg#rea A 371.68 87.43

%l:gno DAP 85.25 91.14

SALES OF SAGARIKA & BIO-FERTILISERS / &ToI[debT U4 Sid 344! bl fashl

SAGARIKA AND BIOFERTILISER
AT 3T A 2024~ 2025 2023-2024

Sagarika Gold Liquid (Kilo Litres)
IAPTRT IMes aRd (fselt afieR)

Sagarika Gold Granules (MT)

PR 3Mes I (TH) 53300.1
Bio-Fertlisers (Kilo Litres)

Sta-3dR (et efieR)

1157.2 864.9
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SALES OF FERTILISERS / 3ddcb| o fasht —
PRIMARY NUTRIENT (LAKH TONNE)

TR NN ded (1R 27) 2024- 2025 2023-2024
e 67.32

o /szllt(ﬂﬁi 19.24

DAP

oy

WATER SOLUBLE & SPECIALITY FERTILISERS (MT)
St if g?-F-IQﬂFI vd fafdE 36 (THd) 2024- 2025 2023-2024

SOP 0:0:50
TI3idt 0:0:50 1,020.08
WSF 0:52:34,12:61:0,13:0:45 SNEEETEG .

SYUHUY 0:52:34,12:61:0,13:0:45

Calcium Nitrate
3,870.25
oo AE2e - 4Teex |

Sulphur Bentonite

Zinc Sulphate Mono (33% Zn)

e seete | eomel
Boron

Sulphur WDG (90%)

Magnesium Sulphate
B Tethe 19, 896.50
(o]

T St (90%) 0.0 1.2
Neem Cake
7 5 2,071.74 1, 663.37

Natural Potash

Sagarika K++ (PDM+Seaweed Extract) 1. 536.62

AP K++ (PDM+IHg 9aTeT) e

Other WSFs

3 S[TATH 32, 830.80 40, 660.50

SALES OF NANO FERTILISERS / otoll 3a3¢b| &bt fagh!

NANO FERTILISERS (LAKH BOTTLES)

A1 3RP (g i) 2024- 2025 2023-2024

Nano Urea/ Nano Urea Plus

267. .
3 o /34 : 67.38 204.77
Nano DAP
3 Syod) 96.90 44.67

_

Sales of Sagarika Liquid, Sagarika Granules and Bio-fertilisers increased by 33.79%, 28.62% and 3.03% respectively,

compared to the previous year. Similarly, sales of Nano Urea and Nano Urea plus grew by 30.57% and sales of Nano DAP
grew by 116.92%.

.
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&1 21 AR, fAflid SaRTEl/dige I F 1.20 @Rg Hifgd e Sfet H gerehiel 3R Ay 36! Bl ¥, Wedh 3R g & Hiead 3 fakd fasan
IR

S| Bl Balld], PAYR 3R Hacl gpred! I fARid FU 37 g Fedd gRI alfolRedrT 1 3R T faT IR, SR A9 &9 J §aT18 3 1 & GRIH
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Ui U J HE@qui 1,751 T 0 NG b1 IATA1 b1 378, S el HERUT &HAT 4.86 TRE HIfZeh 2 81 fiell 3R dleiep! IR P HIUSUH Usicl
BT UPiiGRT 7 TH R 31 Hidt db 35! 61 gg&ht AT B

231 37918 & SR, Shep! A ST [GRMfAdeN 3 31w 37Tde P A1 THE FedTal W 35 STl &b HieaH 3 17.45 g Hifedh e IRAT & 37rd b1 off
Yeie {33 gt 8] TG b SRUT UdT AT UHUl/Udlds 3 AT bl 3Tl el uall

s A fafia Gr1 fadh B & Aream &
113.66 oITd Hifews e Hi diziiey fahl gfde Hi
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OPTIMIZED FERTILISER MOVEMENT & IMPORT OPERATIONS

[ a

During the year, IFFCO efficiently facilitated the movement of 111.38 lakh MT of bulk fertilisers (Urea/DAP/NP/NPK) across
the country, leveraging strong coordination with Indian Railways and the Department of Fertilisers. Rail accounted for
90.45% of the transport, supported by road and sea logistics.

Additionally, 1.20 lakh MT of Water Soluble and speciality fertilisers were delivered by rail, road & sea from different Ports/
Kandla Plant. Overall logistics was further supported by the newly developed PAN road network developed from IFFCO’s
Kalol, Phulpur, and Aonla units, which helped in the delivery of Nano Urea and Nano DAP (Liquid) fertilisers across the
country—especially during sowing seasons.

Strategic warehousing at 1,751 locations with a combined capacity of 4.86 lakh MT, along with district- and taluka-level C&F
agents, ensured timely last-mile delivery.

During the same period, IFFCO also managed the import of 17.45 lakh MT of urea through 35 vessels at key ports, with
allocation aligned to ECA guidelines. No imports of DAP or NP/NPK were required due to sufficient domestic production.

Intornat

Caapef.
Adliancs

The President of the IFFCO Officers’ Association, the The President of the IFFCO Officers’ Association, the
General Secretary, and the President of the Employees’
Union congratulating the IFFCO Managing Director on
being honoured with the prestigious 2024 Rochdale
Pioneer Award.

General Secretary, and the President of the Employees’
Union congratulating the IFFCO Chairman on his
remarkable re-election in the 2024 Board elections.
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fah weel (2024-25)

37 dfYeb TRELT A S{ETd §U, SWheb! 1 2024-25 H 371ffes I &b
TTA5IG EGATYdd (ot RRRAT 3R U [T & ST T | e
FRIER Jod IAR-TGA &b BRI IR H AMell FRIgE 3718, dfds
3T TTPTd Yeie, faer ifart 3R peret Tare 3 wie & faci
g Hg g3

BRIER 3R TR fAsareA

Y 2024-25 T SHP! A T 41,244 TRIS B ol PRIGR Gt {1, STafs
e fad av § g T 39,474 RIS 21| SHbI JYE Bl ol PRIGR
¥53,561 18 38T, 5T 2023-24 H ¥ 52,495 TS 7| 3 3R HIHA!
o FR1GC & d1a5]G, $ha! PI TaTa Halgg gl 3R Adfard fadia
efSehIuT & w1 S1STR o R & 31gepet o1 3@

APTd 31 3R fadia yeeq

AT e & foTu U efeBI0T T 3 S faTaINuT APTd BH
1 B HeH T Al SAPTd G0 3Ur, p2rct brieied Yait 3uipT
3TR YRd WRBR Y Ifeds! & THI R UIfeeT & H1ey I 59 g o
TR | HTq fdo1 PfiarT 37K e 32 & 2R ol yars
G §31T1 I Sl I U Aol faxi R a0 3 J Hee
ot

fAder srIHifA 3% 31y fAfY

AT 3 7o 317N A 1 [GaPyi yeied fobar 3R HR-Ha,
PR-APY FiE T Arafe ST Afed Fael &1 v fafde diewmifery
ST 3T RGN A AAA/AA+ T dTet SIATH, AT INBR B
18T 3R wfafdd TRt & Arafey ssh & 8, 5 qRem 3 R R
AT B3 &1 31 71d 2025 T FHafid ARl &1 $I¥ T 6,210 08
ofT, foRRY i v &5 SR ? 410,61 BR18 (8.47% 9fl N &b & ) Bl

IS

fagef g1 vdem

ghapb! A af 2024 3 SR B A1 3R dIR 3Gl &b AT P
foTe TPIPT 1.80 fafei = 3MRET SielR (7 16,035 RIS & SRIER) &
facel ga1 fafma 1 yeel fobaTi gtheb! A HaT H 3R Fgld & YHId I Ga
@I g1 gU Ueb gfAal afohT Aifd 31R IRFAIT 31T YT qomed! 1
YA Y-RTSTHIcTeb e, 3T b 31feies A3 3R B9 6.05%
H bl HRARAT P S195[G, 59 ERBIU & GRUTAE®Y HEdqol oPTd
I g8 3R o ReRaT g3 g8l

faa &P
Sha! H I ufagelf 3eR R IR A &Y a1 I3b 379! e
el 39T BT I5cR Teie s 3R Taied dRetdl 9 Sb-317 olig
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AT Pl a¥ 2024-25 S GRHE 15T APIA T 419 B8 2l Safd
2023-24 & SR T T 454 18 ot | A P SAGI BT 7T TR It
3R YR IRBR I AfAS! W] b BRUT g5 el ob A1 Wl Hejel
3R ISTRINRT 3L 3 BieH T H off Brfefict it 3maeadansit
1 B2 Teier A & bl

AT 3R IRREURS g
1 Y Bl g1 H 59 9 PR Yd A T 3,234 IS I d¢aR 2 3,811
PRAS B1 ITT, STEb & TN AT T 2,443 TS F GBI T 2,823 TS
21 7| ey SR Bl R I A1 T R 3RR T8, W Holdd
3Rferd AT, 317891 gfeg; 3R 3renRid i efdior 3 dRReR®! 3
feIw AR Je gfeg AT 6

Yoft 3i farefir egar

31979, 2025 A g%hebl bl Uad RR Ysil ¥629.06 IS e, STafb 31
AR 2024 B IEF 630.13 TS Y| HEGRT IRRERDB! bl TAT 35,617 I
G 35,675 & 5| IR 3R 37T T 25145 IS A TGHR
327,825 Ig & IR, Safd Adel Hed ¥ 25,775 PRI A dgb?
28,454 BRI &1 711 31 7T, 2025 b Stheb! HHE P Pl (Hael Hed
% 40,770 RIS T TGIR T 44,432 BR1S &1 1|

HUT & HHY 317 gRuf &1 fawar

THPB! F THR HUT A B F 7,144 RIS T °TH T 3,901 TRIS B
3791 faeitar R &1 3R e fasam i gaiiora arf Afed T 3/
JUft ¥ 25,557 IRIE A TGP T 26,943 BB B IS, &P Ale]
YRFURIAT T 18,215 TRI8 F TR T 18,234 RIS &l TS|

farfta ¥

T RN 3R HaTgd AReldll Rl & BRUT SHebI Bl FAReR I=dAH
pfge AT U &, o SoIR B gxdhl fag-iarar 31k 3rg 31k off
TSI g8 ol 379 fadeol iR yeier, R2R Fod] yaTe 37K Ui
BT Yeie 3 A1 FAfA gfaegell &:f oR faaaiyor gre B § wam 38
2, oY wramer geran 3k Srafaflies f@rar gAfdd & 2

fopflrer 3t

bR 7 3reurafde SRl Yshl, SR-A 3nemid Jfaemit 3k
HeUTdfies Ul & AU Shapl I A1+ ST BT g7 gfe 6 8, 5l o
TPl 3 I IR Pl gl &1 ffafds 3R F faw Aa+ / [RR
ST AT SR S H1Y &1 IfRcdl Y GRT B Bl SBT3l
g & I G2Afel &



FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
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2024-2025

Navigating a volatile global landscape, IFFCO upheld
financial stability and strategic growth in 2024-25,
demonstrating resilience despite economic headwinds.
While international price fluctuations led to a moderate
decline in revenue, disciplined cost management,
investment strategies, and efficient operations reinforced
the society’s financial foundation.

Turnover and Market Performance

IFFCO recorded a total turnover of ¥ 41,244 crore in
2024-25, compared to T 39,474 crore in the previous fiscal
year. The IFFCO Group’s total turnover stood at 353,561
crore in 2024-25, reflecting a growth from ¥52,495 crore
in 2023-24. While lower global fertiliser prices impacted
revenue, IFFCO remained operationally strong, adapting
to market conditions with a balanced financial approach.

Cost Optimisation and Financial Management

A strategic approach to fund management enabled IFFCO
to lower financing costs. This was achieved through
proactive cost control measures, efficient working capital
utilisation, and timely receipt of subsidies from the
Government of India. Strong banking partnerships and
fiscal discipline ensured steady cash flow, helping IFFCO
maintain a robust financial position.

Investment Strategy and Surplus Funds

The Society prudently managed its surplus funds and
maintained a diversified portfolio of investments,
including tax-free and taxable bonds, and Fixed deposits.
Majority of investments are in AAA/AA+ rated
instruments, State Government bonds, and fixed deposits
with reputable institutions, ensuring safety and steady
returns. As on 3lst March 2025, the corpus of invested
funds stood at ¥ 6210 Crores, earning an income of ¥410.61
Crore (a yield of 8.47% p.a.) during the financial year.

Foreign Exchange Management

IFFCO managed its foreign exchange exposure of
approximately US$ 1.80 Billion (equivalent to ¥ 16,035
crore) during the financial year 2024-25 for import of raw
material and finished products. IFFCO adopted a selective
hedging strategy and structured import payments,
shielding itself from currency fluctuations. Despite global
economic uncertainties, including geopolitical tensions,
and Rupee volatility of 6.05%, this approach resulted in
significant cost savings and ensured financial stability.

Financing Cost
IFFCO optimally managed its fund requirement by
arranging funds at most competitive borrowing rates and

ensured that it had adequate liquidity and back up lines of
credit. The interest cost during 2024-25 was T 419 Crore
as compared to ¥ 454 Crore during 2023-24. This
reduction was attributable to timely realisation of debtors
and subsidy receivables from GOI. IFFCO’s strong working
relationships with banks and fiscal discipline ensured
efficient management of working capital requirements in
an efficient manner even in turbulent times.

Profitability and Shareholder Value

Profit before tax increased from ¥3,234 crore to 3,811
crore, while profit after tax stood at 32,823 crore, up from
32,443 crore in the previous year. While market conditions
influenced profitability, strong reserves, surplus growth,
and a disciplined financial approach ensured continued
value creation for shareholders.

Capital and Financial Strength

As of March 31, 2025, IFFCO’s paid-up share capital was
3629.06 crore as against ¥630.13 crore as on March 3],
2024, with member shareholders growing to 35,675 from
35,617 in the previous year. Reserves and surplus reached
327,825 crore, up from 25,145 crore, and net worth rose
to 328,454 crore, compared to 25,775 crore in 2023-24.
The total net worth of the IFFCO Group as on March 31, 2025
was 344,432 as against 40,770 as on March 31, 2024.

Debt Reduction and Asset Expansion

IFFCO continued to strengthen its financial position by
reducing outstanding loan funds to ¥3,901 crore, down
from %7144 crore. Gross fixed assets, including capital
work in progress, increased to 326,943 crore from 325,557
crore, while current assets stood at %18,234 crore,
compared to 18,215 crore in the previous year.

FINANCIAL RATINGS

IFFCO’s financial discipline and strong liquidity position
continued to earn the highest credit ratings, reinforcing its
credibility in the market. With its prudent financial
management, stable cash flows, and strategic debt
positioning, the society secures funding at competitive rates,
ensuring operational efficiency and long-term sustainability.

CRISIL Ratings

CRISIL reaffirmed IFFCO’s Al+ rating for short-term
working capital, non-fund-based facilities, and short-term
loans, representing the highest level of creditworthiness.
Its AA+ / Stable rating for long-term borrowings reflects a
very strong ability to meet financial obligations with
minimal risk exposure.
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APPROPRIATIONS OUT OF NET PROFIT / folda i &1 fafaidister  (2in crore)

ITEM /¥ 2024- 2025 2023-2024

D Ater Tax 2,822.96 2,442.57
Iagsﬁ?:a?;;%?end Equ?#@satlon Fund 500.00 500.00
Is-lgslﬁi: Procétéct ar}d Infrastrt;ﬁcftgtrjre Development Fund 750.00 500.00
Net Allocable Profit (as per MSCS Act)

el A et A (Sgasd eIl ARrIéist i) 3 3R 1,572.96 1,442.57

LESS: PROPOSED APPROPRIATIONS
e uwdifad A==

(i)Reserve Fund as per Bye-law 56(i)

39 56 (i) & 3TFROTH ARG A

(ii) Cooperative Rehabilitation, Reconstruction and

Development Fund as per Bye-law 56(iii) 1.00 1.00
3UfAFH 56 (ijii) & IIFROT H WePHR) IHa, AT vd fasmr FAfd

(iii) Reserve Fund for Contingency as per Bye-law 56(iv) _
3T 56 (iv) & RO H JTHNABAT & fole AR AR

(iv) ch:ﬂe%ié%iducation Fund 15.73 14.43
(v) Cooperative Welfare Fund 1.00 l _
BRI BT A & fAw 3mRfaa )

(vi) Reserve for Donations
< 35 v 3T B 100 i 100

Pt | tooseo | eztaa
fRder ara Rae oy 1,003.69 921.24

Transfer to General Reserve

AT ARfET R & 3iakd 877.88 798.64
Retained Earnings for Proposed Dividend
TR eriel & fae ufaenRa sma 125.81 122.60
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TSHAIBRE T

HERMIRT 4 FrRiNe Yol [, SR 3nenia gemt 3R
fTafies FHUN & AT Shad! Y AT+ T § 8, 3T 39 B SifEm
Tt fareiir ST 31R e G AReld FaeiA &l YHIfoTd el 8| rafafdes
3R & fae IR 6 AA+ / FRR Y Tfashict a1tk aRfRRfaa) & &g
frii HTeIcH! SIFTQ & b1 Sl &iHdT bl 3R g8 el gl

gfean

SR Yo 3 g B e G B, W8 & e RAE
3R JAen3h 3R srcarafils Bl B v AT+ AT H g A R,
ST Ul 3RATeRYT Hfe AR B AT Al &1 s9% MR,
fAfe-3menfa 3R SR-AfY 3menia st wfed <afafde 3uRi & faw
AA+ / TR M 33135 HaTed faxiia &) 31k &1 sifRm & garfd &1

T, 3MeAI3RU 31 fea S I ura ofif-xeRi T & ey,
eI U faeiia ® J JRfavd 3R rfdie Remra Ter s gg 213
ST T Fad aApTd-yrdt faaeT gifd eea § afafa & [R&fa &
e B &, 31 e, R 3R afafies B aha SR
g Tfcisgdr Bl off T et &

TR BT FARHBIUT ; 31, HenFH 3R =R
ShHa! Bl 5T 37K AT P i HHaIRT B1 JehT-Teieh Biered, I
T 3R A1l STHBRI YeTd B Ui & AT dIR BRIgA S

e
’Hr

TR Pfad &1 2024-25 H, UHATE, 31 UATAea, WIS A=, Agar
R 3R RRRAT 51 v 85l & 80 & 34T UfAeTor BrichH 3RS
U oTU, 5 BRA Uge IR AT SR T IR AR Tgasiiar af
& 3UcIe H e - dcd TASTT, FeAPT 3R STal et 1 Mt el
gU Hige3t & foiu 5 ®ide AeAd uid § “ag s (eft fa=a)”
PRIH BT AR o

AfaT S A2 ST 3R TaIR & 9 14T ST
Taelidd BRIGR & dedl 31 &g ShP PAA, fafdy 3R
TIRAR-3NYRT Hed g7 F AU ufdgg &1 sTh IR,
IT-3enRe 3R O3S -Twfid o7l fosan aeft fawl & greeff 3k
Foret Il A B 8, I T & dgrar e drelt 3ad
URARY BRIFNA €1 2024-25 H, 7V [G9R e 3R deb-1iebl wY I FLrkT
ST 700 AV 9QeRY Bl FAgeh faba 11| Well & 3761, ghebl 3791
HHART YeTd AT AR S (3ETATHTHUEA) 3R AT IATe
fIUPT B F&PT I 3TN HR-5HTS TATHDBAT 3R SRUT S&h! St
UEEl O HIEHH I FATIR Bl Ig1dT &l 81 3agaR 2024 3R HRaRT 2025
& o1 3c1e SHBIsdl | 3MNfSId 8 famsr-uRa & # el g
HHAIRYT P dTe FAIT-THIEH, I 3R TR -T1SHR0T B
TicATie {351 ITIT| Shab] b BHATRAT b IPTG Bl AT HI=IdT et
&, o3&, 9 3R JISPIR HATe, JERT IRBR A “9H 3" 3R
“3/H YYUT” GRBR 2N & | 3 hep! o FRAfHeBRUT 3R FRAR JUR Bl
AT I f PI 35TPR = 2l

1. 357 2 3rawet, yeer g, s, ot Sdg fRiTe, aRs BRIGRT Al (fat), ShHa! &f UIcs Udb3ced 3t Si3aT Tem (3MSITaTs,
TA3TSHRA) GRT IR AT S LAY I F 7151 ST IR G2 S §U1 I8 R 1T 91 b1 5TRe 3R 9t e & fev yer fasan s




ICRA Ratings

ICRA assigned IFFCO an Al+ rating for working capital funds,
non-fund-based facilities, and short-term loans, confirming
its low-risk financial profile and sound liquidity management.
The Society’s AA+ / Stable rating for long-term borrowings
further underscores its ability to maintain financial strength
amid dynamic market conditions.

India Ratings

India Ratings reaffirmed IFFCO’s Al+ rating for working
capital funds, non-fund-based facilities outside the
consortium, and short-term loans, recognizing its
exceptional credit standing. Additionally, its AA+ / Stable
rating for long-term borrowings, including fund-based and
non-fund-based limits, highlights its robust financial
framework and low-risk exposure.

Consistent Ratings, Continued Trust

With top-tier ratings from CRISIL, ICRA, and India Ratings,
IFFCO remains a financially secure and highly credible entity.
These affirmations not only strengthen the Society’s position
in securing cost-effective funding but also reinforce its
commitment to stability, growth, and long-term financial
resilience.

STRENGTHENING FOUNDATIONS: PEOPLE,
TECHNOLOGY & PUBLICITY

IFFCO’s learning and development strategy focuses on
building a future-ready workforce by equipping employees
with industry-relevant skills, leadership abilities, and
technological know-how. In 2024-25, over 80 training
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programmes were conducted across key areas such as Al,
data analytics, smart manufacturing, cybersecurity, and
sustainability, with special emphasis on green initiatives. To
mark the International Year of Cooperatives, IFFCO also
celebrated women in leadership through a “She Wins”
programme at Jim Corbett National Park—an inspiring blend
of leadership training, collaboration, and outdoor learning.

EMPOWERING TALENT AND

FOSTERING INNOVATION

IFFCO is committed to building a skilled, diverse, and
innovation-driven workforce to meet the demands of a
dynamic business environment. Its structured, merit-based,
and Al-supported recruitment process ensures transparent
and efficient hiring across disciplines, with a pan-India
strategy promoting inclusion. In 2024-25, around 700 new
professionals were onboarded, bringing fresh ideas and
technical strength. Beyond recruitment, IFFCO fosters
innovation through its Employees’ Suggestion Scheme and
initiatives like Inter-Unit Creativity and Prerna Meets,
conducted in collaboration with the Indian National
Suggestion Schemes’ Association (INSSAN) and the HR
Department. Held across manufacturing units between
October 2024 and February 2025, these expert-led sessions
encouraged problem-solving, creativity, and idea-sharing,
especially from new recruits. Employee contributions have
earned national recognition, including “Shram Ratna” and
“Shram Bhushan” awards from the Ministry of Industries,
Labour & Employment, Government of Guijarat, highlighting
IFFCO’s strong culture of empowerment and
continuous improvement.

Matianal Awards for
Outstanding Industrial Relations 2023-24
12ik Decombas, 014 | FICCL Hew Delhi

IR & HR department, IFFCO on Winning the AIOE National Awards for the Outstanding Industrial Relations 2023-24 in
the category of the Large Enterprise - Manufacturing Sector.
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TR P 2Afth A f2feieet Fyidror @i I1fd

U3 T 7 ST@1 deb-1ab Gaiell 3 TRITRIA Bl &, R&T Bl Hofed e,
B IATEHAT T 3R TTeT Pl JATRAT BRA & oIl ghep! JaT
3R TR WEnfidhT (3TSHIE) BT AT 337 38T gl dofl ¥ AeRd & B
f3fSieet uReed & e, AMFA 3 39d USuige IR, Aichd W1 vee
3R IRAfIS FHY T IR 3 Hiezm I 3797 AgsR Jafl efd Bl
TSI doveb JRfard 31K orfia 3 g et fasfd fas 81

3RBI P TN fBSPIa P ol SHep! A Wi §H P UbIhd Bb Wil
& AAP! H geeld SN 3T 8, oI qafeRufi gTd 1 7 v gU
3G 1 3YTPT S8R &1 38T &1 P FHGR Pl 3R HAb H2h - &b
A IUBON dh 3HH Ggd Y &34 & v Hiarse
Uftciaher faefe fabu ST 8 813 Ugdd fefaiee 3Rmm=dl &l ure % ¢,
SN fIR-xeferd THTem M 3 AT dos TgaT I8 & 5% 3! I
e 3MaRTSHT 2

eIl & U Ueb Hotg fafieet 3MeR &1 31aead 21 Shapl A 310
31RPet SIRUT 3R 329 SIBRCaR HI 3PS a1 8, Ry fAafer
vel 3R JRam gig YRR g2 81 B =i, $-8sRo1 3R A e
I yEe Afed T @i Bt o RBfSed fhar g,
SR IRefRfar 31k yRaTceT gardT & deral e &1 59 37eTdT, 31
3R sH1Edl I UI3TRUATY 37K Se10d RiRer & AR 3 %! Uas
37 TS 3R B2reT bRl AT b Y & 317 81

B 3R ATTARAD JTe! H AT AD HSHIET FHTET P Ueblepel
PP, THa| UP A, SeT-FdIfcld 3R Hielifidhl-Tem Jfas &
HIBR 2 T 213 98 Idd [N, BfSiect Ferfthar 3R y=met &

el - —

3PEdl & fov AT Bl gfdagdl BT Helgd Bl & AR I8 IR
el & 1o HTeTehl To1fet BT 3MMeRfAeT -1t R

A TR 3R fifsar ggufiar & aeam 3
SHd| B TAR-TAR d6MI

fafder JuHIfde TR ATETHT I SHebl Pl §ig BId DI Holgd 9 H
SH-3Ueh g JaIR fa9PT fARAR Heaqul yffiesr AT 38T 81 fRdeRes! &
APERY 3R 78 B3 P HoTgd T R &4 Higd B Y [F9PT 9ga
T & fol aRuRes 31 f3fSieet Hifear Q- o1 WERT AdT 81 Sheb! gRT
ST AERIUT 37K IfAH JGHRT T 2024 BT B 3TN 2T
S| Uil fAGIE Pl eIl & B el JfafSd Jersd iR
37a1S 2 Y o1 Ui 377eeyUT 3, SR fife, Seiaeifds 3R fafSieat Hifsan
& A1ezH W AP Y TR AT

gHe! B AR 3 441 IR fAfede w 3IR 441 Siudt &
ChIS[p, UaRT, SCTITH 3R ICHTY S WWiehH IR Uehldd AT &
ez I geniRd 3521 SR 39 31 B AR e, i 3R daer
Sieft 341 aeh & it HEcaquT YfiesT I8l &1 A1 IR e 3R A Shedt
& fSHI3T & foiv AR SHep! b S Il ol ATIdH TARTE!
et &1 Srere HifEa 3T & Hed 3 fhar! &1 33d Al & aR
¥ fagd STHBRI UG 1 T8 | 41 JRAT b AU TR bl A1fcl & dad
A 3RBT R FATHSD dfSAT €SHUY b HezH F 6 BIS A HAb
fBT Bl A1 IR 31fA F 3B AT db STHBRI TgaHT g
AT BT 3823 2Tl

21 31faRar, Ballet SIS P Ul ST FARIE Bl file, Sadei-d a
Tieret HfSTT el & HTed ISR IR TR SAT9% YR a1 IR
S S| Bl AT IURAM 3R AR g8

Shri R P Singh, Director(HR&Legal) at 12th Inter Unit Innovation & Creativity Meet at FMDI, Gurugram organized by

HRD - Corporate Office, New Delhi




DRIVING DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION,
EMPOWERING INNOVATION

In an era where technology defines efficiency, IFFCO is
leveraging Information and Communication Technology
(ICT) to fortify security, enhance agricultural productivity,
and streamline operations. With a rapidly evolving digital
landscape, the society has strengthened its cybersecurity
framework through advanced endpoint protection,
proactive threat management, and real-time data
monitoring, ensuring a secure and resilient IT infrastructure.

IFFCO continues to transform farming practices by
integrating Agri Drones for precision fertiliser spraying,
optimising input use while reducing environmental impact.
To further empower the agricultural community, mobile
applications are being developed to provide farmers, rural
entrepreneurs, and retailers with easy access to vital insights
and business tools. These initiatives are bridging the digital
divide, bringing technology-driven solutions directly to those
who need them most.

A strong digital backbone is essential for efficiency. IFFCO
has upgraded its Oracle ERP and database infrastructure,
ensuring seamless performance and enhanced security. Key
business functions, including tax invoicing, e-tendering, and
HR management, have been digitised, promoting
transparency and operational agility. Additionally, the
expansion of HRMS and EBS systems to Nano Fertiliser Units
is fostering a more connected and efficient organisation.

By integrating cutting-edge ICT solutions across agriculture
and business operations, IFFCO is shaping a secure,
data-driven, and technology-enabled future. These initiatives
reinforce the society’s dedication to sustainable growth,
digital empowerment, and operational excellence, ensuring
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that technology remains a cornerstone of progress.

ENHANCING IFFCO’S VISIBILITY THROUGH
STRATEGIC COMMUNICATION &

MEDIA ENGAGEMENT

The Public Relations and Publicity Department continues to
play a pivotal role in shaping and sustaining IFFCO’s brand
image through strategic, multi-platform communication.
With a focus on strengthening stakeholder engagement and
brand visibility, the department leverages both traditional
and digital media to enhance outreach. A major highlight
this year was IFFCO’s successful hosting of the ICA General
Assembly and Global Cooperative Conference 2024,
including the Rochdale Awards. The event garnered
widespread attention across global print, digital, and
electronic media.

IFFCO’s flagship products, Nano Urea Liquid Plus and Nano
DAP, were actively promoted through integrated campaigns
on platforms such as Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, and
WhatsApp, complemented by on-ground visibility efforts
including wall paintings, hoardings, and tractor trolley
artwork. The IFFCO Kisan Drone Scheme—developed for
spraying Nano Urea Plus and Nano DAP—received wide
appreciation, amplified by targeted social media campaigns
showcasing its benefits to farmers. As part of the outreach
strategy, informational videos on Nano fertilisers were
disseminated to over 6 crore farmers via WhatsApp,
ensuring deep grassroots penetration.

In addition, the Golden Jubilee celebration of the Kalol unit
was marked by extensive national coverage, with the Event
broadcast and reported across print, electronic, and social
media platforms, further reinforcing IFFCO’s strong
public presence.

Dr. U.S. Awasthi, Managing Director, IFFCO, congratulating Shri A.K. Gupta, Director-IT Services, and the Drone Project team on
receiving the prestigious ‘Gems of Digital India - Jury’s Choice Award, 2024’ at the 5th Gems of Digital India Knowledge and Awards.
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B STSTR IRALT Bl AT o STaIsfe TR IRUMH & g 3¢S FHYUT HR Pel HgAd o foid eI Hee Wit sHaiRal &
YAl YT HTUR ik Bl & | 5 N bl Shabl bl eIl b felU 3! Uiddgdl Heayul 38! 8l

BH URA IR, [IAY K I I8P fAPT, B Tdl B BeTuT HATE dT TebINAl HATE P €6 A 3R APl i gag I
IRTEAT 3] & | g T WRBRI A et FRAR Tmef 7 off bl & Tdd B 3R WTeT IRaM Bl I1aT S 9 fMeH B 3P dgH o

Hgedqul ffiest (TS

& i SiRem3il, AfoIfSdes dobl 37R B HearaT- e, WRT AR TR TS 37 2 IR & by TAT3TT 3 Ufel TR e Bl
€, o211 Sthep! b AATIRT IR HRINAT ST &1 §H A1 3cRepl o1 Ugd ol STl cieh [T &1 b ferm A 3 FReR wedT ol
3Eie A &1 BRI RIS &1 3181 dgH & odaR, fadear3il 31k FAHRI BT IR IPTEH 8Tl

AU YR IARBR, I Ud IR HATCTd, HEBINAT HATeTd, P Ud fhaT beivl HAlerd & 1 &1 RAfaepH, 31ier vael,
AMCTATg, AT, Sife, 3HI 37R gos T ARPBRI b e TeAPT Dl AT BRA &1 &H I 37 YRASTHI3T H Afcha WPiiarT
& foU gfea dlerer fafids, 31 3iRie U, Sfdsdl 7RIA TRIFT UIdHE. fAfiee 3R SdIuri o a2y w9 F er=garg &vd 8l

B 3797 T WePbRI AT & Ufd 377 372 Trei 37R 32Ty 3 folv gIfées MR 2k PR &1 37T Aded FedRI g,
AR B 37 AT [IBRT 3 Ul 3! Bl UfATG Al I HoTgd Bl ¢ | ShHab! GIdT, ATIYGA] 3R 319 TSI APTGH Bl g
& fau Tmffa 2|

AR Hed & fAU 3iR 3AH 3R A

Fagant

feetiy Serof
(31e7a)

fediep:- 25 310, 2025
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS Bk,

The Board of Directors sincerely thanks all employees for their unwavering dedication and hard work in
delivering exceptional results, despite the challenges of a tough market environment. Their commitment has
been crucial to IFFCO’s success this year.

We deeply appreciate the steadfast support and guidance of the Government of India, particularly the
Department of Fertilisers, Ministry of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare, and Ministry of Cooperation. The
continued backing from various state governments has also played a key role in advancing IFFCO’s mission of
promoting sustainable agriculture and food security.

Our gratitude extends to financial institutions, commercial banks, and our valued customers, especially national
and apex-level cooperative institutions, for their trust in IFFCO’s innovations. We look forward to their
continued support, particularly in expanding the reach of Nano fertilisers to farmers. The contributions of
contractors, vendors, and consultants in driving our projects forward are also highly appreciated.

The Directors acknowledge the invaluable support of the Government of India, the Ministry of Chemicals &
Fertilisers, the Ministry of Cooperation, and the Ministry of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare, as well as the
Governments of Sikkim, Andhra Pradesh, Tamil Nadu, Senegal, Jordan, Oman, and Dubai. We extend special
thanks to Indian Potash Ltd., Oman Oil Company, Tokio Marine Asia Pte. Limited, and JPMC for their active
involvement in joint venture projects.

Above all, we express our heartfelt gratitude to our member cooperatives for their unwavering support and
trust. Their patronage continues to strengthen IFFCO’s commitment to the cooperative movement, Indian
agriculture, and rural development. IFFCO remains dedicated to enhancing efficiency, profitability, and its
broader contribution to society.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Bilec o

Dileep Sénghani
(Chairman)

Date:- 25 April, 2025
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1. BRUNE Ia~9 Hfgdr &1 g2l

TLRH PRURE TG JATC T W2l g UgH el & o R 3w &
1Y Be-He dlcl bl TGP 39HH W3 ald &l Sha! Bl
PRURE a4 b Ui efPPI0T HauRAs vl Bl FRHT &
Tr-A1 ol IR, Afde 30T, aReffdr der 3 ef
fEAeRe o & TePR! W, HHARY, e, fAosar, Fame
IRATC e A9 FHIST—3b Uil Feqerar JAfYd - w bfad 8l

gha! 1 gy, gReel vd e 15 Pl Tg TWRT 38T ¢, foieT
3827 31 RAURS! & AT IAdd ¥ I G Yo BT 8l PRURS
AT Shebl B Icpedl, fdpr Td Geiplicier Hod fAHI0T Bl FRAR
IHET BT 370 3P 59 bl 21 AT 3RS a7 & 3ARTE IR |
3YATS ST dTell I8 BRIYUTRN &b HI®RY AT 3R Funferdl Td
eI BT A BT = BT FAReR TN Bl Vel &l

Sheh! I G- FRTT SgRToT HedR| HNISCIST 3HAfRIH, 2002 &
TIgefTHY 3 3R 1A B TS 81 U BRURE (b &b FY H 7=l
YT S%ep! A A=A b HIRY U 3R T q U=l &
famfor fasam &1

2. fAQers dea

IMA 59 91 B Hell- Uiy TBR =t & B 39H Iherar
faferaTquf A3 Heel Bt YT 1id Heauv! &1 Sh! P T€ €6
3T & fb arafde ®u 3 fafdey Fgere dea A efeion, 5H,
DI, ARPcich U WPTfcTes IR 3711S  21feh U1ed Beell 813 ded
AcTee Afafa &1 yfaweicre sgd &l §91U 3@ & YgRis gid &l

SHhPI F eAd Hsd § -l fod, fAyvH vd I yeed s
TR &3 A fA9IsTaT 3 arel eI QN &, St dRURe - &
e HI-Teb! bl GRUTIA A aled Hel Regicli Udl Hedil & Ui guf &
Jufdag 2l

A3 eI HEe &7 3NMHR 3R FHHT 64

G2 Heel o1 16 TgRIsT HebRI ASCIsT HAFTH, 2002 3R
AT & 3ufAFHY 3 3R foT ST 81 3177 2025 b1 RRAf & A
& G2 Heet A ot 28 Faere Qe 2, 5 18 fAaifard ufaffd, &
RSN A 3R 3770 barerd e o118 FRaifd ufaffaar & 3
B8 e fAuuH Hgrie 1 wfafAfaa avd g

fAgere wea &1 95 3R ufsane
Shep! 1 QLI Heel Ud 3! AT &l dowl &b FdleH &d I
3ufeml & 3icPid ¥E ®9 J gRUTT gfssane RefRd 6 €1 PG 3
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Taiferd gearast, 5 wft 31aeads TSI 8l &, el Hesd &
e Bl g 7 fadRd 3 U ST & d1feb 3 319 Sl &1 yTell 19
g8 3% Wb a7 do! § ded e, IR e Jfad =9t 3R
Aufer-gfdsan & 9T o T |

e G Ui d6eb H Wifd o FHY HaeiH Bl STHHRI fAceied Hee
I A w3 €, 3R 3MILIBATIAR Teier b aRe 31faeial &
T o AT &R 3RS STHBRT & &q A fban ST gl

feere e @1 3ufm! & 3fPia 3 wft SR urd & 5 SR
TebRT Iasdist AR va 39% Al & 3¥fd 397 srif &
fAded & foU 3MTaede A1 3UYH A9 ST &l

a1 af 2024-25 & ERME FAGerH Hea P T 6% RN & T8,
58 I S Sob & arg 31fABAH 3RTA I~ o b1 2Tl Joft Soept &
A2 HeeT & FewT &t Afosd w38

fAers s 6 wfafaai

fIgere Hedt & Furdt TaTa- § TgdPT & & o gha! A Ui e
IRfAIY 1 316 fa5a | e AR 1 e IeRarde T o1u € den
BT 3 HAA Yefe B 3 ISR UM fbu 10 &

(i) PRIl AfAfa

(ii) faqur 3u-Tfmfa

(iii) TR 3T

(iv) oT1 U4 3R 9ffa

(v) T 3cdisT Iffa

(i) FriwIvof afafa

HRIGINTT AMAf, Fgers dea & I TABR & 3id(d, Shab! ol
faftra gapreal 3R URATSHI3N & Hore Faer 61 R Bl &1 STP
IRl § Affd & A5a 3R Y3IPTd dsie 3T P FHer, 315
RIS e DI YsioTd Yepfd o fAder YRl &l Fiiepfd, deim ghebl &
RS BT b YeieH 3R qidernT &g A, fFammae 3R i
ST 37271 3T HTHIGA BT A &

3197, 2025 &1 R & 3R, BrRIGIRUT AT H el IRE Fagid
9, 518 3reder, 3urede], IR e fAeere Ud Ue fafie 3mHid
e QM &

fad 9y 2024-25 & GRM BRIBINUT AT Bl Bt e docb ARSI
B 31, o Toft fl 3ufRfa Hdivee® W
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1. Philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance
Robust Corporate Governance practices form the
enduring foundation upon which successful commercial
enterprises are built to thrive over time. IFFCO’s approach
to Corporate Governance is centred on overseeing
business strategies while ensuring fiscal responsibility,
ethical corporate conduct, operational transparency, and
fairness to all its stakeholders, including cooperative
members, employees, customers, vendors, regulators, and
society at large.

IFFCO upholds a rich tradition of fair, transparent, and
ethical governance practices aimed at creating
sustainable value for its stakeholders. Corporate
Governance has become an intrinsic part of IFFCO’s
pursuit of excellence, growth, and long-term value
generation. The Society continuously strives to
benchmark its internal systems and policies with the finest
practices followed internationally across the industry.

IFFCO’s Governance Structure is established in
accordance with the provisions of the Multi-State
Cooperative Societies Act, 2002. Recognized as a Body
Corporate, IFFCO has framed its Bye-laws to govern its
internal management in alignment with the Act.

2. Board of Directors

The Society acknowledges and values the critical role that
a diverse Board plays in its success. IFFCO firmly believes
that a truly diverse Board draws strength from differences
in  perspectives, knowledge, skills, cultural and
geographical backgrounds, ethnicity, and more—factors
that collectively help maintain its competitive advantage.
The Directors on IFFCO’s Board bring a wide range of
expertise in key fields such as Technology, Finance,
Marketing, and General Management, and are united in
their commitment to the core principles and values that
define the highest standards of Corporate Governance.

Size and Composition of the Board

The composition of IFFCO’s Board of Directors is
determined by the provisions of the Multi-State
Cooperative Societies Act, 2002 and the Society’s
Bye-laws. As of March 31, 2025, the Board comprised
twenty-eight Directors, including eighteen Elected
Representatives, two Co-opted Nominees, and eight
Functional Directors. Among the eighteen Elected
Representatives, Six members represented
Marketing Federations.

Board Meetings and Procedures
IFFCO has established well-defined procedures under its
Bye-laws for conducting meetings of the Board of

Directors and its Committees. Agenda papers containing
all necessary information are circulated to the Members in
advance, enabling them to effectively discharge their
responsibilities and participate in meaningful,
well-informed discussions and decision-making
processes at meetings.

The Managing Director regularly briefs the Board on the
Society’s overall performance during Board Meetings, and
Senior Management officials are invited to provide
additional inputs on matters under discussion, as and
when required.

The Board of Directors is vested with all powers under the
Bye-laws deemed necessary or expedient for the
discharge of its functions in accordance with the
provisions of the Multi-State Cooperative Societies Act
and its Rules.

During the financial year 2024-25, the Board convened
Seventeen meetings, with the maximum interval between
any two meetings being thirty-nine days. All meetings
witnessed active participation from Board Members.

Board Committees

To support the effective functioning of the Board of
Directors, IFFCO has constituted five key Committees,
each entrusted with specific responsibilities and
delegated authority to manage operations efficiently:

(i) Executive Committee.

(ii) Marketing Sub-Committee.

(iii) Projects Sub-Committee.

(iv) Audit and Ethics Committee.

(v) Sexual Harassment Committee.

(O] Executive Committee

The Executive Committee oversees the efficient
management of IFFCO’s various establishments and
projects, operating under the overall authority of the
Board of Directors. Its responsibilities include reviewing
the Society’s Revenue and Capital Budget Estimates,
approving investment proposals of a capital nature up to
%15 crore, and framing or approving regulations, manuals,
and policies for supervising and managing IFFCO’s
business operations.

As of March 31, 2025, the Executive Committee was
composed of twelve Directors, including the Chairman,
Vice Chairman, four Functional Directors, and one
Special Invitee.

During the financial year 2024-25, fourteen meetings of

the Executive Committee were held, all of which were
well attended.
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(ii) fagqor 3u-afafa

AU 3u-afmfa, Imfy & QYo SRIf & yded & o JoRer &,
o w1 fquue Hifadt &1 fmfor, [aror et @ @ 3R
3RP! I P 3G P oot FeROT B IRTAT RIR AT A &

3191, 2025 & R & AR, 33 AfA § St dsw e 2, 5w
3erey, 3UTeeT, BE oM e 3R diF T1d I onfie 3|

o a9 & SR f{Uv 3u-Affa 6 9 968 3mNSd & e, S0
Toft & Ifpa Yriier) &

(iii) i 3U-afafa

RIS 39-AMAfA, AR gRT Iferd TRASHIAT & AT Yeier b
o0 TR 8 | T8 AR aRASHI3T B I W1, IPTSTe e TRaT,
T 3R IR e 3 Feiferd sraell 61 AR el 2|

3171, 2025 P 331 AMAfA & pot e e enfiie 2, 5w feze,
3UTeET 37K T AR He2re 2Mfie |

¥ & SR IRASTT 39-IAfa H 9= Job MRS B g, S0
TS H ord-Hfaerd U asf 1 TS|

(iv)  elEreien vd Hifa afafa

crRaTRlen vd Aifq Afdfa, 1o ¥ 3 IR B o arefidr 3R
SHHGR) §-TU G H Ueb cha 1 YfAeT ATl 81 31 A1, 2025 61 fAfd
b AR, o AT F 37248, 30Teag, ol IR-HAABIRD [A2reb, Feiel
fAQere, fore fAceres der &1 {3y 3T Faw oMt 31

AR B R ey & onfiiet &

o faciy RAFET ufcbar &1 gfderor &1 3R Aty FebciBRur bl
LG, Tl 3R e G &l

o 4GP Heel &b FHE YIJd B3 I Yd Yeie & A1 SHIE! Ud
qIfep el faaRuT &1 wHiar e, [y w9 3 ciesd Afadr 3R
T HTeBl &b HYATeT R T dbiad BRd gu|

o idRep A 10T, SRR Heier JoTferl 3R 31dRe eramadien
fAPT o BT T HerTich ATl

o UING dcd 3meniRd TS (THEITH) A1 & 3iepia it U5 &
IARPI B ABAT G Hod (THARYY) B FeN A BT Heliabd B
& aTfSe cPTA Hichs| bl HHIEH Bl
67

o Y 2024-25 3 SR, WM 6 Ui S5 AT I S| 31TdARD
CIATORIE AT b Y woft doobl & Fafiid w9 I Ay 31 Je
F T F 9PT oA &1 a1fics ey RAaRol I wfien & SR Affa &
Tifafdis ararierds ff A 3T & ® § 9pT A § 3R 31idRe
fRIA0T 3B HsTad A 8 319 GeTTa 37R i yer aa &1 FHadt
aESierd d 8 Jod! § UPT od ¢ 3R Ie & 37dRe AT g
TOTTCPTd UfhaT3i R 37erd STHBRI MeH B3d 8l

(v) A 3cfisT afafa

PR BT P& R FHASS SV 3 B 79 Ffddgal
3T, THPI A A 3z AT BT 76 3B &l

g A ARG fRrBrId ARfd gRT I RUIST b wrei-wref e g
ot oY frmrrd B e & forw ITRerRh &1 9 It Afget Fgere
AEH Bl €, 1T 9 Ueb Bl 31 A 35 STl &, el 81 Ueb g5
fGreb 9t gvepT ferwa &t &1

Heger gRT AT Y HANSTeb P R H P - g TR Bl Uep Afgedl
NABRY &f A B ST &l

RSN 37078 3 HTAR, AR P PIS ABrRId U 8 g8 &1

3. 3R Afgdr
SERIST HgbR! ATSclst AAFIH, 2002 3R M & 3ufHFHl &
3FRIR, 31T T P I8 ITRGMI TT 3171 & b a8 e Hedl &
e, SR % BRIGRT ARSI off 2nfied &, b Sy & = 6
THlE Y AT FAaLrb Hedl b Tewl 3R ARDBINAT & folv 3R
Jfgdr & AT B

g9 37T BAI & AI®Y, SHbI 7 HUA e Hedl & folv Uh
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(i) Marketing Sub-Committee

The Marketing Sub-Committee is tasked with managing
the Society’s marketing operations, including the
formulation of overall marketing policies, distribution
strategies, and pricing structures for fertilisers and
agricultural inputs.

As on March 31, 2025, the Committee consisted of
twenty-three Directors, including the Chairman, Vice
Chairman, six Functional Directors, and three
nominated members.

In the financial year, the Marketing Sub-Committee convened
Five meetings, all of which saw active participation.

Ciii) Projects Sub-Committee

Responsible for the efficient management of projects
undertaken by the Society, the Projects Sub-Committee
monitors the overall progress of projects, organisational
structures, staffing, and contracts associated with
project execution.

As on March 31, 2025, the Committee comprised twenty-four
Directors, including the Chairman, Vice Chairman and seven
Functional Directors.

During the year, five meetings of the Projects Sub -
Committee were held, each marked by full attendance.

(iv) Audit and Ethics Committee

The Audit and Ethics Committee plays a pivotal role in
maintaining a high level of financial transparency and
integrity within the organisation.

As on March 31, 2025, the Committee included the Chairman,
Vice Chairman, three Non-Official Director, Managing
Director, Finance Director, and two Special Invitees.

The Committee’s responsibilities include:

e Overseeing the financial reporting process and
ensuring the accuracy, adequacy, and credibility of
financial disclosures.

e Reviewing the half-yearly and annual financial
statements with Management prior to Board submission,
with a focus on accounting practices and compliance with
Accounting Standards.

e Evaluating internal financial controls, risk management
systems, and the functioning of the Internal
Audit Department.

e Review the Annual Cost Data to assess the
reasonableness of the Maximum Retail Price (MRP) of P&K

fertilisers under the Nutrient Based Subsidy (NBS) Scheme.
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During the financial year, the Committee convened
five meetings. The Head of the Internal Audit
Department is a regular special invitee at all Audit
Committee meetings. The Society’s Statutory Auditors
also participate as special invitees during the review of
annual financial statements, offering their observations
and suggestions for strengthening internal control.
Concurrent Auditors, too, attend the meetings, providing
updates on internal controls and system processes within
the organisation.

w) Sexual Harassment Committee

In line with its commitment to providing a safe and
respectful workplace, IFFCO has constituted a Sexual
Harassment Committee.

This Committee is responsible for reviewing reports
submitted by the Internal Complaints Committee, as well
as any complaints received directly. It is composed of all
Women Directors, one of whom serves as the
Chairperson, along with one Male Director.

The Chairperson nominates a lady officer from the
Society to act as Convenor of the Committee.

As of the reporting period, no complaints have been
received by the Committee.

3. Code of Conduct

In accordance with the provisions of the Multi-State
Cooperative Societies Act, 2002 and the Society’s
Bye-laws, the General Body is entrusted with the
responsibility to review the list of employees who are
relatives of the Board Members, including the Chief
Executive, and to formulate the "Code of Conduct” for the
Board Members and Officers.

In line with these requirements, IFFCO has established a
well-structured Code of Conduct for its Board of
Directors, designed to align with the Society’s vision and
values in pursuit of its mission and objectives. The Code
aims to reinforce ethical standards and promote
transparency in the management of the Society’s affairs.

Additionally, a formal system for the declaration of
relatives is in place to ensure compliance. These
guidelines are strictly enforced and are applicable to all
Members of the Board, including Functional Directors.

4. Vigilance

With a strong commitment to safeguarding the interests
of its members, IFFCO has established a well-organized
Vigilance Department operating across all its
manufacturing units and the Marketing Division. This
department plays a vital role in continuously promoting
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transparency, efficiency, integrity, and best corporate
practices throughout the Society’s operations.

The Vigilance Department is headed by a Chief Vigilance
Officer (CVO) stationed at the Corporate Office, who
reports directly to the Managing Director, ensuring
independent oversight.

The Department’s primary responsibilities include
reviewing procurement files, scrutinizing service
contracts, and examining complaints, among other
activities that strengthen compliance and governance
standards within the Society.

5. Ownership Rights of Shareholders

IFFCO has a wide and diversified shareholder base
consisting of 35,675 Cooperative Societies, including
twenty-nine Marketing Federations. As of March 31, 2025,
the entire paid-up equity of the Society was held by these
Cooperative Societies and Marketing Federations, spread
across the country. Over time, IFFCO has consistently

achieved a healthy level of value creation for its shareholders.

The rights of shareholders are clearly defined and
protected under IFFCO’s Bye-laws. The Society ensures
that shareholders are provided with adequate and timely
information to facilitate their active participation in the
meetings of the General Body. Any grievances of
shareholders and investors are addressed appropriately
during the Annual General Meeting, which is convened
once every year in New Delhi.

The General Body exercises oversight on the following key
matters:

e Election or removal of members of the Board of
Directors.

e Amendment or repeal of existing Bye-laws or
enactment of new ones.

Formulation of the Code of Conduct for Board members.

Approval of the Annual Financial Statements and
Annual Budget.

Distribution of Net Profits.

g nl

Ms. Pooja Kohli
Chief Vigilance Officer, IFFCO
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As of March 31, 2025, the Society’s Share Capital stood at
% 629.06 crore.

6. Means of Communication

Timely disclosure of consistent, relevant and reliable
information on Corporate Financial Performance is at the
core of good governance. The Annual Report of the
Society is available on the website in a user-friendly and
downloadable form. Official news are displayed on
Society’s website www.iffco.in The Society communicates
with its shareholders through its Annual Report, Annual
General Meetings and disclosures through its website.

The Society’s official news releases, other press coverages
are also hosted on the website. The Shareholders can visit
the Society’s website for all financial information and new
developments related to the Society.

7. Women Empowerment at IFFCO

IFFCO has always upheld the principles of inclusivity and
gender equity in its cooperative structure. In a pioneering
step, IFFCO has reserved 5 percent of the seats for
women in its Representative General Body (RGB) and has
also reserved one seat for a woman Director on the IFFCO
Board, ensuring that women have a voice in key
policy decisions.

Women are making their mark in leadership roles across
IFFCO’s subsidiaries, where they have been appointed as
Managing Directors and Chief Executive Officers. Ms.
Madhavi M. Vipradas was appointed as the Managing
Director of IFFDC, and Ms. Madhulika Shukla as the CEO
of IFFCO e-Bazar—reinforcing IFFCO’s commitment to
recognizing merit and enabling women leaders.

Within IFFCO’s main organizational framework, women
hold important positions across various departments,
including finance, marketing, legal, human resources, and
research. Demonstrating its progressive approach further,
IFFCO has also selected women as the Cooperative
Information Officer and the Chief Vigilance Officer,
signifying its commitment to promoting women in both
executive and oversight roles.

Through these initiatives, IFFCO continues to champion
women's empowerment and inclusive leadership across
the cooperative sector.

Ms. Lipi Solanki
Cooperative Information Officer, IFFCO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

u

To the Shareholders of Indian Farmers Fertiliser
Cooperative Limited

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements
of Indian Farmers Fertiliser Cooperative Limited (a Multi
State Cooperative Society) (‘Society’), which comprise of
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the
year then ended, and Notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of Significant Accounting Policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to explanations given to us, the accompanying
financial statements give the information required by the
Multi State Cooperative Societies Act, 2002, as amended,
(‘the Act’), the Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs
of the Society as at March 31, 2025;

(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of its
profit for the year ended on that date; and

(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Society
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

3. Responsibility of Management & those charged
with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
the Society in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
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Standards issued by ICAI and the provisions of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Society and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies, making judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
controls, that are operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
and error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is
responsible for assessing the Society’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Society or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for
overseeing the Society’s financial reporting process.

4. Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Standards on Auditing, will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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STFSRT 3R IR &b AR, BRI RATIRIET P 3628 I G206 2;

(@) BHR Tl H, AT J SgR1o0 Heeb R AATSEIST AIHTE, 2002, I
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For ASC & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 011863 N

(Suraj Prasad Sharma)
Partner

M. No. 096806

UDIN:
25096806BMHGDX8843

Place: New Delhi

Date: April 25, 2025.
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Chartered Accountants
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Chartered Accountants
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(Rajesh Sethi)

Partner

M. No. 085669
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(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purposes
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Society’s
internal control.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by Management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Society’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
Auditors’ Report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Auditors’
Report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Society to cease to continue as a going concern.

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements  regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

5. Report On Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements
As required under the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as specified in
the Multi State Cooperative Societies Rules, 2002, as
amended, have been kept by the Society, so far as
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account.

For ASC & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 011863 N

(Suraj Prasad Sharma)
Partner

M. No. 096806

UDIN:
25096806BMHGDX8843

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 25, 2025.

For G. S. Mathur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 008744 N

(Rajiv Kumar Wadhawan)
Partner

M. No. 091007

UDIN:
25091007BMMLXX9511

For S. Mann & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000075 N

(Subhash Chander Mann)
Partner

M. No. 080500

UDIN:
25080500BMGHEV4478

For S. K. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000478 N

(Rohit Mehta)

Partner

M. No. 091382

UDIN:
25091382BMIXCL5223

For J. C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. OO111T N

(Rajesh Sethi)

Partner

M. No. 085669

UDIN:
25085669BMODNS7457
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1. faia fAaRur daR &9 &1 3meR

3 foiI fdeRUT 3U= 37MER TR, FRAR G STRY 3& T &RUT b
Ted 3R REINBA APTA WRT & AR IR B0 U €, 579 b fb
3T 301 A AT AT 1 a1 Hebeld URA H HAHAR TR ¥dpd
AT FT HLNTEA TgRTT HeebRT AIRASIST HAT™IH, 2002 & Hrarerri
& HTRY fobT AT &1

2. 3TAHI BT 39T

3 A f4aR0T AR W Wi ciaics RAgidl & 39RY (IR U
U €, 5% 3HPid YeieH &l STaf 3Taede &, 8 FHH 3R gafgaH
PTH P H1ETHAr Bl &1 A A R (ol H Ay w
URUTRI, SAATHT 3R AT SIATHT Bl RIS HI 78 AMAAT 2l
RAFET 370 &SGR Gof U 910 IR 3R 2 B go1fdd B 2|
AR IROTHT 3R TPTIY T IAET & 57 off 3R & &, 39 3
31afel § H=ef1 &) STl @ 51 a8 3R e gied gl

3. WufA, H399 9 3B

() YA Bl BB 3 UMY, I I 3UFBI Bl HAURUT TP R
vGfAd fopaT ST &, o & S goend/afeiier et fear T &
APTA H ohd He 12T IR ol 337cb S 3uTPT & Privie R
T o T it o e 8ia 21

(@) A P YT 1A R FGHRId b St €, 3reiid gHeie
&1 A3 R 3R g § A 39 fAfd & a1 1 Afd aReied geres|

(37) AfSp 3UPTH BT 18 HR (AU & 3l 18 URUfI! &b ufd,
S g U] O 3T gk ®U W Fafeld foban S €, 3R I8 FHae
Qe o 31201 Fae I a1 5o § I 51 off 1 g1, 39 W femrn
ST &

(&) V2 AR IIEF 57 HUF, T I ITBR) & HACS! B T/ B €,
312 ST SRE H18 I 311 37afe & AU ITAPT § ATU S Bl FU1a-1
G &, 3¢ YSIPTd ®Y I [T & ST &1

4. fmior 3/afd & SR fosa s/ 2

I 3HTE / sHTSal F T AR F Aeiel F AR 3cmeT YRy
g &1 Al dep 61 Fmiur 3afd & SR 3 s/ e &9, S
AR 3 0T & Heifeld &l 8, 1 HaTfcleh 38R R Ysficpd febar
ST &

5. 30 aREafi

fsafY 3t afvdufl 1 et AT=Ic < STl & 19 I8 Tured 8 b 3w
T 817 aTel Jiasg 3 3nfefes oy Afmfa &1 w81 31k 39 aReufa
$I AP B! YT ®Y J A19T 5T Fhar gl O aRIuf &i
HfEAIEUT APTA W g21fn 7ra 8, 5 I Afd uReiied germ sk &l
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7. g # g

IS JorH-17 I R I8 geaies fasan S & fo5 o= fosef) afviafay
37AT PG YT SPIS (B SR (AT) P FIABUT P Ple Adpel
3UAE &1 AR VW1 BT Tod IR 31T &, A 39 gy I ag afyr
ORI 3T ged M 3B ageht A A J 3785 el &, B
@01 81 3 % B eRaTgede! H Gof faaT 11T &1 et A 1 a8
37T I Bl & S aR=iufa & fAae fosht g 31k 39 JaeH
1o & 3 378 2l

7. fAQ9r
() IR-ae] A3l 1 APTd He TR g2 STTaT 81 3 O fael & ge
H IS V) FRTae 317eft & 571 3Rt 7 8, A 33 AT 87 & fav yraerm
CRIRIGIE]

(@) ey Qi T Hexlioh Y (2T 3 TR TR dPTd 3R 3fad Jo
3 ST A &Y, 3 R A sidr gl

(31) 3BUT gferfcrail & 37ERTEUT WR 1o U Hiffgm 31 ured 9 &l Il
IRYGAT B A 379D B SR HHE TRAMET IT ST ST 21

8. Ay

AT &1 Heis aTPTd 3R et agett arg e § 3 51 B4 8,
3T R AT g

() FTeRgE & fAfd= HEl 1 arTd FEaR FefRd 61T ¢

(i) T w1, Tfdbot AT, fmfor Seft, st gow, 3 3R
3R, TR 3R TR - H1RY WTRA 37NTd PTd &R

(ii) SifspaeliT ¥Cieb — Teel oTPTd IR T 39gh 3igard &
37aResd SH|

(iii) TRIR H1eT:
YU NI A1 B 3T Icfed ATSSIsi™T 3R - HAF
XA AP 3cTe APTd WR, 3R JePT IH-93 Al &
TP b AR (iR AfHE! Bl FHRINGA B3 &b g21d|

3T BRUbfed IRP — W IR A1 3dTeT AAPTd W,
URA IPR P 30 [AUPT GRT IHI-THT R G
AT ST HHIITS eBRdl G, HTl 37ae S feu i divep
dcd 3MeRd ATl &3 & 37w

3T T 3R — T T A1 3T APTd R

(iv) WH-39-¢5:
RIfAd AT 3dRB - IR 3d 3meR W feiRa
TRIE APTA H Uedal S SIS dl YR WWBR gRT a7 &bl

7S EfehT aPTa & ufagfef ety |
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

n |

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis, as
a going concern under the historical cost convention
except otherwise stated, in accordance with the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in India, the Accounting
Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the provisions of Multi State
Cooperative Societies Act, 2002, as amended.

2. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with
the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, requires
Management to make estimates and assumptions
wherever necessary that affect the reported amount of
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities as on the date of
the financial statements and the reported amount of
revenue and expenses during the period. Difference
between the actual results and estimates are recognised in
the period in which the results materialise.

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment other than Land are
stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation /
amortisation. Cost comprises of the purchase price and
any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use.

(b) Land are stated at revalued amount i.e. fair value on
the date of revaluation less accumulated amortisation
subsequent to the date of revaluation.

(c) Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are
shown separately under Property, Plant and Equipment at
lower of net book value and net realisable value.

(d) Spares meeting the criteria of Property, Plant and
Equipment i.e. Spares expected to be used for a period of
more than twelve months are capitalised.

4. Expenditure incurred during Construction Period
In respect of new unit / major expansion of units, the
indirect expenditure incurred during construction period
up to the date of commencement of commercial
production, which is attributable to the construction of
the project, is capitalised on proportionate basis.

5. Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is recognised where it is probable that
the future economic benefits attributable to the asset will
flow to the Society and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. Such assets are stated at acquisition
cost less accumulated amortisation.

6. Impairment of Assets
At each Balance Sheet date an assessment is made

P —
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whether any indication exists that an asset / Cash
Generating Unit has been impaired. If any such indication
exists, an impairment loss i.e. the amount, by which the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, is provided in the books of account. Recoverable
amount is higher of the net selling price of assets and
value in use.

7. Investments

(a) Non-Current Investments are carried at cost. Provision
for diminution in the value of such investments is made to
recognise a decline, other than temporary in nature.

(b) Current Investments are valued at lower of cost and
fair value determined on an individual investment basis.

(c) Premium/Discount on acquisition of debt securities is
amortised/accreted over the period remaining to maturity.

8. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

(a) The cost in respect of various items of inventory is
computed as under:

(i) Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Construction
Materials, Loose Tools, Chemicals and Catalysts and
Stores and Spares at monthly weighted average cost.

(ii) Stock-in-Process at direct cost and an appropriate
portion of overheads.

(iii) Finished Goods:

¢ Manufactured Nitrogenous Fertilisers covered
under Group Concession Scheme at Annualised
Cost of Production at Plant after adjustment of
subsidy determined as per the Norms of the
Fertiliser Industry Coordination Committee (FICC).

¢ Manufactured Phosphatic Fertilisers at
Annualised Cost of Production at Plant after
adjustment of subsidy as Notified by the
Department of Fertilisers, Government of India
from time to time aligned with the likely Nutrient
Based Subsidy Rates for the relevant period.

e Manufactured Nano Fertilisers at Annualised
Cost of Production at Plant.

(iv) Stock-in-Trade:

« Imported Nitrogenous Fertilisers at procurement
cost determined on weighted average basis plus
direct expenses less reimbursement of handling
cost as fixed by the Government of India.
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AT BREbfe® Iavd — WIRd 37d 3meR W Felffd
WIS APTA & JIel T SNga, a2l YR IRBR o 3D
faPT gRT THY ¥ R 31T WieAS! T FHRISH BRd
gU, ¥ 3798 o foTu ST Tiveb diedl TR Hfedia! &
b AR

31 3cTal T Heich IR 37d ek R efRa @Rig
IPId WR fopa s/ &

(@) IR T T KIb-3-¢8 & Fadt ayell Ing 7o Bl Ry
MR B HHI IR H AT Tl g 7 I fshl v &g
312 A TTPIAI Bl FeTeh {3l ST &8l

(1) RN U R ST el o1 e aret A1 RRR €, 3% A
3AM P 3R R A a¥el TPT Jed R Jeifded a1 T/ §
dfes 319 A1 Hed | 31 fbefl Sl & gwra 1 aRetfara fasan
ST 5|

9. Yedg™ / aRkeited

() TUR, TIF U IRPR W GeAgRT BT YL, 39eb! TPt
SfieHTafe & 3MeR R d21 U1 A, 2013 I -1l 7 Afds
Ay & 3R e @ fAfdy I fasm e 81

(W) HUf, I Ud 3RBRI Bl 371 eI APTA &b 95% dIcb JodgTad
o ST &, STafc 3R FREATE 376 It 39nft sfiarafd # 100%
T JedgIRId Pl ST &1 310,000/~ A Pl APTA dlell YRafRT &
37frguT & a & quf ®u I gergifid s e 1

(3T) 31 / Soifaed fAuTeaT ATl ol 3! ddb-idl =Y | 3Tdhfeid 5 an|
&1 3UAP SHTaTafE & IR Uik HeglRid faT STTdT &1

() dofipd WIS P13 Aefdd Wbl SfigAad & gt @
HIRTRI f35T ST 81

() 31 gg R HTAUET YA BT Blga Ug R ot 318 YA Bl APTd Bl
g2 & 3rafd) & afenferd fosar star &1

(31) g2 B YA R A wa=1 &l Byt 318f=H, 2013 Y FFgR-11 H
e 3Pl Sfieafd ar gg &1 3@, s off &1 &, & 38R
HIRTRI fa5T ST 8

(®) 3 gRufoRl @l el Yy @Y & Ferar aRenfed fear
311?1'[%:

GIESC: AeaY 31afY a1 10 af, st BH
SCERICARIEEAN] 10 a9

PRI ARIR 399
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(37) g1 IRRIURY & O gl & ST god A% & den et
3T SiiaTafe g3 gRufy & i g1, 391 3uIPh Sfiaafa &

3IRIR HegTd faT SiTel 81

(1) O 1efidY Tt 518 St fopedl RAfSTe T am i & ey
39RINT 5T ST b & 3R s 1fafa 3wivT B Jurar €, 3%
Feifere gzl I AT RPN SiaTafe & 3 AR I dRe Jedelad
fopaT ST 81

10. ISR BT HIHIuT
oG I dd HI=IAT &1 3111 & 57d 39! 3217 A1 Ivd 81 31k g
T 81 b 2 IR o1 3mffes o urea gem

() HIeT I faishl

Reflst 31rcer & e 3R Wil & 3ATeR &R fSishl &t JI=ar df STreit
&, IR eifere eft srRa SR 37R o I 1 &RaidRd &l STid &
der AfAfd &1 A1d W 0T Pls gUrdT 07 T81 T ST A
AT I Jg1 8T &l

(%) Jar37i I T g
Jar3Tt F U IR DI el gal o AT FHSiia /a3 & 3R
TR YTV Y& B &I fafd) o= H1=1dr & Sl 81

(3T) YR IRBR I AT

HRA WRBR GRI IR R Fal- &l ST dlel! Aieds! st b HPId o
RIS WeIE] B 3T @PId P HRT AARAT ®Y I A=A o Sl &
fSrTeh! fergfef v 3 fore g &1 T &l

G EREIR]
(i) TTTIeT AT PV A HI=IAT & STl & 519 QT YT PR Bl
HfABR AT & 0|

(ii) SITST 31T B T AT A TR H=Ielm & Treht &, (e g
T e 3¢ 2N b I8 avgett 3 HTER WR A=A &1 STl 2l

(iif) ST 37d, HezRe) U=iTe, &3 3 WP TR SA1ST, BIell 48 Retdst
G4, IR HTcT 3 foTU ¥etd GTd, T Jedh/3c0Ta Qe & Feifdid ard dei
T3l At & Tt GTa TS HI=IT YT 3l & ST IRyt bl ST Tt fY
37 3ifcm argoT 61 3T AT 8l

(iv) ThY / SR AR A 311 B Ak b THI A=Al & STl 21

(v) ST edh o U1fe Iy & 3R I Bl I 31eiel b AR
3T (Tgp3TET) 3MER WR HI=IcT & STl &1



* Imported Phosphatic Fertilisers at procurement
cost determined on weighted average basis plus
direct expenses after adjustment of subsidy as
Notified by the Department of Fertilisers,
Government of India from time to time aligned
with the likely Nutrient Based Subsidy Rates for
the relevant period.

¢ Other Products at procurement cost determined
on weighted average basis.

(b) Net realisable value of Finished Goods and Stock - in -
Trade is determined at estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

(c) Stores and Spares, which are slow or non-moving are
valued at estimated realisable value based on technical
estimates to reflect the impact of obsolescence or other
diminution in value.

9. Depreciation / Amortisation

(a) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is
provided on Straight Line Method based on useful life and
in the manner prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies
Act, 2013.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated to the
extent of 95% of the original cost except temporary
structures which are depreciated to the extent of 100%
over the useful life and assets individually costing up to
¥ 10,000/-, are fully charged / depreciated in the year
of acquisition.

(c) Drones / Electric Three Wheelers are fully depreciated
over the technically assessed useful life of five years.

(d) Capitalised Spares are fully depreciated over their
respective useful life.

(e) Value of leasehold land, other than those acquired
under perpetual lease basis, is amortised over the period
of lease.

(f) Buildings constructed over Leasehold Land are
depreciated over the useful life as per Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013 or period of lease, whichever is less.

(9) Intangible assets are amortised on Straight Line
Method as under:

Licences Licence Period or 10 Years, whichever is less
Technical

Know-how 10 Years

Computer

Software 3 Years
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(h) The components of the main asset that are significant
in value and have different useful lives as compared to
main asset, are depreciated over their respective useful
lives.

(i) Machinery spares, which can be used only in
connection with an item of Plant and Machinery and use
thereof is expected to be irregular, are fully depreciated
over the remaining useful life of the related asset.

10. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it can be reliably
measured and is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Society.

(a) Sale of Goods

Sales are recognised on the basis of issue and acceptance
of Release Orders whereby all significant risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer and the
Society retains no effective control of the goods
transferred to a degree wusually associated with
the ownership.

(b) Revenue from Services

Revenue from services is recognised as and when the
service is performed based on agreements /
arrangements with the concerned parties.

(c) Subsidy from Government of India

Revenue Subsidy from Government of India allowable
under Concession Scheme with regard to Fertilisers is
recognised on a systematic basis to match with the
related costs that are intended to compensate.

(d) Other Income
(i) Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

(ii) Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis except for impaired investments, which s
recognised on realisation basis.

(iii) Insurance claims, arbitral awards, interest on any
delayed receipts, coal grade slippage claims, Railway
claims for finished goods, Customs and Excise claims and
claims on account of despatch money on shipments are
recognised when reasonable certainty exists with regard
to the amount to be realised and ultimate
collection thereof.

(iv) Income from scrap / salvage and waste material
is recognised when sold.

(v) License Fee is recognised in the year of receipt
and Royalty is recognised on accrual basis, in accordance

with the terms of relevant agreement.
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1. AR g i aa-aa

() fagelt ge1 A fosw a1u el & 31y 7 39 7 & yafaid fafma &R
W Reprs febart SiTdT & 51 T HieT g311 &Ml Sial Hiel &1 el fasa
ST &, T 39 IR §U I AT 81 Bl & g 81 faaror & A=y &
S &

(@) a9 & 37 1 57 faeeh e B Hifge A fAdem & faw A &l 8, 3%
aufd fafAmr @ R FUTdaRd fasa ST 81 39 R 30 81 aTat fafm
&R P AR P @ G g1 [Favor # for s7rar €1 fagelt ga1 & wefdia
R A7, 5 UaeRe aPd R Rl fpar /= &, 3% 3t
-3 Bl ARG Bl fafmar v R R s ST 21

(°T) BRaE Hgsel P Fdel H, BRAs VDSl A9 S IHY 394
IAIH 372/dT t9¢ I 3gsel B 37afY H BHLT Y AT HF b wY
afeNferd 35 ST 81 aufd de e & v 9 BRas el &1
aufel & A & IR RIS 35T ST &1 U BRas Al I Ig B
T AI-IGRUT A 30 AT AT &1 Bl 39 a9 Bl 377 AT 2 & &9
o Siretm & fore o 3ed el 81

12. AR B

2 37afe) b SR B oI, SR 1] R 3R 3TRAPI = i &,
Y & fAget @ / (811) BT FeRoT e I enfiret fasan ST &1
() e 37BN BT TTael- HT-IPBR 3T&H, 1961 b YIGe-I & ARG
fosar ST €, SR @) 391 doRieF 31aids UiiHe (21dve) &
e ot ot e B 3341 ST 2

(W) B AP 3T 3R i T & S “HY 3R 3dR” P BRUT
3 ARAFTA B P 3 BR &3 3R B B b 3R TR FefiRe fasan
STTT & 5 gofA-03 61 a2 des AfAfafd a1 v w9 & fefafd
U ST b &1 3TRARTA P IRIURT BT it 311 & ST ATl & 519
g 3 ®Y A AT S|k A g1 fob Afa § vafe & Ava o 3ueie
PN oI a5 31 HRAPI v aRUfId 1 IHr—Ifed fasan
ST b |

13. BUT PTd

F0T AP, e fassdt are uffufa & 31feurger an fAmfor 3 sier s
AT &, B 39 IRIURT B AP &S w9 H gshicpd B S &1 v
Iy gRIIfY a8 gl & SR 339 3fBd 3T & Al iR g |
e T TAT &1 31 T K0T APl &bt 3 31afd B 7 & w9 &
YT & ST & SR 3 =1 Y STl &1

14. AR &

() 3TcTdbIfcias BHATY ety

HHATRAY P! ST ST aTel 3eTbBIfeids ol &l 39 olRdT Iy & oy 3R
&I f3aRuT &, 517 Hed FaT1¢ Y& 1 Siehl &, fa1 8¢ & 98 b ®y
H 13 & St 21

81

(@) AT 3WRId o

FHaIRE I 3ueH [ A 3R ufds [ dGemr affa &
R e AT &, fSHeeT faadiyor IfRfd gri fasan mar & 3R
fSTasT TaTe geies geet & Aeam a5 STaT 81

(i) A I 3uar A1 & 3idrid affic &1 adH Jed auid R
SHifepes Hewrias & 3R W iR fbar ST &1 39 Jobed el &
I i1 IRAYFTT BT 3R Jod TeTehs, Fdd afdc & w4 H J=Idl
EEIGIE

(ii) 9=y fAfd 3R wRaRe Yo A & Ifafa gr f5ar =
3191 g B FY F HT=IAT Ud BT & 3R 39 o1 37K gif [Jaror
TR f3T ST 81

(iii) Tfe o=y FAfS gee &b Fa2l 3 g gfder™ sfgRd el @
A &, Y 59 3R B fel b e A o B &1 et o ot
& I BT Juld R BT U diHifebep HeichT I HTER R A=A &
STTet &1

(37) AR PI Eefeprieids e

2 TBAIRUT / &IfTRe IR, A AT [RBR A2 AaTFghy W
BRI AT Y Bl AT Bl aufd W b a0 dHifbed Jedi &
3R TR T & ST 81

(a1) FHifdpes edic I 399 @ 31K &1
i Heich-1 A 3 81 alet a1 3R &I &1 o 31K g1 fdavor
H A1yl < STt 21

15. WIGeM, Rifes Saant 3ik urife aReafaai
() TG 37 SI137 o o HI=IdT Ut &R & fS-apT 37Tdhet it
3TH & 3TER TR a1 571 Teba €, A

(i) AAfY TR 37 g1 & BRUT I B P18 alfded HISG &;

(ii) O 21 & fAueT & farw 3mfefes o aTer Samet & varg &bt
T &1, T

(iii) aTfcd BT 31FA BT [Ty AT 11T ST HebelT &l

() AT T B FAEfafad Al § Heac 1Rt [ ST &:

(i) for1d e I 3799 gdqH g, 319 I8 I9Ta-T A 8 6 39%
fAuer 3 fore 3nfefe dwnert o1 varg 31a9as gl

(i) T3 e1fica, 31 de b fAuer & fav Jame & yarg &
TG 31 B 7 8l



11. Foreign Currency Transactions

(a) Foreign Currency transactions are initially recorded at
the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction. On settlement of transactions, the realised
gains and losses on foreign exchange transactions are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Foreign currency monetary items remaining unsettled
at the end of the year are translated at year-end exchange
rate. The exchange rate differences arising thereon are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Non-monetary items, which are carried at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

(c) In respect of forward contracts, premium or discount
arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is
amortised as an expense or income over the period of the
contract. Forward contracts remaining unsettled at the
end of the year are reported at year-end exchange rate.
Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of
forward exchange contracts is recognised as income or
expense in the year, in which such profit or loss arises.

12. Taxes on Income

Tax expense for the period, comprising Current Tax and
Deferred Tax is included in determining the Net Profit /
(Loss) for the year.

(a) Provision for Current Income Tax is made in
accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961
after considering the applicable Double Taxation
Avoidance Agreement provisions.

(b) Deferred Tax resulting from “timing differences”
between taxable income and accounting income is
determined by using the tax rates and the tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the
Balance Sheet date. Deferred Tax assets are carried
forward to the extent it is reasonably / virtually certain
that future taxable profit will be available, against which
such Deferred Tax assets can be realised.

13. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or
construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of
cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that
necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready
for intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised
as an expense in the period, in which they are incurred.

14. Employee Benefits
(a) Short Term Employee Benefits.

Short Term Employee Benefits are recognised as an
expense on an undiscounted basis in the Statement of

P —
2024-2025

Profit and Loss of the year, in which the related service
is rendered.

(b) Post Employment Benefits

The Employees’ Gratuity Fund Scheme and Provident
Fund Scheme are the Society’s defined benefit plans,
which are funded by the Society and are managed by
separate Trusts.

(i) The present value of Society’s obligations under
Gratuity Scheme is determined on the basis of actuarial
valuation at the year end and the fair value of plan assets
is reduced from the gross obligations under Gratuity
Scheme, to recognise the obligation on net basis.

(ii) The contribution to Provident Fund and Family
Pension Scheme is recognised as expense and is charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) The Society has an obligation to make good the
shortfall, if any, between the return from the investments
of Provident Fund Trust and the notified interest rates.
Liability, on account of such shortfall, if any, is recognised
on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out at the
year end.

(c) Long Term Employee Benefits

The liability for Leave Encashment / Compensated
Absences, Long Service Award and expenses on Travel to
Hometown on Superannuation is recognised on the basis
of an actuarial valuation carried out at the year end.

(d) Gains and losses arising out of actuarial valuation

are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

15. Provisions, Liabilities &

Contingent Assets

(a) Provisions are recognised for liabilities that can be

measured by using a substantial degree of estimation, if:
(i) The Society has a present obligation as a result of

a past event;

Contingent

(ii) A probable outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is expected to settle the
obligation; and

(iii) the amount of the obligation can be
reliably estimated.

(b) Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

(i) A present obligation arising from a past event
when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation.
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18. ITATGfY 31 / &=

AT & T 3177 / I Bl 7, ST A (FeIg™ bl Blgas)
I HFe! 5 22,00,000/- 3 318 61 &, 3% 9t ay &l 3 / I &b
TG & T AT 81

19. qd-y&d &

I A & T 50,000/- A P oFF 34T a9 oy 7 o sirar @
5% I8 =13 fasar SR 8l
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(ii) A possible obligation, unless the probability of
outflow in settlement is remote.

(c) Contingent assets are neither recognised nor
disclosed in the financial statements.

16. Operating Leases

Assets acquired on lease wherein a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessors are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals
paid for such leases are recognised as an expense on
straight line basis over the term of lease.

17. Catalysts

Catalysts and Resins issued subsequent to
Commissioning of the Plants are charged to revenue
over their estimated useful lives, as technically assessed.

18. Prior Period Income / Expenditure

Income / Expenditure items relating to prior period(s)
not exceeding ¥ 2,00,000/- each except depreciation is
treated as Income / Expenditure for the current year.

19. Pre-Paid Expenses
Expenditure up to ¥ 50,000/~ in each case is accounted
for in the year, in which the same is incurred.
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31T, 2025 165 BT Joter-UsT
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2025

‘u .....................................................................................................
(X in Crore)
Notes As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
1. s aur gane I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) R g H Afdi (1) Shareholders’' Funds
() IR Ygsh (a) Share Capital 1
(W) 3R vd 31y (b) Reserves and Surplus 2 28,454.37 25,775.24
(2) TR-1q SFaTe (2) Non-Current Liabilities
(%) drafafde 38R (a) Long Term Borrowings 3 455.00
(@) 3R B 2710 (Figel) (b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 4 444.49
(1) 37 Srerfafiies ST (c) Other Long Term Liabilities 5 27.07
(@) Satafie waem (d) Long Term Provisions 6 1,226.63 449.61 1,376.17
(3) AT TATY (3) Current Liabilities
() 3eUTafdes 3R (a) Short Term Borrowings 7 3,655.68 6,689.12
(@) WA A TR AT (b) Trade Payables 8 2,898.41 2,556.39
(31) 373 =ITe] SIATY (c) Other Current Liabilities 9 1,338.18 1,330.05
() HeTaRAS FaEH (d) Short Term Provisions 10 676.76 8,569.03 706.33  11,281.89
T TOTAL 38,250.03 38,433.30
Il. R Il. ASSETS
(1) TR-arq ufvet (1) Non-Current Assets
(F) g, T T 3UGBY (a) Property, Plant and Equipment
37 3mef o and Intangible Assets
(i) TR, T 9 ITRBY (i) Property, Plant and Equipment 11 15,311.54 14,559.65
(ii) 37t aRTeafer (i) Intangible Assets 12 12.88 18.06
(iii) gatPTd =] fAmior S (iii) Capital Work-in-Progress 13 1,290.86 1,335.52
(@) R-aeg FAaer (b) Non Current Investments 14 3,047.38 3,841.32
(1) rafafde Hor g 3ifm (c) Long Term Loans and Advances 15 342.24 452.54
(=) mﬁ?-mqtrhﬂmﬁw (d) Other Non Current Assets 16 10.85 20,015.75 10.82 20,217.91
(2) a1 uRkEmfi (2) Current Assets
() =reg fFAaer (a) Current Investments 17 700.12 194.49
(@) AT (b) Inventories 18 4,121.61 4,106.22
(37T) 9T @1 arefY IR AfAT (c) Trade Receivables 19 4,174.04 6,866.92
(5) e A JBT & AW (d) Cash and Bank Balances 20 5,209.35 3,143.06
(5) 3TcaTafiE H1 g 3BT (e) Short Term Loans and Advances 21 198.49 170.92
(<7) 312 =g TR (f) Other Current Assets 22 3,830.67  18,234.28 3,733.78  18,215.39
AP TOTAL 38,250.03 38,433.30
3= fewur Other Notes 30
o i d2m 13 30 a6 $ foour fa g Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
RN T 31 AT & 1 to 30 form an integral part of the

(Rakesh Kapur)
Joint Managing Director

Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

(U. S. Awasthi)
Managing Director

& Finance Director

For ASC & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 011863 N

For G. S. Mathur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 008744 N

As per our report of even date

For S. K. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000478 N

For S. Mann & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000075 N

(Suraj Prasad Sharma) (Rajiv Kumar Wadhawan) (Subhash Chander Mann) (Rohit Mehta)
Partner Partner Partner Partner
M. No. 096806 M. No. 091007 M. No. 080500 M. No. 091382

Place: New Delhi.
Dated: April 25, 2025.
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For J. C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111 N

(Rajesh Sethi)
Partner
M. No. 085669



31 T, 2025 Tl HATA Y b foIC AT g lfel fagaor
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

P —
2024-2025

(X in Crore)
Notes Year Ended 31.03.2025 Year Ended 31.03.2024
l. 3mg I. Income
e I T 37 Revenue from Operations 23 41,243.88 39,474.04
I3 Other Income 24 2,412.70 3,187.39
P AT Total Income 43,656.58 42,661.43
. =19 Il. Expenses
() ud & 7S IR B AP (a) Cost of Materials Consumed 25 31,362.56 30,066.12
(@) TP-g7-¢8 I &g (b) Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 2,002.33 1,937.70
(°T) TRIR AT, Th-54-28 (c) Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, 26 (96.51) 1,136.46
3R Tib-g7-9 § aRad= Stock-in-Trade and Stock-in-Process
(F) SHA A (d) Employee Benefits Expense 27 1,669.21 1,590.49
() fag arma (e) Finance Costs 28 419.48 453.86
(ﬂ)waﬂwﬁsﬁaﬁm (f) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 875.41 759.15
(®) 3= (g) Other Expenses 29 3,613.05 3,483.16
A Ig Total Expenses 39,845.53 39,426.94
11l EF\”HHT‘T (-1 lll. Profit before Tax (I - 1) 3,811.05 3,234.49
IV. &= daeht e IV. Tax Expense
() AT PR (a) Current Tax 986.00 848.50
() IRABT IR (b) Deferred Tax 10.06 (47.52)
(1) frse aui & forw (c) For Earlier Years (7.97) 988.09 (9.06) 791.92
V. &-9Y1d & (1l - IV) V. Profit after Tax (lll - IV) 2,822.96 2,442.57
T BT 3eR0T: Profit transferred to:
AT TR AT Dividend Equalisation Fund 500.00
3G Ud 31a0vaT fAsRT By Product and Infrastructure Development Fund 1,250.00 500.00 1,000.00
TR AP Hiredlst 3w, Net Profit as per Multi State 1,572.96 1,442.57
2002 & 3R fAact @ Cooperative Societies Act, 2002
3 fewfori Other notes 30
et a1 Refipd Afd IR 3T (3) (Jieof fewoft 30.17) Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (%) 4,483 3,969

Aeayul e Hifaat dar fwftri 1 9 30 a% fadl
faaRoi &1 310 wT &

(Rakesh Kapur)
Joint Managing Director

(Refer Note 30.17)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 1 to 30 form an
integral part of the Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

& Finance Director

For ASC & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 011863 N

(Suraj Prasad Sharma)
Partner
M. No. 096806

Place: New Delhi.
Dated: April 25, 2025.

For G. S. Mathur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 008744 N

(Rajiv Kumar Wadhawan)
Partner
M. No. 091007

As per our report of even date

For S. Mann & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000075 N

(Subhash Chander Mann)
Partner
M. No. 080500

(U. S. Awasthi)
Managing Director

(Rohit Mehta)
Partner
M. No. 091382

For S. K. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000478 N

For J. C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111 N

(Rajesh Sethi)
Partner
M. No. 085669
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR
THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Year ended
31.03.2025

(P) vt ifafafer & THd) 1 yarg:

& qd A

59 forv wARisT:
TeIE Ud aRveied 21
K]
EEREI
AT & 3
TIRT / ARSI 317
T2 @l H 31T T8 WU, T4 vd IIRBY
339l < faht & ored AT
R-a1e] 3N &Y faeht w &1

U, T vd ITRG ol foiehl/Fder /e
& folU W T W &1 (Fae)

39 gU d e Uil/arell o felu Fraer
9 et TS ATV / STaeT
Frfefie gt & ufvad= & qd s ar

Frffie 4t & uRadi & fore FomiisT:
AR YT A Ao § gfg/(@h)
Srefafde wraer § gig/ (@)
cqTafdes wraerHl § gig/(BH)

3 9e a3 A g/ ()

31 Srefafde Saansh § gig/ (@)
IR WIfe Ay afer & et/ (af )
Arergfa & wH/(afE)

Srafaflie i vd 3 & /(afg)
3ieaTafdes il ud Y & /()
31 1w  wrt/(afg)

311 R-ae] wRRRd & oY/ (afg)

e & gfa / (7 7geh) THdl

T8 BRI T YT (Tt B FAiaret 1f fg)

TN e Al & sierem

FEBRI GaT, GAATOT vd faerT e & stergH

Tgopr! ey (A & sierer / (J wife)
FERKAR ERIR)

yaTer Tfafafdi & / (7 wges) fad T5d) 9a18 ()
(@) A nfafafd & Tt &1 vare
3R Yathra Rt T bt (3die) / fasht & i w1y (Fae)
e/ IR-are] A B (ERYG) / faieht I e 17 (e

BRI / edPit TReA3T Bl H01 Ud 1
(YTAH / 91T & a1 fae)

T cTier

T TSt

fRder sfafafert & / (& wyeh) faet T vare (@)

(A) Cash Flow from Operating Activities:

(B) Cash Flow from Investing Activities:

Profit Before Tax 3,811.05

Adjustment for:

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 875.41

Interest Expense 419.48

Interest Income (428.50)

Dividend Income (1,568.58)

Amount charged off / adjusted 1.96

Property, Plant and Equipment written-off 48.98

Profit from Sale of Investments (252.28)

Loss on Sale of Non-Current Investments 75.59

Loss on Sale/Disposal/Held for Disposal of Property, 55.81

Plant and Equipment (Net)

Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts / Claims 35.58

Liabilities / Provisions written back (80.21) (816.76)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 2,994.29

Adjustment for changes in Working Capital :

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 342.02
Increase/(Decrease) in Long-Term Provisions 32.87
Increase/(Decrease) in Short-Term Provisions (11.41)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 101.65
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Long-Term Liabilities 17.53
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables 2,692.88
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories (15.39)
Decrease/(Increase) in Long-Term Loans and Advances 0.30
Decrease/(Increase) in Short-Term Loans and Advances 1.01
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets 77.87

Decrease/(Increase) in Other Non-Current Assets (0.03) 3,239.30
Cash Generated from / (used in) Operations 6,233.59

Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refunds) (998.49)
Payment towards Cooperative Education Fund (14.43)

Payment towards Cooperative Rehabilitation, (1.00)
Reconstruction and Development Fund

Contribution to / (from) Cooperative Development Fund 0.17

Donations Paid (2.60) (1,016.35)

Net Cash flow from / (used in) Operating Activities (A) 5,217.24

(Purchase of) / Proceeds from Property, (1,480.99)
Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets and
Capital Work-in-Progress (Net)

(Purchase) / Proceeds from Current / 465.00
Non-Current Investments (Net)

Loans and Advances to Subsidiary and (119.84)
Associates (Net of Repayments)

Dividend Received 1,508.15
Interest Received 276.63

Net Cash flow from / (used in)
Investing Activities (B)
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(% in Crore)
Year ended
31.03.2024

3,234.49

759.15
453.86

(319.61)

(1,551.23)
7.46
58.51

6.09
(330.68) (914.23)

2,320.26

(252.35)
8.63
20.99
(28.03)
0.54
1,030.90
1,018.06
(3.65)
12.08
(525.09)

043 1,282.51

3,602.77

(682.85)
(10.53)

0.15
(0.40) (693.63)

2,909.14
(2,005.10)
(15.00)
8.75
1,465.43
288.50
(257.42)




3191, 2025 St HA I b oIt slaba! TdTg g6l faaoT, (ST91)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025(CONTD.)

P —
2024-2025

(X in Crore)
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
@m faeita fafafere & Fod &1 vare (C) Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
AR G5T (Fae) 1 5 / (Feamac) (Repatriation) / Issue of Share Capital (Net) (1.07) 17.48
Safafdie 3urt & fef afy &1 (9F: YPTeT) (Repayment of) Long-Term Borrowings (290.00) (255.00)
Heurafdes 3R A el 1 (Fae) &1/ (T Jra) Proceeds from / (Repayment of) (2,953.44) (2,371.26)
Short-Term Borrowings (Net)
TS T YPIAH Interest Paid (432.79) (434.74)
ST AR TR AT BT IPTAA Dividend Paid on Equity Shares (122.60) (122.53)
fawita wfafafdri & / (& wyh) Fae Fed) warg (1) Net Cash flow from / (used in) Financing Activities (C) (3,799.90) (3,166.05)
§3+E+7r) % IR 7PE Ud 35 A9 Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and 2,066.29 (514.33)
faa qfg / (@) Bank Balances (A+B+C)
T & 377191 & Tebe U4 3 9N Cash and Bank Balances as at the beginning of the year 3,143.06 3,657.39
T & 3id & Tpg vd o A Cash and Bank Balances as at the close of the year 5,209.35 3,143.06
TPe Ud dobl & AN & Teh Components of Cash and Bank Balances
TebE 3R HHGeS: Cash and Cash Equivalents:
- gl & 9 - Balances with Banks
-inq@]ﬁ - Current Accounts 25.13 53.48
- TR A HH B qgrrqﬁqaamaﬁﬁ T AT - Deposits with original maturity less than three months 200.00 0.00
- AP ST I - Remittance-in-Transit 2.08 11.85
- U B A - Cash-in-Hand 0.25 0.35
317 AW Other Balances:
RS fafd A i 77 I 31 @l aRg 7 - Deposits with original maturity more than three months 4,974.43 3,069.77
B I YT TRUGIT dTel! ST I (i) but less than twelve months from reporting date (i)
- TP @A H A9 A - Balance in Escrow Account 6.20 6.22
- 379 i @ - Unpaid Dividend Accounts 1.26 1.39
Pl b vd Il H A9 Total Cash and Bank Balances 5,209.35 3,143.06
fewofk Note:

(i) Fel relTe feraR0T 2B et H1Teh - 3 - " Were fareRur & Ferfeet ey fafey ept 3udiiot abed gu
IR fema T 1

(ii) % 18.93 T8 (Rrset af 7 18.75 F315) i Arafe 37w 1A wfyfel & w9 & v H T 21
(iii) TRPY FTT 2T 1A e e & A 1Y 3T & fAv 3uee TE &1

(i) The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the 'Indirect Method' set out in
Accounting Standard - 3 - "Cash Flow Statement".

(ii) Fixed Deposits of ¥ 18.93 crore (Previous Year % 18.75 crore) provided as security.

(iii) Balance in Escrow Account and Unpaid Dividend Accounts are not available for
use.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

(Rakesh Kapur)
Joint Managing Director
& Finance Director

(U. S. Awasthi)
Managing Director

As per our report of even date

For G. S. Mathur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 008744 N

For ASC & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 011863 N

For S. Mann & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000075 N

For J. C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111 N

For S. K. Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000478 N

(Suraj Prasad Sharma) (Rajiv Kumar Wadhawan) (Subhash Chander Mann) (Rohit Mehta) (Rajesh Sethi)
Partner Partner Partner Partner Partner
M. No. 096806 M. No. 091007 M. No. 080500 M. No. 091382 M. No. 085669

Place: New Delhi.
Dated: April 25, 2025.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

feagor 1 - SR Ysi
NOTE 1- SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31.03.2025

(X in Crore)
As at 31.03.2024

wiftrga: Authorised:
% 1,00,000/- ¥ & 90,000 (90,000) st RR 90,000 (90,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 1,00,000/- each 900.00 900.00
% 10,000/- Y& & 50,000 (50,000) St dRR 50,000 (50,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10,000/- each 50.00 50.00
% 1,000/- ¥ & 5,00,000 (5,00,000) Sfaadt AR 5,00,000 (5,00,000) Equity Shares of % 1,000/- each 50.00 50.00
qnT TOTAL 1,000.00 1,000.00
oY, Sifires auT vew: Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up:
FEPI WA gRT &TRd % 1,00,000/- T & 54,424 54,424 (54,527) Equity Shares of ¥ 1,00,000/- each, 545.27
(54,527) ot view sfaadt dRR fully paid-up held by Cooperative Societies :
HeebR1 ARl gRT &R ¥ 10,000/- Geeh b 49,773 49,773 (49,812)Equity Shares of Z 10,000/ each, fully 49,81
(49,812) guf & sfaadt R paid-up held by Cooperative Societies :
DRI AR GRT £ 7 1,000/~ Fedd & 3,50,518 3,50,518 (3,50,545) Equity Shares of ¥ 1,000/- each,
A . s 35.05
(3,50,545) quf & sfFadh =R fully paid-up, held by Cooperative Societies
anr TOTAL 630.13
PISH § 3 71 31ipe fIwe oy & &1 Figures in brackets relate to previous year.
N e
BRI 914 Bl fdietiel
RECONCILIATION OF SHARES OUTSTANDING:
(R in Crore)
As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
% 1,00,000/- W@ & gfpdl AR Equity Shares of  1,00,000/- each
T & 3RY & FHRT IR Shares Outstanding at the beginning of the year 54,527 53,050 530.50
S13: o % R ST R Add: Shares issued during the year - 3,127 31.27
HeTV: 9 & SR A MR Less: Shares redeemed during the year 103 1,650 16.50
Y & 310 H SHRT AR Shares Outstanding at the end of the year 54,424 54,527 545.27
% 10,000/- TS & 3fhdl I Equity Shares of Z 10,000/- each
TY & IR & THRIT MR Shares Outstanding at the beginning of the year 49,812 47,271 47.27
S0E: I & R IR KR Add: Shares issued during the year 5 2,809 2.81
HeTY: T & SR IR RR Less: Shares redeemed during the year 44 268 0.27
T & 311 H SHRT AR Shares Outstanding at the end of the year 49,773 49,812 49.81
z 1,000/- U@ & 3ipdl IR Equity Shares of  1,000/- each
T & 3R & gHrT IR Shares Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,50,545 3,48,769 34.88
S2: o & R ST R Add: Shares issued during the year 90 1,825 0.18
HeTe: 3 & SR 3R R Less: Shares redeemed during the year 117 49 0.00
Y P 3 H IHIT NR Shares Outstanding at the end of the year 3,50,518 3,50,545 35.05

¥1,000/- YA & 366 Sfaad] 2RIT, T10,000/- TAH & 568 Sfaact R d131,00,000/-
A & 4,153 S AR B gor-19 Y A A S v 1 dra ot 6 379 F R

3R / STed BT TR 1

89

366 Equity Shares of % 1,000/- each; 568 Equity Shares of ¥ 10,000/- each and
4,153 Equity Shares of % 1,00,000 each have been redeemed / forfeited during

a period of five years immediately preceeding the Balance Sheet date.



Notes forming part of the financial statements

feaor 2 - ITRfeIa Td A fefert

NOTE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS

P ——
2024-2025

3mfea fAfyr @ffa & sufraw
56(i) & FTAR)

7 3 T B 9

2. o ¥ for RfeH

af & =1 A9

TEHI gatH, gAfamr 3k e A
(afafa & 39fH 56(iii) F 3TAR)

av & AR A AY

S: 39 & fore ffiem

TeTC: T & SR foaT ITRIT WPTA

a4 &3 A Iy

Rifwanil & v smfaqa fRf
(wfafa & 3ufaw 56(v) & HTAR)
¥ & IRUF Ay

S13: o & faw RfEsm

qi b A H AN

g1 Boxol fAfY F v RfAa
9§ & IRU F Iy

SE: a9 & fow RfFEeH
S I H Ay

TR fapr i
9§ & IRU F Iy
¥ & SR aRaeT
i b A H AN

A3 3ar-TemE fAfY

¥ H IRUF AY

HeTe: Y & SR I 3Rf&d A & 3iaRa afr
i H3iad Iy

AT FHTHIBROT fAfe

¥ F IRU F Ay

v & R uRaef

i H3iad Iy

391E 317 g faew AfY

¥ & IRT T AW

9 & SR aRae

HeTe: Y & SR I 3Rf&d A & 3iaRa afr
i S 3iad Iy

F & fav R4 A

i & IRT F Ay

She: 98 & faw RAfRdsm

HeTe: Y & R 39PT &1 7S 7A

i H3iad Iy

I 3R A

T & RUH A

HeTU: TY & R T 3RfAd
fAf & siafa wif

9§ & 3id & 9y

Reserve Fund (As per Bye-Law 56(i)
of the Society)

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Appropriation for the year
Balance as at the end of the year

Co-operative Rehabilitation, Reconstruction and

Development Fund (As per Bye-Law 56(iii) of the Society)

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Appropriation for the year

Less: Payment made during the year
Balance as at the end of the year

Reserve Fund for Contingency

(As per Bye-Law 56(v) of the Society)
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Appropriation for the year
Balance as at the end of the year

Reserve for Cooperative Welfare Fund
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Appropriation for the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Cooperative Development Fund
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Addition during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Investment Fluctuation Fund

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Less: Transferred to General Reserve during the year
Balance as at the end of the year

Dividend Equalisation Fund

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Addition during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Product and Infrastructure Development Fund
Balance as at the beginning of the year

Addition during the year

Less:Transferred to General Reserve during the year
Balance as at the end of the year

Reserve for Donations

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Appropriation for the year

Less: Amount utilised during the year
Balance as at the end of the year

Revaluation Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Less: Transferred to General Reserve
during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

As at 31.03.2025

3,656.79
393.24
4,050.03

1,011.84

1,169.14

3,990.00
245.00
3,745.00

4,250.00

4,750.00

1265.00

6,003.19
40.25

5,962.94

(R in Crore)
As at 31.03.2024

3,296.15

360.64
3,656.79

1.00
1.00

867.58

144.26
1,011.84

5.38
5.38

9.36

0.15
9.51

3,990.00
3,990.00

3,750.00

500.00
4,250.00

500.00

500.00

160.00
840.00

4.48

1.00

0.40
5.08

6,043.48

40.29
6,003.19
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feuror2 - HARfEaa vd AR ™[Rt G

NOTE 2: RESERVES AND SURPLUS (CONTD.)

As at 31.03.2025

(R in Crore)
As at 31.03.2024

5,249.72
877.88
40.25
245.00
325.00

6,737.85

122.60
1,672.96

125.81
27,825.31

As at 31.03.2025

A= ARfeE Ay General Reserve
¥ F I Ay Balance as at the beginning of the year
NS ¥ & farw fafism Add: Appropriation for the year
e 79 & R wIie JRfad A & wriaRa Add: Transferred from Revaluation Reserve for the year
S Y & SR 391 3AR-gera (Afd J miaRka Add: Transferred from Investment Fluctuation Fund for the year
NS 3G UG 3R sy e vmiaid Add: Transferred from Product and Infrastructure
Development Fund
¥ & A AW Balance as at the end of the year
3ifer2y Surplus
98 P IRV H A9 Balance as at the beginning of the year
EiE3 TEHR! ARATedist ifafam, Add: Net Profit as per Multi State Cooperative
2002 & 3HR Ade o Societies Act, 2002
TeTe: e Less: Appropriations:
- 3IRfAY S (WFAf 3 30 56(i) & 3F79R) - Reserve Fund (As per Bye-Law 56(i)
of the Society)
- eSB! e A & siereH & fore yraem - Provision for Contribution to Cooperative
(WM & 39T 56(ii) P 3ER) Education Fund (As per Bye-Law 56(ii) of the Society)
- TEHT gAan, T 3R e - Provision for Contribution to Co-operative
(SR & 30T 56(jii) P 3ER) Rehabilitation, Reconstruction and Development
Fund (As per Bye-Law 56(iii) of the Society)
- INifYBanh & foe swfad R - Reserve Fund for Contingency
(RAAfel P 3 56(v) & 3IR) (As per Bye-Law 56(v) of the Society)
- STEBRI oo (A - Cooperative Welfare Fund
- g & fore 3mRfad fAfY - Reserve for Donations
- I BT 9T - Dividend Payment
- I AR A - General Reserve
af & o W Ay Balance as at the end of the year
anT TOTAL
feugor 3 - Saiafies seor
NOTE 3: LONG TERM BORROWINGS
IRfEra Unsecured
IS 0T - It Term Loans - From Banks
T § HDFC Bank
HeTC: et 371 F 38R Bl JaHH FRuFIdl Less : Current Maturities of LongTerm Borrowings
TR S HDFC Bank
T wal 31afd & 3R P A uRuaddr Less : Current Maturities of LongTerm Borrowings

(30.06.2025 & 31.03.2026 A ¥52.50 IS &I AR faedl & d2m
30.06.2026 I 25.03.2027 T ¥61.25 FRI8 I R el § TTPTAH)

T - 3RférE, @IS IUR

(Repayment in four instalments each of % 52.50 crore
from 30.06.2025 to 31.03.2026 and % 61.25 crore from
30.06.2026 to 25.03.27)

Total - Unsecured, Long Term Borrowings

245.00

T

TOTAL

245.00

91

4,250.79
798.64
40.29

160.00

5,249.72

122.53
1,442.57

360.64

14.43

1.00

144.26

1.00

122.53

798.64
122.60

25,145.11

(X in Crore)
As at 31.03.2024

150.00

150.00 -

595.00

140.00 455.00
455.00
455.00



Notes forming part of the financial statements

feuor 4 - JTTFIfSIa BT TATE (Piae)

NOTE 4: DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

\TH
ANNUAL REPORT

2024-2025

(X in Crore)
As at 31.03.2024

As at 31.03.2025

SMTRIFTT HR Tgar
e / BUHfth
NT - TR B3 Tgar

Smeufird R ufvamafat

T el 3 fo wmae

Tfeer IR wftE/grat 3 e yraem
3=

T - YR Byt

Deferred Tax Liability

Depreciation / Amortisation 705.80

Total - Deferred Tax Liability
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for Doubtful Trade Receivables / Claims
Others

Total - Deferred Tax Assets

SRR F= 3gaTy - (Frae)

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

ﬁ@mw-zz"mwﬁamﬁw%g‘uﬂ,
a‘[‘q.

(Fae) % g8 3G (T ¥ 747.52 s &1 HH))

¥ ¥%10.06 T8 6 3RAFA B &TAT
feRur & 3f3e fpan T 81

In accordance with Accounting Standard - 22 “Accounting for Taxes on Income”,
the increase in Deferred Tax Liability (Net) of ¥ 10.06 crore (Previous Year ¥ 47.52
crore decrease), for the year, has been debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

feaor 5 - e Saiafties gTamn
NOTE 5: OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
AT ST/ &R A Security Deposits / Retention Money 26.99
3 Others 0.08
T TOTAL
feuoT 6 - Saiafties qrawrer
NOTE 6: LONG TERM PROVISIONS
................................................................................ e
As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
e 3 emil % foe waem Provision for Employee Benefits 449.61
qnT TOTAL
fewor B
7 - JAATdEdb 2801
NOTE 7: SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
....................................................................................... ( in Crore)
As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
MW Secured
W'WWWWW Loans Repayable on Demand
CER] From Banks
SAREA Cash Credit 404.12
3‘% g %@*;T I Short Term Loans 800.00
(@, M o= , 3T W'_ W (The above are secured by pari-passu charge by
E’JTEFR‘;IT@?JT LRSS ﬁ?mﬂa RARIEE Hypothecation of Raw Materials, Stores and Spares, Semi
R B SHePTd T G T AT & e 3 O Finished Goods, Finished Goods, Trade Receivables,
dereh R gu A gRwuf) Subsidy Receivables and other movable assets)
3Rfera Unsecured
Erok) From Banks
Heqrdfeie BT Short Term Loans 3,250.00 5,195.00
SrafafRe o @1 arg ulusa Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings
37afS o1 - St F (IRfaA) Term Loan - From Banks (Unsecured)
TG d HDFC Bank 210.00 290.00
qhT TOTAL 3,655.68 6,689.12
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feaaor 8 - Saifies Iare
NOTE 8: TRADE PAYABLES

(X in Crore)
As at 31.03.2024

As at 31.03.2025

MRS GIATC: Trade Payables :
- g 31X o7 Jewt & Fapr - Outstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises 84.86 84.89
- g 31X o7g Jewt & 3HfARTh ATaRI & TP T - Outstanding dues of creditors other than

Micro and Small enterprises 2,813.55 2,471.50
TR TOTAL 2,898.41

(87, o7g 31 ez Iz fa 1AM, 2006 3 T8 FepcIeuT & Heifdd femult weer 30.18 38)

(Refer Note No. 30.18 related to disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006)

feaaor 9 - 3eT T TTE

NOTE 9: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(X in Crore)
As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
U1 R Yrgd <1 fobg 5 Interest accrued but not due on Loans 33.99
BTN & el 3 foTe T dg Afri Employee Benefits Payable 397.47
e | 310 Advance from Customers 91.42
eRYER NI / STHHA f / wfcrefee iy Eamest Money / Security Deposits / Retention Money 229.33
3R g P el Unclaimed Dividend 2.71
3T 3 R Other Payables :
- Wifaferds SFame - Statutory Dues 270.17
— Tl 3aRgIR - Book Overdraft -
-1 - Others 568.12 304.96 575.13
anT TOTAL 1,338.18
feTqoT 10 - JTeuTatties grateT
NOTE 10: SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
.................................................................................... e
As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
Tl 3 el & foe g Provision for Employee Benefits 500.34
FRIE F folT TG (B T HI e 17 & a16) Provision for Taxation (Net of Taxes Paid) 191.51
3 G Other Provisions :
- bR e fAfd & foe waem - Provision for Cooperative Education Fund 14.43
- eI THar, G0 3R fasr fAE & fore sraem - Provision for Cooperative Rehabilitation,
Reconstruction and Development Fund -
- Y 371831 & fore e - Provision for Land Compensation 0.05 14.48
R TOTAL 706.33
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feuqoT 11 - Haf, FT AATITEHR

NOTE 11: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

P —
2024-&93§)

(X in Crore)

Particulars Freehold Leasehold Building  Building Township / Road, Culvert & Temporary  Plant, Machin-  Furniture &  Office Vehicle & Mo-  Rolling Stock Railway Liquid Assets Total
o Land Land Office Factory Residential Other Facility Structure ery & Other Fixtures Equip-  bile Equipment & Locomotive Siding Cargo Held for kol
iafa  way® ko] aFT Premises 5o, Yo vd e wear Equipment R v ment AEATE AEZe Aol i td Jetty Disposal
el fy IR SR e/ 3 Jfaeme W, i v fpfén 39T ff@s  FweR®
R TR 3T 3R] 3YEHROT s g o
it
Gross Block:
Tl AD:
As at 01.04.2023 3,282.23 3,329.54 230.80 1,082.06 478.76 227.88 61.67 13,034.35 269.43 10.76 190.20 116.71 191.31  173.02 3.51 22,682.23
01.04.2023 dd
égg&?ns - 0.03 11.62 184.70 44.82 43.85 2.16 1,590.86 57.91 1.19 45.63 57.90 11.02 7.33 2,059.02
Deductions / - 0.35 18.43 0.24 124 0.18 576.13 17.06 0.78 8.88 3.13 0.66 5.42 632.50
Adjustments
/
As at 31.03.2024 3,282.23 3,3290.57 242.07 1,248.33 523.34 270.49 63.65 14,049.08 310.28 1117 226.95 116.71 246.08 183.38 542 24,108.75
31.03.2024 A%
qugi}l?ns 263.67 39.97 79.46 204.20 48.81 13.63 4.24 957.31 45.23 118 86.60 1.65 13.31 8.29 18.17 1,785.72
Deductions / - - - 1.42 0.18 0.00 0.85 305.45 9.62 0.18 10.49 1.14 117 1.82 11.43 343.75

Adjustments
/

As at 31.03.2025 3,545.90  3,369.54 1,451.11

14,700.94 303.06

25,550.72

31.03.2025 %
Depreciation / Amortisation :-
e -

g / aRReler -

As at 01.04.2023 - 233.96 47.02 379.01 104.37 164.10 55.45 7,799.02 150.41 7.70 126.25 79.71 28.78 12754 - 9,303.32
01.04.2023 A%

éggi}iqons - 44.08 422 35.05 9.41 14.34 458 563.89 20.90 0.78 16.29 3.40 1515  15.15 - 747.24
Deductions / = (0.02) (0.06)  (11.84) (0.03) 0.25 (0.11) (474.31) (5.63)  (0.65) (5.65) (2.95)  (0.46) - (501.46)
Ad'us}ments

As at 31.03.2024 278.02 51.18 402.22 113.75 178.69 59.92 7,888.60 165.68 7.83 136.89 83.11 40.98 14223 9,549.10
31.03.2024 A&

qugidthns - 43.79 4.73 46.16 10.95 14.08 3.24 662.62 22.96 1.00 28.34 3.39 15.31 12.19 - 868.76
Deductions / - (0.29) (0.11) - (0.74) (161.57) (7.71)  (0.16) (4.86) (0.95) (0.84)  (1.45) (178.68)

Adjustments
/

As at 31.03.2025 321.81 192.77

8,389.65

31.03.2025 A%
Net Block:
e AT:

As at 31.03.2024
31.03.2024 d

As at 31.03.2025

3,282.23  3,051.55 190.89 846.11 409.59 91.80 3.73

3,545.90

3,047.73 265.62 1,003.02

6,160.48 144.60 3.34 90.06 33.60 20510 4115 542 14,559.65

6,311.29 202.77

31.03.2025 db

HAI, PiSell, HAY, AT 74T IRTAY SBIS BT 366.58 THS Y (T ¥ 366.58 UHS) P
TEBRY ITHIOT fABRT =R (BRET) P YT 351 TR &1 378 BeARR, 3Miaelt o grred § € 18
uf 30 uT 1 3797 F e T2 W & &

% 305.48 TNIE (A ¥ ) Iod B! 3T WU 1 WIAQ wdAiaRol IAfd & ga1 §
cifed &1

3iaeT TS B et YfH 1,369.19 THS (7T dY 1,369.19 UPHE) & ¥ 4.19 THS (71d TY 4.19 UF3)
ot 1 YNGR A 310 f3ell ST (1V)/(VI1), SRt gIRT & 10 fofa 3 3mem o faam s
1 derfly, Ifafa 3w 3R S S5t (Iv)/(vi) Sielt gRT e 29 g3mast & AR &
g A= 3 1T, SetgTaie & et erf@ct &t 21

HISAT SBIE P TRUL-I, |1 7T 111 BT Y P efisT BN TSNGBRT HAL JelTs 2001, A 2008 T4
370 2008 A IR A &1

Usfera Fmfonefs aRviufodt & Fder § 2 0.30 FIS (74 99 T 0.15 FRIT) F o¥eN a¥ &
R TSt fopaT o &1

Iy gRveiaferl & Wee § % 6.52 FRIS (770 94 T 36.29 FRIS) &I HUI API a9 b GRH Yaiipd
HTE R

Land measuring 366.58 acres (Previous year 366.58 acres) at Kalol,
Kandla, Phulpur, Aonla and Paradeep, provided to Cooperative Rural
Development Trust (CORDET). The land provided at Phulpur, Aonla and
Paradeep has been leased for a period of 30 years.

The conveyancing of the title in favour of the Society in respect of
Immovable Property valuing ¥ 305.48 crore (Previous Year NIL) is
pending.

The capitalisation of Land measuring 4.19 acres (Previous year 4.19
acres) out of total Land measuring 1,369.19 acres (Previous year
1,369.19 acres) belonging to Aonla Unit, has been taken on the basis of
judgment passed by the Hon'ble Additional District Judge (IV)/(VI),
Bareilly. However, the Society has preferred an appeal before the
Hon’ble High Court, Allahabad against compensation determined by the
Hon'ble Additional District Judge (IV)/(VII), Bareilly.

The renewal of lease in respect of Phase |, Il and Il of Kandla Unit with
effect from July 2001, March 2008 and April 2008 respectively is under
progress.

Depreciation of ¥ 0.30 crore (Previous Year % 0.15 crore) has been
charged to Capital Work-in-Progress.

Borrowing cost amounting to % 6.52 crore (Previous Year % 36.29 crore)
in respect of Qualifying Assets has been capitalised during the year.

94



L) » .
’.*‘aﬁ International Year Notes forming part of the financial statements

of Cooperatives . o
M 2025 feuToT12 - FHeyc ufderaafaat

‘; o Coopers Build
=y e NOTE 12: INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(X in Crore)
faaRor Particulars Licences Technical Knowhow Computer Software Total
Thd Jod: Gross Block:
01.04.2023 B As at 01.04.2023 46.71 52.95 19.38
3@/l Additions 0.11 1.79 2.61
HAfT / TR Deductions / Adjustments 10.67 0.09 -
31.03.2024 Y As at 31.03.2024 36.15 54.65 21.99
3@/l Additions 0.20 0.01 1.56
HAAT / TR Deductions / Adjustments 6.71 - 7.34
31.03.2025 HF As at 31.03.2025 29.64 54.66 16.21
aReite: Amortisation :
01.04.2023 B As at 01.04.2023 32.86 45.33 15.06
3@/l Additions 8.68 1.58 1.80
HAfT / TR Deductions / Adjustments (10.58) - -
31.03.2024 Y As at 31.03.2024 30.96 46.91 16.86
3@/l Additions 3.87 1.03 2.05
HAfAT / TR Deductions / Adjustments (6.71) - (7.34)
31.03.2025 &I As at 31.03.2025 28.12 47.94 11.57
e 1w Net Block:
31.03.2024 Y As at 31.03.2024 5.19 7.74 5.13
31.03.2025 BF As at 31.03.2025 1.52 6.72 4.64
TI0T 13 - GSiiold BRI
NOTE 13: CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
W Building:
- BRI d BREMT - Office and Factory 248.51
- T3ARY / i & - Township / Residential 16.66
- 5, Yfora de 31 A - Road, Culvert and Other Facility 212.27 1.05 266.22
e, TfieRY 2T 31T 3T Plant, Machinery and Other Equipment 1,077.66 1,062.82
ECER RG] Railway Siding 0.93 6.48
T TOTAL 1,290.86 1,335.52
Yofhra S wifa & (cwip) B a1fe g Capital Work In Progress (CWIP) Movement Schedule
YRS AT Opening Balance 1,335.52 1,354.40
3: 7 I SR 6 1 Mg Add: Additions during the year 1,197.79 1,746.34
gere: ay 3 SR faa 1T g Less: Capitalisation made during the year 1,242.45 1,765.22
JHIGE Y Closing Balance 1,290.86 1,335.52
g9 & SR AT IRTURIET & AT H ¥ 8.83 TS (3T O ¥ 45.92 FIS) Pl BT APT Borrowing cost amounting to ¥ 8.83 crore (Previous Year ¥ 45.92 crore) in
aﬁ‘l&ﬁﬁ fosar s respect of Qualifying Assets has been capitalised during the year.
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feuToT 14 - @ ae foraer
NOTE 14: NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

P ——
2024-2025

[ (26,21,50,000) SfFact R 10 Ufet, Iof el

NIL (26,21,50,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each,
fully paid-up

(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
(1) TR fAger () Trade Investments
fadt A & a2k (3rga) Equity Shares : (Unquoted)
T 3T Joint Ventures
3 2T BiéTEsR HuHt THusief Oman India Fertiliser Company SAOC 329.08
TS 137 R & 2,67,57,500 (2,67,57,500) 2,67,57,500 (2,67,57,500) Equity Shares of Omani
fqact 9RR, Ui ved Rial 1 each, fully paid-up
v sw®! rsde fafies CN IFFCO Private Limited 20.00
7% 10 $ 2,00,00,000 (2,00,00,000) FfFact 2,00,00,000 (2,00,00,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each,
AR, gof e fully paid-up
U1 BISATRIE UgdaTssidl arsde fafies New Age Financial Advisory Private Limited 7.00
%m %10 % 70,00,000 (70,00,000) 2fFadt &RR, 70,00,000 (70,00,000) Equity Shares of 10 each,
Ui ye fully paid-up
39407 Sub-Total 356.08
TS HufAgi Subsidiaries
THBI-AR SR §Fv B! faifies IFFCO-TOKIO General Insurance Company Limited 838.03
T 3 10 3 14,67,87,477 (14,67,87,477) 14,67,87,477 (14,67,87,477) Equity Shares of Z 10 each,
gfFadt R, ot e fully paid-up
HP! M g fafies IFFCO Kisan Suvidha Limited 3.65
TE T 10 F 28,12,125 (36,49,500) 28,12,125 (36,49,500) equity shares of ¥ 10 each,
SfFadt AR, ot ve fully paid-up
HE! UM HIgAd fafiies IFFCO Kisan Finance Limited 159.83
Y% % 10 & 20,52,98,000 (14,53,00,000) 20,52,98,000 (14,53,00,000) Equity Shares of % 10 each,
fqact 9RR, Ui ved fully paid-up
TP fFUH AR s IFFCO Kisan Logistics Limited 70.15
T ¥ 10 & 7,01,47,812 (7,01,47,812) 7,01,47,812 (7,01,47,812) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each,
It AR, gof weet fully paid-up
THP! P wgsrs fafies IFFCO Kisan SEZ Limited 126.43
T ¥ 10 % 12,64,30,330 (12,64,30,330) 12,64,30,330 (12,64,30,330) Equity Shares of 10 each,
gfqact IR, qof e fully paid-up
fouT $exerer 23 vwaisg Kisan International Trading FZE 1.20
W1m fezEH & 10 (10) Sfeact R (9 10 (10) Equity Shares (including 9 bonus shares) of UAE
a1 AR ), qof e Dirham 1 Million each, fully paid-up
St i3 BiéergsR S verwerd Jordan India Fertilizer Company LLC 773.39
T 135718 §FR & 10,02,63,420 (10,02,63,420) 10,02,63,420 (10,02,63,420) Equity Shares of Jordan
gfqact R, of e Dinar 1 each, fully paid-up
2297 Brf PR 2aauiie HiRTRRT fafiee Indian Farm Forestry Development Cooperative Limited 12.54
TAF 7 50,000 2,507 (2,507) ST IR, 2,507 (2,507) Equity Shares of ¥ 50,000 each, fully
H\Ufm paid-up
$HPI AR fafies IFFCO eBazar Limited 51.00
& ¥ 10 & 5,10,00,000 (5,10,00,000) et 5,10,00,000 (5,10,00,000) Equity Shares of Z 10 each,
AR, gof e fully paid-up
3%h!-Un} 1Y HIEW Wigde fafies IFFCO-MC Crop Science Private Limited 30.09
TAE T 10 F 2,10,07,143 (2,10,07,143) 33T KR, 2,10,07,143 (2,10,07,143) Equity Shares of Z 10 each,
aof yee fully paid-up
fafFen swe! 3w fafies Sikkim IFFCO Organics Limited 21.61
Y (2,16,09,975) Sfaarct AR 10 wfd, gof wg NIL (2,16,09,975) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each,
fully paid-up
39-qRT Sub-Total 2,231.83 2,087.92
Teart Hufai (vHifRves) Associates
32T dierar fafdes Indian Potash Limited 2.68 2,68
U@ ¥ 10 F 97,20,000 (97,20,000) Sfadct RR 97,20,000 (97,20,000) Equity Shares (including 70,40,000
(70,40,000 17 AR ), gt wed bonus shares) of Z 10 each, fully paid-up
TR 3HTHAR Wigde fafies Triumph Offshore Private Limited 262.15
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

feuTor 14 - S TTe] forder (STt

As at 31.03.2025

wHifvey
THS! A191% WIEae fafies
% 10 5@ & 10,000 (10,000) 3t AR, 0 Yael

AR dtst wesr Afnfa fafies
% 1,000 9@ & 2,90,100 (20,100) SfFact AR, of v

A B3R vaviidd fafies
% 10,000 ¥&I® 3 1,010 (1,010) 3K R, Iof et

39401

R

Hrowrdt 1o wfdfAst mede fafies
%1000 TS F 47,245 (47,245) SfFadt AR, 70f ve

$exiat AT g AP

Y CFA-F.10,000 & 6,39,014 (6,39,014)
Rt R, ot e

ELs L

Pl AR 332 (1)

() 31 fAger

giTadt A & F32F (35A)

HERTE Re PR 36 fAfes

% 1,000/- Wedd 3 1,001 (1,001) 907 et 3t IR
% 10,000/- ¥l & 50 (50) gof wieet gfaadt R
§f39 ghen PR fafies

% 5,000/- I & 20 (20) Jof W& et AR
Ao e T3 I 3éw Bismifed fafies
% 5,000/- T o 35 (35) W&w

SR IR (15 91 IR Afe)

39-ap1

1Y AT BT (313gA)

8.44% ISR THSIVA 2028

8.43% TfAEHTg THEIUA 2028

8.43% It UG THEIUA 2028

8.34% TfAEHTg THEIUA 2028
8.26% ISR THEIUC 2028

Bk

FR-eh SIS (3 GH)

7.19% 33T ¥ed HI8- HRUNSH faffies 2025
7.35% 3T ¥e1d BTEAd HRUNIH fAffies 2031
7.35% A Seb BR BiiheeR U8 el Saeiyiic 2031
7.35% A2Fd gTed 31eliiRel 3T 2f3ar 2031

8.46% el Seiare [thdhe PRUNSH fHes 2028
8.50% el B15a 37TRET 3iTh Sf3a fAfies 2029
39-RT

Associates

IFFCO Nanoventions Private Limited
10,000 (10,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each,
fully paid-up

Bharatiya Beej Sahakari Samiti Limited
2,90,100 (20,100) Equity Shares of % 1,000 each, fully
paid-up

National Cooperative Exports Limited
1,010 (1,010) Equity Shares of % 10,000 each, fully paid-up

Sub-Total

Other Companies / Entities

CSC e-Governance Services Private Limited
47,245 (47,245) Equity Shares of ¥ 1000 each,
fully paid-up

Industries Chimiques du Senegal
6,39,014 (6,39,014) Equity Shares of CFA-F.10,000 each,
fully paid-up

Sub-Total

Total Trade Investments (1)

(I1) Other Investments

Equity Shares : (Unquoted)

Maharashtra State Cooperative Bank Limited

1,001 (1,001) Equity Shares of % 1,000 each, fully paid-up
Cooperative Bank of India Limited

50 (50) Equity Shares of % 10,000 each, fully paid-up
Indian Tourism Cooperative Limited

20 (20) Equity Shares of % 5,000 each, fully paid-up

National Film and Fine Arts Cooperative Limited
35 (35) Equity Shares (including 15 bonus shares)
fully paid-up of % 5,000 each,

Sub-Total

State Development Loans : (Unquoted)
8.44% Rajasthan SDL 2028

8.43% Tamil Nadu SDL 2028

8.43% Uttar Pradesh SDL 2028

8.34% Tamil Nadu SDL 2028

8.26% Guijarat SDL 2028

Sub-Total

Tax Free Bonds : (Unquoted)

7.19% Indian Railway Finance Corporation Limited 2025

7.35% Indian Railway Finance Corporation Limited 2031

7.35% National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development 2031
7.35% National Highways Authority of India 2031

8.46% Rural Electrification Corporation Limited 2028

8.50% National Highways Authority of India 2029

Sub-Total

97

(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2024

1.36

2.01

1.01

269.21

27.00

62.16

89.16 89.16
2,711.13 2,802.37

0.10
0.05
0.01

0.01

0.17

4.37
1.53

5.00

5.03

20.09

_ 36.02

399.98
31.83
10.57
84.88
16.19
33.69

577.14
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feaTor 14 - ST TTe] foraer (STat)

NOTE 14: NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS (CONTD.)

(% in Crore)

As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

fwiferfa, 911 Faféaa dvga: (3rgA) Redeemable, Non-Convertible Bonds: (Unquoted)
8.10% TISIUhH! T2 Wrg- e widst faffies 2027 8.10% HDFC Credila Financial Services Limited 2027 25.00
8.50% AfEeT ¥l B3 wrga faifieg 2027 8.50% Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited 2027 10.01
8.45% 3711 HIg-W fiffics 2026 8.45% Bajaj Finance Limited 2026 25.09
7.54% 3T Y BI8AY PRUNSH fafies 2027 7.54% Indian Railway Finance Corporation Limited 2027 30.00
9.05% TISIS PBrgAde Wit fAffies 2028 9.05% HDB Financial Services Ltd. 2028 10.00
7.85% UIGR HIg-d HRUNH fafiies 2028 7.85% Power Finance Corporation Ltd. 2028 24.69
8.75% 3ReH fAfieE 2025 8.75% REC Ltd. 2025 50.85
6.00% 111 BIgW ffBies 2025 6.00% Bajaj Finance Ltd. 2025 99.98
5.60% 233 31T HRURA fAfies 2026 5.60% Indian Oil Corporation Ltd. 2026 50.00
8.60% T &5 (GSTE A2 Sap) 8.60% Perpetual Bonds (Punjab National Bank) 50.00
8.15% 2rft 91 (3% 316 =t 8.15% Perpetual Bonds (Bank of Baroda) 50.00
391 Sub-Total 12483 42562
T 3= A1 (1) Total Other Investments (1l) - 33625 T 1,038.95
@+ ) TOTAL (I + II) 3,047.38 3,841.32
e Al & e Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments - -
335 AN ol e A Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 3,047.38 3,841.32
32N & 7w H g9 & fAIw et wrae Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments = =
B8 & e 7 31ieps Rea af & Tafdd § Figures in brackets relate to previous year.
(Wﬁ fafd) & forw eraice =fife e 7 &) (Refer Accounting Policy No. 7, for method of valuation)
fewor 15 Sraiafties sEora Jifeler
NOTE 15: LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
............................................................................................................ SEET)
As at 31.03.2024
(31317, e s} TS, ST e 35 3=elT B Feeieq 7 2537 7T &) (Unsecured, Considered Good, unless otherwise stated)
Yafhra 36 Capital Advances 264.70
TETID Bt B HoT 3R 30 Loans and Advances to Subsidiary 12.50
TRifve & T 3R fm Loans and Advances to Associate -
3= B9 30 Other Loans and Advances
TRl 1 0T - A Loans to Employees - Secured 160.06
HHAINAT B 0T Loans to Employees 13.19
o4 e 2 Prepaid Expenses 2.09
anr TOTAL 452.54
feaI0T 16 - 5T Se-aTeT afesiafcat
NOTE 16: OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
(RT3, 317 FHE} T, 579 A fob 3=Tel BE Feeied 7 1591 71T &) (Unsecured, Considered Good, unless otherwise stated)
fervfer e 3= St IR Security and Other Deposits 10.82
o TOTAL
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feagor 17 - =me] fetaiar

NOTE 17: CURRENT INVESTMENTS

(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2024

As at 31.03.2025

| 9RR: (315A) Equity Shares : (Unquoted)
31T Ui /Sl Other Companies / Entities
AT HAIES T SRafesy o= fifies National Commodity and Derivatives Exchange Limited 23.44
9 (50,68,000) SfFarct ORR 10 fd, gl et NIL (50,68,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each, fully
paid-up
AR-aefar Frazn Y adae aRaewar Current Maturities of Non-Current Investments
-G 9178 : (3T gGd) Tax Free Bonds : (Unquoted)
7.19% Sf33 ¥oTd g dRUReM fiffies 2025 7.19% Indian Railway Finance Corporation 2025 -
frteia, 19 s-aféad, FR-gaa srvgw/ Redeemable, Non-Convertible Bonds /
fEat: (egym Debentures : (Unquoted)
8.07% Uel U8 ¢ €051 3 2024 8.07% L & T Infra Debt 2024 15.00
7.66% 11 BIe-¥1 fifies 2024 7.66% Baijaj Finance 2024 50.00
9.50% B3 SqATHE HIs~ BRUNSH fafiies 2024 9.50% Housing Development Finance Corporation Ltd. 2024 25.09
9.44% 2TeT I feIfies 2024 9.44% Tata Sons Ltd. 2024 5.01
9.30% 2Iel F fffies 2024 9.30% Tata Sons Ltd. 2024 5.01
8.50% 2TeT I felffies 2024 8.50% Tata Sons Ltd. 2024 5.00
9.24% B3R SaTIHC Ble-NI BRURLH s 2024 9.24% Housing Development Finance Corporation Ltd.2024 11.02
9.34% B3R STATHE BIe-W PRUNLH fAIfies 2024 9.34% Housing Development Finance Corporation Ltd.2024 20.05
8.50% 2t a5 (Tarai3ms R 11) 8.50% Perpetual Bonds (SBI Series Il) 34.87
8.75% 3IReH fAIfies 2025 8.75% REC Ltd. 2025
6.00% 3111 BIg- faifiies 2025 6.00% Bajaj Finance Ltd. 2025
5.60% 3T 31Tt HRUNIH fAflies 2026 5.60% Indian Oil Corporation Ltd. 2026
8.60% WAt 2 (GSTe A2 o) 8.60% Perpetual Bonds (Punjab National Bank) -
8.15% 2rfY &1 (3 3i1p eten) 8.15% Perpetual Bonds (Bank of Baroda) =
oy TOTAL 194.49
g;ﬁag IECRIE] el fr Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments -
3G Faei &l e A Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 194.49
fae & bl EREEASY e qTaeT Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments -
(geaic 1 fafd) 3 forw caies fifd W 7 55) (Refer Accounting Policy No. 7, for method of valuation)
Q
feagor 18 - et
NOTE 18: INVENTORIES
'''' (X in Crore)

As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

T AT
(AT % 1,000.81 TS Afekd, I T 2 1,178.55 TRIS)

Raw Materials 1,916.47 2,085.15
(Including Goods-in-Transit % 1,000.81 crore,
Previous Year % 1,178.55 crore)

TR B T (Hedl 3cre) fed) Stock in Process (including Intermediary Products)

SIS 3RB Nitrogenous Fertilisers 72.77

UIerfd g BRI IRB Potassic and Phosphatic Fertilisers 291.86 139.24 212.01
TR A1 Finished Goods 971.45 1,014.77
IH-51g8 Stock-in-Trade 363.17 303.19
(PR 7 141.78 TRI8 Tfed, 7T T ¥ 26.36 FS) (Including Goods-in-Transit ¥ 141.78 crore,

Previous Year % 26.36 crore)

ﬁgﬁ@?ﬁ: Stores and Spares 372.77 295.20
( % 13.33 718 Ifed, T ¥z 9.58 G) (Including Goods-in-Transit % 13.33 crore, Previous Year % 9.58 crore)
SR Loose Tools 225 2.45
TR a1 30RS Chemicals and Catalysts 139.33 125.65
Ao Al Packing Materials 53.82 56.31
(ArRers 3.02 a8 AfRd, 1A IH 7 2.67 HB) (Including Goods-in-Transit Z 3.02 crore, Previous Year ¥ 2.67 crore)
fAwior i Construction Materials 10.49 11.49
T TOTAL 4,121.61 4,106.22

(Fcic] 1 g f & AT craiap Hifel Iee-8 H i o)
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fewoT 19 - MR gt

NOTE 19: TRADE RECEIVABLES

(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2024

As at 31.03.2025

(3FT2N, 3FEe] S T, 57 7 [ Hpel g 3ewi A (BT T E)  (Unsecured, Considered Good, unless otherwise stated)

WP B &3 fafd I B A1E § AP 30 7 FPrn Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from due date of payment

HRA TRBR J Il I3 Wieist / Ramra Subsidy / Concession Recoverable from GOI
- 3ifeTy AT TS - Considered Good 921.18
I Others
- 3yifeme A o - Considered Good 36.35
- e e ok - Considered Doubtful 19.91 56.26
WPIAH B &3 fafd A B 718 7 HI 3afd 7 B Outstanding for a period upto six months from due date of payment
TR IPR & T A AfHET / R Subsidy / Concession Recoverable from GOI
- 3ifeme A T - Considered Good 2,984.78 4,236.18
I Others
. - Considered Good 1,029.96 1,673.20
- 3t Ht — edIn LAl
i 4,197.51 6,886.82
HeTU: Tl SR W) & e wiaem Less : Provision for Doubtful Trade Receivables 23.47 19.91
T TOTAL 4,174.04 6,866.92
__am™ A
feaqor 20 - SR A dHBl A AT
NOTE 20: CASH AND BANK BALANCES
'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''' (% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
TG 3R TG Cash and Cash Equivalents:
- ¥t & g AW - Balances with Banks
- e & - Current Accounts 2513 53.48
— i 71 ¥ A 31afY o 7ot aRvgaraar - Deposits with original maturity 200.00 -
qrelt 31T Rt less than three months
- APy - Remittance-in-Transit 2.08 11.85
_ U o) - Cash-in-Hand 0.25 0.35
3 Other Balances:
- R fafd @ i 7A@ 31 e s 78 - Deposits with original maturity 4,974.43 3,069.77
JHq mﬁq@qﬁqﬁmaﬁﬁmq@ﬁ* more than three months, but less than
twelve months from reporting date *
- TRl @ A QA 1Y - Balance in Escrow Account 6.20 6.22
— 319G AT @1 - Unpaid Dividend Accounts 1.26 1.39
AT TOTAL 5,209.35 3,143.06

Tfafa % F9 ¥ 7 18.93 FRIZ (T ¥ ¥ 18.75 HIS) bl WG S7AT f & 71 &1
TP AT 2T AR STl Wit & T A 1 ITAeT 5 ferw Iuetee T 81

feTIoT 21 - TG eies 3EoT g AfiaT

NOTE 21: SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

* Fixed Deposits of ¥ 18.93 crore (Previous Year % 18.75 crore) provided as security.
Balance held in Escrow Account and Unpaid Dividend Accounts are not available for use.

(% in Crore)

As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

(313, 3TaTe B T, 574 7P [ =TT BY3 3 7 357 1T &) (Unsecured, Considered Good, unless otherwise stated)

Hfeafead &1 Hu1a T Loans and Advances to Subsidiary 12.50
THIRATE B 0T F 30 Loans and Advances to Associate 8.91
ESELEE DR Other Loans and Advances

T o T - A& Loans to Employees - Secured 34.54
FHHARA B BT Loans to Employees 3.33
HHIT B 310 Advances to Employees 7.08
7d e o Prepaid Expenses 19.57
I AT Other Advances 84.99
anr TOTAL 170.92
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feaqoT 22 - 3o HTe] afeFFar

NOTE 22: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31.03.2025

(3RIad, 3RifeTe el oS, 519 A 36 3732 BIE 3o 7 fapan T )

(Unsecured, Considered Good, unless otherwise stated)

Yingd &1t 311 &7 8- Interest accured but not due :
R b s gd Tax Free Bonds
BRUNE §10sd / S Corporate Bonds / Deposits 273.75
RN de 317 571 fA Security and Other Deposits * 46.69
o) 2ge S S I v APg GST Input Tax Credit Receivable 2,109.04
13 9 3 et A TR Claims and Other Recoverables
3ifemy wmsh Considered Good 1,400.49
Sifeey wmeh Considered Doubtful 48.25

HeIU: e aral d 317 agett A1 jIRT & fere yraem

R

Less: Provision for Doubtful Claims and Recoverables

Others

48.25 1,400.49

0.70

T

TOTAL

3,830.67

* gifegfe 3R 37 ST IR & Ao IR & v faaTfed ST & favg ¥ 13.07 5
(7 a9 ¥ 9.89 FVIE) A A &Y A F 0.01 TS (T I 0.01F1S) AAA &1

(% in Crore)

As at 31.03.2024

1,392.53
17.29
17.29

Compensation % 0.01 crore (Previous Year % 0.01 crore).

feuguT 23 - UfedTciel & O IsTed
NOTE 23: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Year Ended 31.03.2025

3carel i fah: Sale of Products :

— fahr - Sales 16,801.07

- qfshE - Subsidy 24,313.86 41,114.93
Janii F [{hr Sale of Services 25.39
=1 GRS 3 Other Operating Revenues 103.56
an TOTAL 41,243.88

TS & 7 3,584.28 TS (7T T ¥ 4,629.34 TIS) A &, HA 51 MM R 3R oI
B I H=IaT & T &1 &9 A1 T e SRR SfAfthe gRIUR (DBT) J1sHT & ded adl s
SET STa 3R Gax1 fIeber1an b Pos e 3 Arezm F o e

PoS machines.

fewor 24 - 3T AT

NOTE 24: OTHER INCOME

Year Ended 31.03.2025

TS ; Interest:

- & b §Ivsd - Tax Free Bonds 41.36

- PRYIE 1039 / ST - Corporate Bonds / Deposits 369.25

-3 - Others 17.89 428.50
IRl Dividend 1,568.58
R & 3 Rental Income 49.63
I KA Claims 10.20
G /ATaeT I cEide & arad ol Liabilities / Provisions written back 80.21
Hufey, i U4 3N Bl farchl I A Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 8.51
39 < farhr & ey Profit on sale of Investments 252.28
o1 ff i R & ger-ag) (Fae) Exchange Rate Variations (Net) -
fafae smr Miscellaneous Income 14.79
anr TOTAL 2,412.70
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121.88
28.26
2,190.39

1,392.53

0.73
3,733.78

* Security and Other Deposits include payments against disputed liabilities with
Revenue Authorities  13.07 crore (Previous Year % 9.89 crore) and towards Land

(% in Crore)

Year Ended 31.03.2024

15,485.57

23,844.44

39,330.01
28.22
115.81

39,474.04

Subsidy includes % 3,584.28 Crore (Previous Year % 4,629.34 Crore), recognised
on receipt of fertilisers at the district warehouse, to be claimed under the Direct
Benefit Transfer (DBT) Scheme, after the fertiliser is sold through retailer

(Zin Crore)

Year Ended 31.03.2024

41.51
264.36
13.74

319.61
1,551.23
40.63
893.72
330.68
11.64
13.87
26.01

3,187.39



Notes forming part of the financial statements

feuqott 25. Taa & o718 Tieel Bl eeTd

NOTE 25: COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Year Ended 31.03.2025

P —
2024-2025

(% in Crore)
Year Ended 31.03.2024

o Al Raw Material:

¥ B IR F 9ZR Inventory at the beginning of the year 2,085.15 2,033.84

g Purchases 28,771.40 27,595.98

T ay & 3id F oieR Less: Inventory at the end of the year 1,916.47 2,085.15

WU {1 T drell el Raw Material consumed 28,940.08 27,544.67
TR 3R Wt Stores and Spares 203.96 173.45
TR 3R 33RB Chemicals and Catalysts 75.97 69.59
ko el Packing Materials 372.25 320.40
fostet, oM 3R Tl Power, Fuel and Water 2,356.46 2,565.51
T G TR 3] ¥ g Less: Stock Transfer for Self Consumption 586.16 607.50
o TOTAL 31,362.56 30,066.12

feTI0T 26 - AT AT, AN T2 AT IAH A T B! ATl & diedciol

NOTE 26: CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND STOCK-IN-PROCESS

Year Ended 31.03.2025

1

(% in Crore)
Year Ended 31.03.2024

AU WiP: Closing Stocks:
IR T Finished goods 1,014.77
HiP-g1-¢8 Stock-in-Trade 303.19
TR B e (Feaddl 3cre) fed) Stock-in-Process (including Intermediary Products) 1,626.48 212.01 1,529.97
SRFHF wid: Opening Stocks:
IR T Finished goods 1,014.77 1,643.31
WH-E-¢8 Stock-in-Trade 303.19 699.54
ST B wieh (Feaael 3ercl afdd) Stock-in-Process (including Intermediary Products) 212.01 1,529.97 323.58 2,666.43
@qfS)/aHt (Increase) / Decrease (96.51) 1,136.46
€~~~ ~
feuqor 27 - Seatanfedi o fedeTan ae &
NOTE 27: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" (% in Crore)
Year Ended 31.03.2025 Year Ended 31.03.2024
e, e, HTGE) e S Salaries, Allowances, Wages and Bonus 1,234.29 1,182.49
arfr fAfe) qerm 3r=y e & 3iergrH Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 87.45 86.90
IS AT 31T AR AT 131 § 3i9reH Contribution towards Gratuity and Other 184.87 176.73
Benefit Schemes
Rifecm =7 Medical Expenses 39.94 38.30
31 BT I Other Welfare Expenses 122.66 106.07
o TOTAL 1,669.21 1,590.49
feugor 28 - faditar eteTa
NOTE 28: FINANCE COSTS .
.............................................................. (% in Crore)
Year Ended 31.03.2025 Year Ended 31.03.2024
TR I Interest Expense
ot & Banks:
afeE Hol R On Term Loans 49.72
391 3 Ud Jfafdies BN ) On Cash Credits and Short Term Loans 368.32 418.04
3 Others 1.44
anT TOTAL 419.48
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D B feugor 29 - I
NOTE 29: OTHER EXPENSES
(X in Crore)
Year Ended 31.03.2025 Year Ended 31.03.2024

TRT YT G394 Repairs and Maintenance:

9o Buildings 109.82

T, TRRY AT 311 3R Plant, Machinery and other Equipments 256.10

3 Others 65.70 431.62
31 ¢ bl |ud Consumption of Loose Tools 0.85
fasTeht 3R ur R Electricity and Water Charges 13.50
RIEIS Travelling Expenses:

fAReraToT Directors 5.38

= Others 25.96 23.18 28.56
R I 2 Local Conveyance Expenses 0.21 0.20
TGUT e g Printing and Stationery 2.98 3.21
fowmn, W aaw Rent, Rates and Taxes 33.88 31.49
TR & Communication Expenses 7.80 8.82
ffmr Insurance 62.38 58.13
YR W facht daefH o Advertisement and Publicity Expenses 52.67 102.36
B favaR = Agriculture Extension Expenses 154.68 403.24
KIE Freight 1,719.58 1,519.62
gafoi 3k wogRor Handling and Storage 44317 470.80
et 6t faf o Directors' Sitting Fee 4.94 4.90
aTEA T, T AT 3E-391d Vehicle Hire, Running and Maintenance 35.01 34.19
PIaH & Horticulture Expenses 19.71 20.43
&I Security Expenses 47.03 43.90
SRATIRIeTE 1 e (fewuft Fw@m 30.23 3) Auditor's Remuneration (Refer Note No. 30.23) 1.41 1.41
1Al T TiheHa TR Legal and Professional Charges 32.06 28.11
§% e fam R Bank and Finance Charges 11.59 13.94
e 3R e = Research and Development Expenditure 5.04 3.64
TR/ &1 1S ft Amounts charged off / adjusted 1.96 7.46
Hufey, R Ud TR Bl AR/ & v T Loss on Disposal / Held for Disposal for Property, 64.32 13.86
gfafoRll & &1 Plant and Equipment
a@mﬁﬁgﬁﬁq’émﬁ Property, Plant and Equipment Written-Off 48.98 58.51
fA3ef &t facht w &1 Loss on Sale of Investments 75.59 -
gégu 3R <ifese woil/era) & fore yrae™ Provision of Bad and Doubtful Debts / Claims 35.58 6.09
L ARGIREEE ¥ ger-gel (Raa) Exchange Rate Variations (Net) 9.44 _
STaf® 7S (FRaer) (Reuoft e 30.6 &) Prior Period Items (Net) (Refer Note No. 30.6) 0.39 0.38
ARy Miscellaneous Expenses 275.41 173.94
anT TOTAL 3,613.05 3,483.16
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30.1

30.2

30.3

30.4

30.5

30.6

Notes forming part of the financial statements

30 3o feor 2024-2025
30 OTHER NOTES
URif® dang 30.1 Contingent Liabilities
Y T FHI TR IMBAD STA 3 214.92 TS (d Y T 223.31 1) off, ST fyawor g Contingent liabilities at the year-end were ¥ 214.92 crore
JBRE: (Previous year % 223.31 crore) as per details given below:

R P H)
31.032025 31.03,2024
Ll Ll

(i) i g oo/ Saa 5= %o & &0 i
WHBR 7 A gl

(i) @, I e, 3. YH R R IR
fRauT R ST v v f2m7s ifewt 3 dgd o,
e fasg wifa 3 srdic/mafofa & oy 6 &
3R e cifed &1+

(iii) 3=

an

223.31

*5H 31T 9y 2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17, 2018-19 31k 2020-21 AU 3mIese AfAfam
% T&d ¥ 50.69 RIS (Td TY ¥ 77.39 TIS) (TS fed) Bl I 71T AMfdyet &1 3rfeiy
HABIRE B FAURI 3R 3mIeR AT, 1961 S YRS WraemT 6 Rs & 3R R,
e B B Y A Felle &) 1 & b 3rdict & 57 A7 & PR 89 B AT &1 g9
R, A el 3 ~IrITerd gRT AT I UG B 378 IR &b dad 3 AR dR] P
I T &
ufdagan
(i) UsihTd wfoagang
Uoft &@d W Fefed U S ara 3ol 1 (AT B gere?) A Jod, et
TG T8 {51 TR E, 7 1,455.89 BRIE (T IY ¥ 1,723.31B%18) &1

(ii) 3T yfaegang
= TS BISATe UsdTgsi| M1gde fiffies # gfqadt el g T 5.50 P18 (77 I 2
5.50 BI5), WRA s Tgpr! Afd faffies 3 20.99 TS (A a¥ T 47.99 TRIT)
TAT A BRI TR foIffies & ¥ 98.99 FRIS (3Td @Y T 98.99 FNIB) FI
3HQGTH; P F 125.48 TS (T Y T 152.48 PIS) T 8

ATYIRT

e B Jwgd sfaadt AW Geft R 20 Ui B R F A F PIAE BT RAE 8,
TN 29 a1 3TH o0 § A 351 STU | Y 3 foTw JRATfa cmTier ¥ 125.8136918 (7Td
¥ 7 122.60 B M|

ufiufra &1 agett 9 ge

Teie &1 ¥ H, Jufel, T U4 39T, 3T uRwuf, geieTd fAmfonels S der 3R 9
32N 1 Bigds 3 TR & Hoo AT TR & a¥eT [0 ST IR 39 Jod & B
T2 8T, o W 3% - H g &1

wufw, §OF TUT SURPR

gcifed ugreniva ofi &1 afveled @ vd g1 fave & feame & foram o &)
QIR METRA d8 ¥F TR 3nerfed afvelerd 3R ge arTd B 3neid oiveies
& o9 BT 7 40.25 BRI (Td ¥ T 40.29 FRIB) BT 3R [THeHA (Y F A=
IRFEA A & stavor o fean s &1

ud arafd B HE

qd 37afd) 7 T faRor FAER &

(% IS H)
31.03.2024
B! FHT af

31.03.2025
EakicuckLd

30.2

30.3

30.4

30.5

30.6

(X in Crore)

t As at
31.03.2024

As al
31.03.2025

Claims against Society / Disputed Liabilities
not acknowledged as Debt

Claims against Demand Notices issued by
Income Tax, Customs, Excise and Sales
Tax Authorities, against which appeals /
adjudication preferred by the Society and
pending disposal *

Others

Total

(i)

(iif)

*Includes Tax demands of ¥ 50.69 crore (Previous Year % 77.39 crore)
(including interest) under the Income Tax Act for Assessment Years
2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17, 2018-19 and 2020-21. Based on the
decisions of the appellate authorities and the interpretations of the
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the Society has been
legally advised that the demands are likely to be deleted in appeal.
Further, the demands are not enforceable pursuant to protection granted
to the Society by the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi.

Commitments

(i) Capital Commitments
Estimated value of contracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed
on capital account and not provided for amount to ¥ 1,455.89 crore
(Previous year % 1,723.31 crore).

(if) Other Commitments
Contribution towards Equity Investments in New Age Financial Advisory
Private Limited - ¥ 5.50 crore (Previous year ¥ 5.50 crore), Bharatiya
Beej Sahakari Samiti Limited - ¥ 20.99 crore (Previous year X 47.99
crore) and National Cooperative Exports Limited - ¥ 98.99 crore
(Previous year % 98.99 crore); total aggregating to ¥ 125.48 crore
(Previous year % 152.48 crore).

Dividend

Dividend is proposed to be paid @ 20% on the paid-up Equity Share
Capital of the Society, subject to the approval at the Annual General
Meeting. The proposed dividend for the year works out to ¥ 125.81 crore
(Previous year % 122.60 crore).

Realisable Value of Assets

In the opinion of the Management, the value of assets other than Property,
Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets, Capital Work-in Progress and
Non-Current Investments, on realisation in the ordinary course, will not be
less than the value at which these are stated in the Balance Sheet.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The amortisation of revalued leasehold land has been charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The difference between amortisation based
on revalued carrying amount and amortisation based on original cost,
amounting to % 40.25 crore (Previous year % 40.29 crore) has been
transferred from Revaluation Reserve to General Reserve.

Prior Period Items

The detail of prior period items is as under:

(X in Crore)
Year Ended
31.03.2024

Year Ended

31.03.2025

Income:

Others

Expenditure:

Depreciation (Net)

Others

Net Prior Period Expenditure

0.38
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30.7 WRA WPR ¥ Afoqsy/Rara

(i) ATEgIe 3R (AN YR IWBR GRT FHI-AHT W 1M 9 Fard A &
HPd 3 B B IR W & S dTel! AISIS! P eI forel Iam 5 J1
HET & YR W o S €, 3 ifegfad et 9o W 3menid it §1 390 319e
e # g/t & forw wariisr aa i gR1 891 et & 3iata feffvd an sifdgfRa
HHEE! & YR T U 0 37 & 3R TS 3521 STl 21 379 HRA IR GRT
3iferd Rl e HfAgfAd & & S1d1 &, 01 39 & & @rdl & 3aedd JHRISH o
e e &, fore 918 e 1ANgfra s e 81

(it) rEpfeds 3R Wit (dF U ) 3! TR AfelS! &l oiaids fovell MG & T AT &
MR TR 351 ST &, 5 YR IRBR R FH-9H R AR R Y den wafda
3afd 3 fAr Ffd dives d e AfedE & F AR 8 &

(iii) 3RPI TR WIS ARTA BT Hfergfet BT eraics TRA INPR GRT T TR AEGFI T
e 3 MR W R T R

30.8 1 3i¥ 37 ageht A MY & 7 879,39 Bilg Y HezRey e J1f AN &, o
I gRT a¥ 2023-24 & R 31 & 9 § =11 § 718 &1 YR IWBR & IRG
faumT 3 2 vare & A et 39 = B g < &1 afifa 3 g dare Bt
AP FRAM =g e 1Rt grR 6 &1 1 A snft foerea §)

30.9 fae=ft go1 FRIER

(i) 1 3w & e (3f5) g AR gRT b 37u ATy wrifen, 3t ae o 3fd # wraiferd off,
35 FA AR 717.63 FRIS @ (A TR 175.92 FR1G) |

(ii) el g1 BFRIER, R &S 7 ot 3Rafed 3uawun gRT Y 1 & 3k 7 & 31

ez -
(% DA )
31.03.2025 &t 31.03.2024 &1
WPIAHE A5G 1A 867.25 838.00
BIGEEGIKIN R 168.94 102.06
30.10 3MIAHR

A TR BT WA 3G AAH, 1961 B &R 1158108T 3 3aie & 3R fomam T/ &1

30.11 HHAEG! B AT

(1) Jarfgf & garq el 3R efefoie s il & dfaa R & araf
fIaRO1 G g O H e A1e -15 (HRNTE), "SHaR W & 319 4 JPR

qarfar o &
(@) TH 3R BT faa=or & A= e =g
Bz )
31.03:325%’[%3‘57 31.03.2024%’[\;{1;;;‘57
{ T
e AR ; e WA :
| R | vl
: IR srafeara
e SrRIeTRG SmreTia SRR
] A1 ARTA 37.72 25.07
TS APTd 53.01 45.74
A R W
it iy (35.51) -
A g W
dimifeses (c)/a (1.89) =
M gl ®
S (e /& 404 4270
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30.7 Subsidy / Concession from Government of India

(i) Nitrogenous Fertilisers (Urea) are under the Group Concession Scheme
as notified by Government of India from time to time. The subsidy on
Nitrogenous Fertilisers is accounted for on the quantity received at
district warehouses, on the basis of Notified Concession Price, further
adjusted for input price escalation / de-escalation and as estimated by
the Management, based on the norms prescribed or notified under the
said scheme. On fixation of final Concession Price by the Government
of India, necessary adjustments, if any, are made in the accounts for the
year, in which such price is notified.

(i) Subsidy on Phosphatic and Potassic (P&K) Fertilisers is accounted for
on the quantity received at district warehouses, based on the subsidy
rate as notified by the Government of India from time to time aligned with
the likely Nutrient Based Subsidy Rates for the relevant period.

(iii) The reimbursement towards Freight Cost on Fertilisers has been
accounted for based on the freight policy, as notified by Government of
India from time to time.

30.8 Claims and Other Recoverables includes arbitral award of ¥ 879.39 crore
recognised by the Society during the year 2023-24. Department of
Fertilisers, Government of India has challenged the Award before the
Hon’ble Delhi High Court. Society has filed an Execution Petition for
enforcement of the Award. Both the matters are pending disposal.

30.9 Foreign Currency Exposure
(i) Forward Contract entered into by the Society for hedging foreign
currency risks and outstanding as at the close of the year was ¥ 717.63
crore (Previous year ¥ 175.92 crore).

(i) Foreign currency exposures that are not hedged by derivative
instruments or otherwise:

(% in Crore)
As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
Amount Payable 867.25 838.00
Amount Receivable 168.94 102.06

30.10 Income Tax

The provision for Current Tax has been made in accordance with the
provisions of Section 115BAD of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

30.11 Employee Benefits

(i)  The summarised position of post-employment benefits and long-term
employee benefits recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
and Balance Sheet in accordance with Accounting Standard - 15
(Revised), “Employee Benefits” is as under:

(a) Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

(% in Crore)
Year ended 31.03.2025 Year ended 31.03.2024
Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave
Encashment / Encashment /
Compensated Compensated
Absences Absences
Funded Unfunded Funded Unfunded
Current Service Cost 37.72 25.07
Interest Cost 53.01 45.74
Expected Return on
Plan Assets (35.51) -
Actuarial (Gain) /
Loss on Plan Assets (1.89) -
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss
on Plan Obligations 4.04 42.70

Total Expenses
recognised in the

Statement of Profit
and Loss



Notes forming part of the financial statements

3oy fewoT (379

OTHER NOTES (CONTD.)

@) qad o o STelt Wt R

R P H)
31.03.2025 &t 31.03.2024 &t
Ry 3PIA R Eccat]
P A ERRS )
Jafagze | 9fRE
IRUIRG SRIeIRA SfRuia sFERTARG

717.18 626.60

640.29 240.19 626.60

* 3EH & w9 H Pt SR N e, ford qorm-o 7 gt ra 8, 9y 31afd
21 g2 TdioRu U4 afiRe U & WEd g R-fam Ot e, GR
To-03 3 g T €, H W 7 178.79 RIS (7T 94 ¥ 194.00 FRI8) A & AT AN 2
461.50 TRIZ (Td T T 432.51 F18) R-A &1

(M <Rl & oA gea # aRad

P H)
31.03.2025 &t 31.03.2024 &t
afx DRI afx 3ABIA
S EEdcayd S Eeica]
Jaifgs | RS
qufafa qufafy

af &y 710.06  612.69
SR BT

A e

e el AT 3772 2507
I AP 53.01 4574
AT BT PTA (87.65)  (99.60)

42.70

640.29 626.60
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2024-2025
(b) Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet
(R in Crore)
As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave
Encashment / Encashment /
Compensated Compensated
Absences Absences
Funded Unfunded Funded Unfunded

Estimated Present
Value of Obligations RAIWH 717.18 626.60
as at the end of the
year

Fair Value of Plan
Assets as at the
end of the year

476.99 --

Unfunded Net
Liability

recognised in the  237.67 240.19
Balance Sheet*

*The total unfunded liability towards Gratuity is recognised in the Balance
Sheet as Current. Of the total unfunded liability towards Leave Encashment /
Compensated Absences, recognised in the Balance Sheet ¥ 178.79 crore
(Previous Year % 194.09 crore) is Current and the balance % 461.50 crore
(Previous Year ¥ 432.51 crore) is Non-Current.

(c) Changes in the Present Value of the Obligations
(R in Crore)

As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave
Encashment / Encashment /
Compensated Compensated

Absences Absences

Funded Unfunded Funded Unfunded

Present Value of
Obligations at the
beginning of the
year

Current Service 36.75 26.74 37.72  25.07
Cost

717.18 710.06 612.69

Interest Cost 5195  45.40 53.01  45.74

Benefits Paid (90.82) (110.62) (87.65)  (99.60)

Actuarial (Gain) / (4.45) 52.17 4.04 42.70
Loss

Present Value of

Obligations at the 710.61  640.29 717.18
end of the year
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(0.29)

52.50

(90.82)

472.94*

* 3uerH fAfeRi o1 e fafira sfa sfim dufaa g fosan Siran €1 qenfy, i uReufot &
QLA 3PT-37eT fIaRUT 37 HU! GRT I Tel BT el

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
P gATE Y &Y gHTE q§

OTHER NOTES (CONTD.)
(d) Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets
(¥ IS H) (% in Crore)
31.03.2024 &t As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave
Encashment / Encashment /
Compensated Compensated
Absences Absences
Funded Unfunded Funded Unfunded
Fair Value of Plan
Assets at the
beginning of the HEEY -
year
Expected Return on 34.56 35 51 _
Plan Assets : ’
Actuarial Gain /
(Loss) (0.29) 1.89 -
Employers’
Contribution A L -

Benefits Paid (90.82)

Fair Value of Plan
Assets at the end  472.94*
of the year

* Plan Assets are managed by various Life Insurance Companies. The individual
investment wise details are not provided by these companies.

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

(3) UM BV F| W uRiafal 7.22% 7.93% (e) Actual Return on Plan Assets of 7.22% 7.93%
R aRdfa® ufdary Gratuity Fund

(@) ST T F GRTA IUGH & g 3 268.44 EEFLENN (f) Estimated Contribution towards 326844 IEFLENN
Gquﬁa SRIGH crore crore Gratuity during the next year crore crore

i) e grT wfasy A Qs & fsar o siere o & SR o A rn &, S
o Ay wow &

(@) 1Y 9 g1+ faavor § s1et T ="

(R ISH)
31.03.2025  31.03.2024
kal af

T TS P EE

ii)  Society’s contribution to Provident Fund Scheme recognised as
Expense for the year is as under:

(@) Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
(% in Crore)

Year ended  Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

ufasy fAfd & 3iergH Contribution to Provident Fund

Yo AT & siorem 5.19 Contribution to Pension Fund 5.19
32N R 7 9l 1 =191 & few 0.96 Reimbursement to PF Trust towards 0.96
ufas Al = 1 6 1€ wifergfed ’ Unrealised Interest on Investments :

yfae Y = it o & Sfra
T SR Hiysy A = & e &
T e & S $ HH & HRT STEAT
T Y

@) qaH-u= § STl TS AR R

31.03.2025 %1 31.03.2024 HY

Y & 3 H R &1 9dHH Hod

i R =y ot afwiuf & 3 g den
A A =R & QIR & T e S

il B 1T elefl 314 Barc 21

¢ & oid & gl ®1 adu gea 69.68 62.17
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Expense recognised on account of
Shortfall between Fair Value of Assets of
Provident Fund Trust and Present Value of
Obligations of the Provident Fund Trust

7.51

(b) Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet
(% in Crore)

As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Present Value of Obligations at the beginning
of the year

Liability recognised on account of Shortfall
between Fair Value of Assets of Provident Fund
Trust and Present Value of Obligations of the
Provident Fund Trust

8.61

Present Value of Obligations at the end of

the year S
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vi)
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2024-2025

@ i Ay = & A &1 faaror

31.03.2025 # 31.03.2024 F
e afd fAder e afdy e
R BT H) Eaguictint R BT H) Eaguictint
PG/’ WBR
a?rqﬁrqjﬁ'm 1,505.44 65.93 1,444.63 63.49
ol T3t & o7 648.07 28.38 703.37 30.91
RI3Tel BUg 34.47 1.51 25.84 1.13

95.29 4.18

100.00

101.65
2,275.49

2,283.27

100.00

-0 Bl ARG B T Sfiwiferds RO (IR 37 & F9 § k)

31.03.2025 &Y 31.03.2024 #Y

g gl A 3PS Ffe ugf
[EcaRe 7.25%
A g w®
iy &t T R

- AP 7.25%

- uR RPN 8.30%
I # g B Ffd 7.50%

* M gRufrl W afaerd S 3gAd o) a1 RaRer etid @ aRef) B o,
WWWW%WWHMWW@HWﬁMﬁWW
T

** gERBIfA, aRST, TEE 3R 31 IR SR B e F v T g |

FHANT YR BT g¥e AT BHANAT dHalcie B g¥e § 3i25H & e Huer
¥131.16 BB (T @Y 3111.59 PHIIS) AATT61.07 FRIS (7Td IY T48.52 FIS) BT AL
foram o & 3R & AT U4 B1f faaRon A o & g & garfan @ g1

a9 & 37 # U T diwifepss i 3 3MeR R < Hal [IPR & Wiae & &9 7
%1.05ﬁ;(ﬂﬁ&é%o.naiﬁg)ﬁﬂfﬂﬁmﬂvaaﬁﬁmmﬁmaswﬁswﬁa
g gl

Tor 3 fore a1 et oY ot faraor g bR &

I3 H)
31.03.2024 &t

31.03.2025 3t

s 3 31 & fopv T iHife qoaic 3 MR W TR T3 I & JIaem
amgffﬂwm(maﬁ%omm)ﬁmaﬁmuﬁmﬁmﬁqﬂmﬁm
TR

qor-ut & for o1e Tt raen &t fawer g g &

B H)
31.03.2023 #Y

31.03.2025 =t

(c) Investment Details of Provident Fund Trust

As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Invested of Invested of
(% in crore) Investment (¥ in crore) Investment

Central / State

Government 1,505.44 65.93 1,444.63 63.49
Securities

Financial Institutions 648.07 28.38 703.37 30.91
Bonds

Mutual Funds 34.47 1.51 25.84 1.13

Others 95.29

2,283.27

4.18
100.00

101.65
2,275.49

4.47
100.00

iii)  Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance Sheet Date
(expressed as weighted average)

As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Method used Projected Unit Credit Method
Discount Rate 7.25%
Expected Rate of return on
Plan Assets*

- Gratuity Fund 7.25%

- Provident Fund 8.30%
Expected Rate of Salary 7.50%

increase**

* The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering composition
of plan assets held, historical results of return on plan assets and other relevant
factors.

** Considered taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors.

Contribution to Employees Superannuation Fund Trust and
Employees Benevolent Fund Trust amounting to ¥ 131.16 crore
(Previous year ¥ 111.59 crore) and % 61.07 crore (Previous year
% 48.52 crore) respectively, has been charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Provision for Long Service Award amounting to % 1.05 crore (Previous
year % 0.37 crore) for the year, has been charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss, based on actuarial valuation carried out at the year end.

The breakup of cumulative provision considered in the Balance Sheet

Vi)

i nder: .
BE LT (X in Crore)
As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
A.  Current

B.  Non-Current

Provision for Travel to Hometown on Superannuation amounting to
% 1.67 crore (Previous year % 0.87 crore) has been charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year, based on actuarial valuation
carried out at the year end.

The breakup of cumulative provision considered in the Balance Sheet
is as under:

(% in crore)
As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

A.  Current
Non-Current
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30.12 TRfET A 30.12 Operating Lease

AT B eyt FAfSRT ZaReTs FrETREl gRT 3TN 5T ST et 3Rl TReRY Tl
affa & P TR B MR ofist I Fafdd &1 37 ofist BRT P IWAR R
IR TEHfcl BT A IR TG 3521 STl &, T 3¢ <€ ¥ foal ST el §1 S 9Tt
! fowqur-29 & famm, &¥ @ &’ ofiies & el g &

30.13 ¥He Raifén

(@) oo e

el 3 P AR T Heie d e 3eaa) bl Hepfel P HFHR HelT-31ePT ol STl &,
AT Y e B! AN 36! & v SR Se1s & & § S 3111 &1 i Jomel B
I 3P B Y B Bl IS &, ST Bol e I &, 5 511 Ao 38w / Rfde
3Idvp, T, TR, 319 IR 30fe 3 RS Idre) do1 3 srf & Bl e
T35 I §1 BRUNE 31 vd 1, i &st oft onfived €, bt 3R-317de A1 37 U o
T AT HIFT 7T &, Fiifep 3% fopeft fAf2YE R e J SfsT 78l 511 Febe|

Manufactured Manufactured Imported
Urea NPK / DAP Urea

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

The Society's significant leasing arrangements are in respect of
Operating Lease of premises for the offices of the Society and
residential use of employees of the Society. These leasing
agreements are usually renewable on mutually agreed terms but are
cancellable. These payments are shown in Note 29 under the head
‘Rent, Rates and Taxes’.

30.13 Segment Reporting

(a) Business Segment

The Society’s operating business are organised and managed
separately according to the nature of products, with each segment
representing a business unit that offers different products. The five
identified segments are ‘Manufactured Urea’, ‘Manufactured
NPK/DAP’, ‘Imported Urea’, ‘Imported NPK/DAP’ and ‘Nano
Fertilisers’, while the sixth segment ‘Others’ consists of traded
products i.e. Water Soluble Fertilisers / Specialty Fertilisers, Seeds
and Chemicals, Bio Fertilisers etc. and Investment vertical. Corporate
Income and expenses including interest are considered as part of
unallocable income and expenses, as they are not identifiable to any
business segment.

(X in Crore)

Imported Manufactured
NPK / DAP Nano Fertilisers Others Total

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Income 3G

Revenue from Operations (CEINEN 16,933.65 BAN(KEE 1967619 BEWACKVAR 1409.86
T & AT I

Other Revenue 20.77 4368 19.28 27.12 -
AT

Total Revenue (A) Rkt 16,977.33 WANAEITA 19,703.31 EMWAENVAM 1,400.86
Pl 3 (P)

Operating Expenses
LEIGE D)

Direct Expenses Wcd&l oId (ERTVALE 15450.96 ISR 18,110.20 EMIZIKAN 1,350.20

Allocated Expenses 597.78 558.97 AREREZAN 103843 - -
3dfed g

Total Operating Expenses (B)  fENLEK[] 16,018.93 QANSINGE 19,148.72 BRWZLEEM 1,359.20
Tl Yo 2 (W)

Segmental Operatinvg 1,001.92 1,467.91 554.59 (6.47) 50.66
Profit(A-B) TTHee 3T
AT (6-F)

Unallocable Expenses
3R 3T I =T

Operating Profit
ITeT

Unallocable Income:

Other Revenue
AT

Interest Income
EISEIE)

Finance Cost
forfrar aPra

Profit before Tax
FRqd A

Income Tax (Net) 3G (fAae)

Profit after Tax
DY GYTd

109

112.46

112.46

105.44

105.44

7.02

335.72 |EERIENS 53746 BNZZYAMN 56063 |[EARZSKYAN 3945351

- 1.39 1.30 PZOWWIE 185014 WMCIN(UM 193124

335.72  |EEEWYA 538.76 WAITE 2419.77 EEENIMZAN 41384.75

40093 EESEAVS] 26576 QGRIRTAN 508.72 WRIEEONON 36,104.86
- 2224 14.38 0.23 0.13 1,804.17 EEANR]

400.93 EEIKY) 280.14 QEGRIRCUN 508.85 RLWIZETM 37,716.77

(65.21) LR 258.62 WARYEIE 191092 WWZZNEN 3,667.98

(RCAREE  1,256.31

CXVCORTE  2,411.67

14741 127412

215 2.56

(CXEREIN  (453.86)

3811.05 [EEFALYY]

988.09 791.92

2,822.96 2,442.57
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Manufactured Manufactured Imported Imported Manufactured (YinjCrors)
Urea NPK / DAP Urea NPK / DAP Nano Fertilisers Others Total
as at as at as at as at as at as at as at

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Other Information:
3 STHBRE

Segment Assets

Unallocable Corporate Assets

Total Assets
Fel TRemfoat

Segment Liabilities

Unallocable Corporate Liabilities
Total Liabilities

el eI

Capital Expenditure

YsiTd &

Unallocable Capital Expenditure

Total Capital Expenditure
Sl Gshord 2/
Depreciation / Amortisation

e / aRele

Unallocable Depreciation /
Amortisation 3R-31Tde Iy

g / aReied

Total Depreciation / Amortisation

S Yedgr / aRReited

Non-Cash Expenses other than
Depreciation JragM &I BIgHY
R-TPT 2

Unallocable Non-Cash Expenses
other than Depreciation
(A8 1 B1gaR)

Total Non-Cash Expenses other

than Depreciation Jrag &I
BISH Fol IR-APE &I

LRI 9,936.26 ERIEIETM 14,407.66 (RN 1,775.70 EENAZEN 7,639.00 EEZNVCN(N 34,238.08

4,181.27 NKLWYS

E1WLINIK138,433.30

(RN 1,200.65 WRTEXREN 1,960.75 5 d ! REIAREN 3,379.27

5,918.47 IMILNE)

CNEERTH12,658.06

383.29 g ! (KILRN  1,838.72

433.86 193.70

(WL YRy 2,032.42

228.87

720.48

38.67

759.15

51.23 86.71

3.73

90.44

@) uhed SHe

] (b) Geographical Segment
AfAfe 97 ®Y F 3797 3 B 56T 321 F offaR Fwelt & 781 e afffat The Society primarily sells its products within India where the
U T €1 9 % R Fafd & et 313 Hgaqul Td € 31 fonelt simfbeer conditions prevailing are uniform. The aggregate figures for

it R ! exports during the year are insignificant. Hence no geographical
Gl ST 3MTaR31e T A1 segment disclosure is considered necessary.

10
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30.14 Haferg urdf & T # fyavor
e i 6 et
(@) EAS HH-ai

THPI-SIR TR 29N Bt faifies

T SevAgAd ¢S Uhates

1S 83T BieaTssik HuHl vever

SHe! [T Bre-Y faffies

3P| [T difseay fafies

gha! b gfaer fafiee

! [ Tagss fafies

THP! IR fafies

£f2g Bl B Saeiie BimRied fafies
faen sl ARTa S (10 3TRER 2024 TF)
! P gfadt 27 afaerd 31 3wa! B quf v arel Terre e fear
SR 2 UsteE Y SRt 25wl &1

PPN i

THPI-CIE] GANW AWt felHes
e HY 3 UeTvait
ERTaRGICE I EEEARIEI

@ WgHE ITH

@M uHEiRTeH

37T 3 BiédsR dut vausieh
e s wrgde fafties
= TS BISATRIC UEaTgsN Urgae faifiies

33 ey fafies

TR 3R ATEae fAIffies (20 3PRA 2024 )
BRI FXe STTIHE T
! T HaT gl

THP! BI3SA

SHD! A5 WTsde fafies

AR o151 Tgert A fafies

A PIIMRAT TR fafiies

qraT SErTY emfef e

@ SHEUdYT T

m

(i) 31, 357 o gt e g
(ii) ot TP PR WYeh yey (e vd fard Fgere
(iii) ot 3. ft. g G (A1a wwre @ fafd)
(iv) off e o e (¥¢eaht Ud WY 3em)
(v) ot A PR fquur fAgers
(vi) ot fofler g RS (PRYNE TaT?)
(vii) ot T . AR (Y1 SiTefiehT Fare)
(viii) ot Sft. 3. st TGP (A1)
{31 7€ 2024 T}
) IR ﬁ%ﬁéﬂ?& R 2024 TH)

(x) AP, 3. 1A G2 (TP {3 3TN 2024 F)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

o feToT (3731

OTHER NOTES (CONTD.)

30.14 Related Party Disclosure
List of Related Parties

A. Subsidiary Companies

IFFCO-Tokio General Insurance Company Limited
Kisan International Trading FZE

Jordan India Fertilizer Company LLC*

IFFCO Kisan Finance Limited

IFFCO Kisan Logistics Limited

IFFCO Kisan Suvidha Limited

IFFCO Kisan SEZ Limited

IFFCO eBazar Limited

IFFCO-MC Crop Science Private Limited

Indian Farm Forestry Development Cooperative Limited

Sikkim IFFCO Organics Limited (upto October 10, 2024)
*27% equity held by IFFCO and 25% equity held by Kisan International
Trading FZE, wholly owned subsidiary of IFFCO.

Subsidiary of Subsidiary Companies

IFFCO-Tokio Insurance Services Limited
Fert Coop Trading LLC
IFFCO Global Enterprises Limited

B. Joint Ventures

Oman India Fertiliser Company SAOC
CN IFFCO Private Limited
New Age Financial Advisory Private Limited

C. Associates

Indian Potash Limited

Triumph Offshore Private Limited (upto August 20, 2024)
Cooperative Rural Development Trust

IFFCO Kisan Sewa Trust

IFFCO Foundation

IFFCO Nanoventions Private Limited

Bharatiya Beej Sahakari Samiti Limited

National Cooperative Exports Limited

Baba Baidyanath Dharmarth Trust

D. Key Management Personnel

Dr.

Mr.

Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

U. S. Awasthi -
Rakesh Kapur -

Managing Director

Joint Managing Director
& Finance Director

R. P. Singh - Director (Human Resource & Legal)
Manish Gupta - Director (Strategy & Joint Venture)
Yogendra Kumar - Marketing Director
Birinder Singh - Director (Corporate Services)
A. K. Gupta - Director

(Information Technology Services)
G. K. Gautam - Director (Technical)

{till May 31, 2024}
D G Inamdar - Director (Technical)

{from Jun 1, 2024 to Sep 30, 2024}
K J Patel - Director (Technical)

{from Oct 3, 2024}
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

3oy fewoT (379

OTHER NOTES (CONTD.)

(DA )

s el A9 P Pl 202425 2023-24
——
SHPI-CIR TR e 3.12
290 U fafiies A 0.63
Jar3ft & fore spra= 89.07
T & 13.27
a1 faeran 24.45
ST 7.93
Jarsii & 3 3.19
o gevneAa T A 0.31
FEYRE RS [RRIR 391.64
T HId Pl GG 5,613.21
IR ATl Y TG 37.94
AR ATt Y fshr 5
Jar3fi & fore opra= 557.09
Jarsii & 3 491
I 37 422.65
ElE RIS T AfA 0.13
A TeTeerl ST 3T 405.94
SHP! [ [CRIRBIAECE 87.18
HrEy fafies a1 fowran 0.71
f&am s oy s
01 B I TTAH 12.50
BT HT 25.00
EPERISRIR S
T A 0.02
T &S 1.98
Jansii & 3m 0.55
! b JaT3fi & fore 9T 7.07
difiead fafies a1 fowran 0.01
3113 T 1Y -
Jam3i A 3 0.02
1l b et 77.26
T 0.02
S fbaH T 1A 0.02
e fafies ST feBvraln 0.63
IR AT B by 0.03
Jansii & 3m 0.01
I 37 -
SR IR H @i -
f&m oy 5
07 B I T -
BT BT
I & -
AR GG & fawg T -
Jar3ft & fore spra= 0.12
TP SaTR RIS LLRIR) 33.93
TS 1Y 127.73
TR AT 1 Wi 322.59
IR AT B b 1,822.50
TORT3 1 PIae 2.68
T T 0.31
Jufel, WA Ud 3YSHRT Bl 3”01 -
I 37 7.65
Jansii & 3ma 8.54
Jar3fl & fore ypra= 0.49
SHHI-UHH! 1T AT R 2.10
wigde faffies e 0.07
TR ATl Y TG 1145
a1 faeran 1.49
I 37 4.20
Jansii & 3ma 1.06

Detail of Transactions with Related Parties

Related Party

Nature of Transactions

Subsidiary Companies

IFFCO-Tokio General
Insurance Company
Limited

Kisan International
Trading FZE

Jordan India Fertilizer
Company LLC

IFFCO Kisan
Finance Limited

IFFCO Kisan
Logistics Limited

IFFCO Kisan
Suvidha Limited

IFFCO eBazar Limited

IFFCO-MC Crop
Science Private Limited

Amount Receivable
Amount Payable
Payment for Services
Claims Received
Rent Received
Deposits

Income from Services

Amount Receivable
Amounts Payable

Purchase of Raw Materials
Purchase of Finished Goods
Sale of Finished Goods
Payment for Services
Income from Services
Dividend Income

Amount Receivable
Dividend Income

Investment made

Rent Received

Loan Given

Loan Repayment Received
Loan Outstanding

Amount Received in advance
Amount Receivable

Interest Received

Income from Services

Payment for Services

Rent Received

Amount Received in Advance
Income from Services

Sale of Goods

Amount Payable

Amount Receivable

Rent Received

Sale of Finished Goods
Income from Services
Dividend Income
Purchase of Equity Shares
Loan Given

Loan Repayment received
Loan Outstanding

Interest Received

Receipt against Buy Back
of Shares

Payment for Services

Amount Payable

Amount Receivable
Purchase of Finished Goods
Sale of Finished Goods
Rent Paid

Rent Received

Transfer of Property, Plant
and Equipment

Dividend Income
Income from Services
Payment for Services

Amount Payable

Amount Receivable
Purchase of Finished Goods
Rent Received

Dividend Income

Income from Services

P —
2024-2025

(X in Crore)
2024-25 2023-24

3.12
0.63
89.07
13.27
24.45
7.93
3.19

0.31
391.64
5,613.21
37.94

557.09
491
422.65

0.13
405.94

87.18
0.71

12.50
25.00

0.02
1.98
0.55

7.07
0.01

0.02
77.26

0.02

0.12

33.93
127.73
322.59

1,822.50
2.68
0.31

7.65
8.54
0.49

2.10
0.07
11.45
1.49
4.20
1.06

12
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Jaftrd grfdal & 1Y A9- S BT fIavur (FRY) @B Detail of Transactions with Related Parties (Contd.)

g el T & B I 2024-25 2023-24 Related Party Nature of Transactions

eI Hufi (3T) Subsidiary Companies(contd.)

2135 B Bivee! R 18.91 Indian Farm Forestry Amount Payable

SaeTaiie BRI fafics EISRIR 127.87 Development Amount Receivable
Janit 3 o spram 2.02 Cooperative Limited Payment for Services
IR T B TG 10.61 Purchase of Finished Goods
TIR AT Y fycht 240744 Sale of Finished Goods
Tt B ey 6.10 Benefit to Farmers
GRINEIC) 0.63 Dividend Income
I ST - Deposit Received
QRINEARIYGIC] 0.51 Dividend Paid
Jai & 3™ 374 Income from Services
T faemn 0.06 Rent Received

fafeReH gwa AR fAfics  fasar s R 12.75 Sikkim IFFCO Investment made
T fosRmn 0.01 Organics Limited Rent Received

S [T THSSTS faiffies A 0.67 IFFCO Kisan Amount Payable
a3l 3 fere 1 0.74 SEZ Limited Payment for Services
oI v 0.01 Rent Received

TEIS | HE—IS HYA Subsidiary of Subsidiary

S Tl TeRwisaist fafies o faseran 0.01 IFFCO Global Rent Received

Enterprises Limited

Hh ITW Joint Ventures

3 e widengsR e A 0.54 Oman India Fertiliser Amount Receivable

Ot TR Jani & 3 1.74 Company SAOC Income from Services
GRINEIC) 615.66 Dividend Income

e gha! wrgae faffies T o 0.01 CN IFFCO Private Limited ~ Rent Received

U BRI I 3T 0.88 New Age Financial Dividend Income

TEaIgaN) yrgde fafice T femern 0.04 Advisory Private Limited Rent Received

wHifvey Associates

i diare fafies T T 11.42 Indian Potash Limited Amount Receivable
(LRI 1.98 Amount Payable
oo 1T &l WG 1,105.79 Purchase of Raw Materials
IR 1 B Y 11.44 Sale of Finished Goods
Jasi & 3™ 3.62 Income from Services
Jam3fi & fore T 1.80 Payment for Services
aTien 3T 6.80 Dividend Income

PIMRRT &l Sqevicgee AR 0.41 Cooperative Rural Amount Payable
e Y 13.24 Development Trust Amount Receivable
3qaH 2.23 Grants
JaT3l & fo praH 2.36 Payment for Services
Jan37i & foe wife 2.42 Receipt for Services
IR 7T Bl TR 1.21 Purchase of Finished Goods
TR AT Y faehr 0.05 Sale of Finished Goods
P Bt o 1.21 Benefit to Farmers
oI v 0.01 Rent received

THe! R IIEae fafies. WaBi A 3N 0.24 IFFCO Nanoventions Income from Services
Jan3il 3 fore apram 40.88 Private Limited Payment for Services
) 0 bl @S 3.13 Purchase of Raw Materials
T &1sT 0.54 Interest Received
fogm I BoT 5.57 Loan Advanced
ECaRIERI 8.91 Loan Outstanding
TS 3T 0.28 Amount Receivable
g3 14.39 Amount Payable
fear e 31 7.21 Advance Given
IR O B | 1.83 Purchase of Finished Goods
A amh F @l - Purchase of Packing Material
Gofiora aRgait bl il 22.82 Purchase of Capital Goods

YRR AT TgBIeY e R Ry 2.01 Bharatiya Beej Investment made

b o el - Sahakari Samiti Limited ~ Amount Receivable

T fer 0.01 Rent received

13

(X in Crore)
2024-25 2023-24

18.91
127.87
2.02
10.61
240744
6.10
0.63

0.51
3.74
0.06

12.75
0.01

0.67
0.74
0.01

0.01

0.54
1.74
615.66

0.01

0.88
0.04

11.42
1.98
1,105.79
11.44
3.62
1.80
6.80

0.41
13.24
223
2.36
242
1.21
0.05
1.21
0.01

0.24
40.88
3.13
0.54
5.57
8.91
0.28
14.39
7.21
1.83

22.82
2.01

0.01
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(% P ) (% in Crore)
LGl AT 7 Bt upha 2024-25 2023-24 Related Party Nature of Transactions 2024-25 2023-24
TR Associates(contd.)
A BIMRIET [CRIEIEEN 1.01 National Cooperative  Investment made 1.01
veIcH fafies ECIEICE ] - Exports Limited Income from Services >
T Iy - Amount Receivable =
m‘ﬁlﬁﬂﬁﬂ - Rent Received >
TITHIY 31 o Dividend Income =
THa! b JdT gve T Tt fAf & 3ferg 10.52 IFFCO Kisan Sewa Trust  Contribution to Kisan Sewa Fund 10.52
e SerTy et ove 3eH 1.00 Baba Baidyanath Grant 1.00
FiC] 1.00 Dharmarth Trust Donation 1.00
AR 2.00 Amount Payable 200
. . . Key M t
I WY i T e IR 46.26 P:yso:::f;emen Managerial Remuneration 46.26

30.15 Tgad gl & wfAfa & el i faxitg Rafén

31 A7, 2025 & AR Al g e areh s’ & afifa & fa @ ol a
A H 7 356.08 BRI (7T T T 356.08 HIS) i AT AMAA &1

30.15 Financial Reporting of Interest in Joint Ventures

Investments include ¥ 356.08 crore (Previous year ¥ 356.08 crore)
representing Society's interest in the following jointly controlled entities as
at March 31, 2025.

. s N f th Contributi c f %
IR ICITES & dprgH e #rn mmﬁ(%) sz::n; ¢ c;gtw"art::l;on R::indt;:e hol?!?:g
((E2ick)] Equity of IFFCO
(% in crore)
(@) 3T gfean (a) Oman India
BTSSR BT Fertiliser Company
e ) 329.08 Kieic 25.00 S 329.08 Oman 25.00
(@) e sBat 20.00 HRd 40.00 (b) CN IFFCO 20.00 India 40.00
wieae fafies Private Limited
(1) Y UST BrRATRRA 7.00 YRd 50.00 (c) New Age Financial 7.00 India 50.00
TSarssIel . ol Advisory Private Limited

T 356.08

INASHH BT AT aY 31 TR B JAT €Tl & 3R 3HeHa A Taifad fach sniws
FetgR I 2024 F &1 0T HH! dAT = UST BRI USSR BT i@l aY 31 AT Y
AT B & 3% g7 3ifem 3uete faeily 3nips fod o 2023-24 & &1 woft STHeBIRAT
eRarifar faci faRoi or smenfea &

Th U & IR bufal § Al & B & Hefd aReut, Saansd, 3, o,
TTafE AT A2 YSIPTd AfaGarsn 3 ¥ Heid 6l et 119 BT faawor 77 JbR € -

 BATH)
S ] 31.03.2025 &Y 31.03.2024 &t
AR Ght 622.08 604.66
IRAEr vd EIREL 195.77 190.09
ATV Ud TIaeT 723.19 761.10

1,541.04

777.16

3.95
759.93

1,541.04

1,555.85

Total 356.08

The accounting year of OMIFCO ends on December 31 and financial data
in respect of OMIFCO is for the calendar year 2024. The accounting year of
CN IFFCO and New Age Financial Advisory ends on March 31 and their last
available financial data are for the year 2023-24. All the information is based
on Audited Financial Statements.

The aggregate amount of each of the Assets, Liabilities, Income, Expenses,
Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments related to interest of the
Society in the jointly controlled entities is as under:

(X in Crore)
ahiliti As at As at
Assets and Liabilities 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Liabilities:

Share Capital 622.08 604.66
Reserves and Surplus 195.77 190.09
Liabilities and Provisions 723.19 761.10

1,541.04 1,555.85

Assets:
Net Fixed Assets including CWIP 777.16 732.05
Investments 3.95 5.22

Other Current and Non-Current Assets rds{eKek!

1,541.04

1,555.85

N4
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Zin Ci
- (R in Crore)
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 Yi ded Yi ded
3T 9 = HE P Income and Expenses 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
3Y: Income:
1,424.39 1,429.32 Income from Operations 1,424.39 1,429.32
36.97 40.28 Other Revenue 36.97 40.28

1,461.36 1,461.36

Expenses:

832.17 Operating Expenses 832.17 741.31
2.82 Non-Operating Expenses 2.82

834.99 834.99

W’q@f?ﬂﬂ 626.37 Profit before Tax 626.37
HeTU: BY/3TRAFI B & folw yraem 94.13 Less: Provision for Tax / Deferred Tax 94.13 109.25

532.24 Profit after Tax 532.24
As at As at
31.03.2025 7Y 31.03.2024 3t 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

81.52

ot wferaan 80.56 81.52 Capital Commitments

30.16 YRd & TI4E TN TRI GRT SR "FHIOM Sei— & perdl (figam)  30.16 Disclosure as per Guidance Note on “Accounting of Certified
w@%m"wm#%wmwwé— Emission Reductions (CERs) Units” issued by The Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India, is as under -

() THTOTTERA FHIOI 3ot & Pett (LX) Feprea: a. Certified Emission Reduction (CER) Units under certification:
qRSHT fAaRoT 2024-25 2023-24 Project Description 2024-25 2023-24
BT SHIS H 0 I Wpferes 31  hig - Feed switchover from Naphtha to -
fearesiiaR (quAvhHRiR Natural Gas at Phulpur Unit (UNFCCC)
(@) YO / fiepet WITOT 3Tt & Fetelt (HIE3MR) Sp1gal 3R o1t e oI b. No. of Certified Emission Reduction (CER) Units and Energy
($u9 W) &I T Saving Certificates (ESCerts) Certified / Credited:
qRSHT fAaRoT 2024-25 2023-24 Project Description 2024-25 2023-24
B SHTE H 3T P Icsied eI A 5,89,117 - Fuel Switchover from higher carbon 5,89,117 .
T farep 3 7 e FRa3fieR (YuAvtH ) intensive fuels to Natural Gas at Phulpur

Unit. (UNFCCC)
RIS gebrE F SO TN AR W 3UfAT 3,75,069 - Installation of Waste Heat Recovery 3,75,069 =
T AN WoTTet! Y 32TeAT (FuTUHRRA) System at SOs absorption tower at

Paradeep Unit (UNFCCC)
Tl BT & HaAl Garel 961 o B A 1,10,540 Energy Saving Scheme of the National 1,01,195 1,10,540

Mission for Enhanced Energy Efficiency
at Kalol, Phulpur, Aonla and Paradeep
Units (BEE, Ministry of Power)

&1 il Tad s, Beilel, FAT, fael IR
JRIET SHTEA R (1SS, g #arerd)

(1) IOt 3T # B (Hf3R) sHRAN 3R Fott T T (o wE) B

AT faR01 58 TR & c. Quantitative details of Certified Emission Reduction (CER) Units
and Energy Saving Certificates (ESCerts) are as under:

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
CE foR  fawdw @GR fwadd Particulars CER ESCerts CER  ESCerts
RS Ay - 1,10,540 - 1,56,853 Opening Balance - 1,10,540 - 1,56,853
SN a9 & SR YHIOId 9,64,186 = = - Add: Certified during the year ~ [RJZEEL - - -
e a9 & SR fasht / - 9,345 - 46313 Less: Sale / Lease - 9,345 - 46,313
qgT / IR | Transfer during the year
3ifem 9y CEZNEGN  1,01,195 - 1,10,540 Closing Balance CRZNEE  1,01,195 - 1,10,540

15
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30.17 Ufd AR IUTSIH

Tfe SRR U P TS @i AMP-20 ‘Tfet AR 3UGH’ F 3R BY 94Td
ael & &Y 29 99 & v QRN B MR 3d T A Wit v Fabrer I1 &, 37
9 yBR &

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
P wHT a§ P waTE ad

30.17 Earnings per Share

Earnings per share has been computed in accordance with Accounting
Standard - 20 “Earnings per Share” by dividing Net Profit after Tax by the
weighted average number of shares outstanding for the year.

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

&R GYTA T (I B8 H) 2,822.96 2,442.57

% 1,000/ 9fd R F THAA oI W 62,96,956 61,54,432
foraR el gu AR Y el 3w s

30.18 g, 7y 3R Aeicl 3w fawrd 3ifAfem, 2006 (THERUAEE! 3fdfam) & dgd

3rfard gaw 3R oy Jert & e & TR Aol &

Profit After Tax (% in crore) 2,822.96 2,442.57

Weighted Average Number 62,96,956 61,54,432
of Shares  considering
Nominal Value of ¥ 1,000/-
per share

Basic and Diluted Earnings
per Share (%)

30.18 Information in respect of Micro and Small Enterprises as required under

the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(MSMED Act) is as under: .
(X in Crore)

As at As at

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

(& IS )
faamor 31.03.2025 B! 31.03.2024 B
A% ddied a¥ H WA W e gfdear B
WA T Y 1 T w1 3R 39 W 37 A
&, JHTIT A 1A BT e & 84.89
Q. 3R A T LA
T et aY o AR (3d fAfd & 916 3gfereal & bl
U 31T YT 1 1 I W1o-w1, THeHUASS! AAfF=m
1 &R 16 P 3iPTd TRIGR GRT 3761 B! T8 AT 1A
WM H gU facis Bl 3afd & fiv 3 7 p1aH 4y & L
RIFRY (FSIRAeRT ST it fasam omam &, foq o & SR et
37afY & q16) Afe o 5 31T & ded AE &
A Bl FE ST |
TS i aY o) Y1 R i <1t 1 fY Srgest Nl
ST Te 3B ST &1
THUHURES A Y ¢RT 23 F ded, 39 i de & T

fore 3 o 7 off 37 wd 9T e A o1t 1M, e

T 39 TS 151 B! IRANIS FGRPN oY e B
T R & el R, B Bkl APT I F ®Y F 3RABR
fpU S & WIS & /AT SO

The principal amount and the interest due
thereon remaining unpaid to any Supplier as at
the end of each accounting Year:

(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid being not due 84.89

(b) Interest due thereon Nil

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in Nil
terms of Section 16 of MSMED Act., along with
the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the
period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during
the year) but without adding the interest
specified under this Act.

Nil

The amount of interest accrued and remaining
unpaid at the end of each Accounting Year; and

Nil
The amount of further interest remaining due and Nil
payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
Section 23 of MSMED Act.

IR TS QI Y TEa ArTeet The above information has been provided to the extent such parties have
3 S 7 e 1 & for ¥ 7 el # S been identified on the basis of information available with the Society.

3UAL STBRT B MR R I IS 2
30.19 3IATd FT I 30.19 Value of Imports
RIS H) (% in Crore)
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 Year ended Year ended
Y gt I P gaTE a9 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

15,593.34 14,972.13

o AT Raw Materials 15,593.34 14,972.13
TR U1 A e 32.01 31.86

Spare Parts and Catalysts 32.01 31.86

Capital Goods 139.56 82.59
Traded Products 270.32 157.08

16,035.23 15,243.66

Yafore Al 139.56 82.59
270.32 157.08

16,035.23 15,243.66
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

L] Cooperatives Build
OTHER NOTES (CONTD.)
30.20 fe=ft ger o 5 o = 30.20 Expenditure in Foreign Currency
P ) (% in crore)

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 Year ended Year ended

hE Sttt B e f 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
el /Braeed! B 5.60 Professional / Consultancy Fee 5.60
IAT I 2.61 Travelling Expenses 2.61
3 37.40 Others 37.40

30.21 = AT $t WU

31.03.2025 H! THTWE a9

31.03.2024 F! FATE a9

30.21 Consumption of Raw Materials

Year ended 31.03.2025

Year ended 31.03.2024

) ) mount)  (Forcentagent  Amaunt (Fercentage of
16,470.66 56.91 14,666.68 53.25 Imported Raw 16,470.66 56.91 14,666.68 53.25
Materials
Indigenous Raw
12,469.42 43.09 12,877.99 46.75 Materials 12,469.42 43.09 12,877.99 46.75

28,940.08 100.00 27,544.67 100.00

28,940.08 100.00 27,544.67

30.22 ﬁ%‘&ﬁ'ﬁ?ﬁﬂ 3ol 30.22 Earning in Foreign Currency
) (% in Crore)

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 Year ended Year ended
) FH T o) FaTw 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

IR A1t Y farht 17.71 3.69 Sale of Finished 17.71 3.69

Goods
GRINE] 1,449.87 1,530.78 Dividend Income 1,449.87 1,530.78
11.35 11.37 Others 11.35 11.37

1,478.93

1,545.84

30.23 ARATURIED] B YA

1,478.93

1,545.84

30.23 Payment to Auditors

F P ) (% in Crore)
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 Year ended Year ended
T g T ad 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
AN Yeh 0.80 Audit Fee 0.80
R TEIRIET Yeb 0.10 Tax Audit Fee 0.10
TIeie/ 37 Hau 0.15 Management / Other Services 0.15
R &yl 0.36 Reimbursement of Expenses 0.36

30.24 3T IaTEl P W, Il I AP (e Alta) a1 F= AT Bt @A

i) ¢fes Samel @ wig -,
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 ’
) FHT af @) JHTE 9y
3t gk 1,236.21 1,341.65
et Stedy - 9.82
e et/ e 221.89 7.77
BN Ui 2.44 47.92
EEe 40.16 25.68
et faerd 3D 1.77 40.51
EELEIES LEl 20.67 23.46
I derel 56.49 71.10
TR/ TeRUHEHRT 283.63 211.04
fafe e 121.76 139.81
) 17.31 18.94
TnT 2,002.33 1,937.70

17

30.24 Purchase of Traded Products, Sale of Products including Subsidy
and Consumption of Raw Materials

i) Purchase of Traded Products (% in Crore)
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Imported Urea 1,236.21 1,341.65
Imported DAP - 9.82
Imported NP / NPK 221.89 7.77
Phosphoric Acid 2.44 47.92
Ammonia 40.16 25.68
Water Soluble Fertilisers 1.77 40.51
Seeds and Chemicals 20.67 23.46
Natural K 56.49 71.10
Sagarika / HUMIFFCO 283.63 211.04
Specialty Fertiliser 121.76 139.81
Others 17.31 18.94
Total 2,002.33 1,937.70
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i) ScuTel Bt el (@feoust afeq) @R ii) Sale of Products including Subsidy @ in Crore)

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 Year ended Year ended

3w a Y T ad 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
fAfifa 3are: Manufactured Products:
IR 16,482.04 16,897.64 Urea 16,482.04 16,897.64
T - 10:26:26 2,353.73 1,673.65 NPK - 10:26:26 2,353.73 1,673.65
Tl - 12:32:16 3,353.75 2,709.23 NPK - 12:32:16 3,353.75 2,709.23
St - 18:46:00 13,109.54 13,810.99 DAP - 18:46:00 13,109.54 13,810.99
Tt - 20:20:00:13 2,660.12 1,241.98 NP - 20:20:00:13 2,660.12 1,241.98
Judt - 28:28:00 49.80 - UAP 28:28:00 49.80 -
Frgfen 500.93 306.92 Nano Urea 500.93 306.92
3 dodt 493.10 228.10 Nano DAP 493.10 228.10
et faerd 3P 30.01 32.39 Water Soluble Fertilisers 30.01 32.39
BRIGIRG URIE - 34.59 Phosphoric Acid - 34.59
s 52.44 17.40 Ammonia 52.44 17.40
a3 11.66 11.16 Bio Fertilisers 11.66 11.16
TR g 10.48 - Sulphuric Acid 10.48 -
I 0.06 0.12 Others 0.06 0.12

frNfad Tdt / T

39,107.66

1,238.13
112.46
46.46
2.72
47.56
22.98
156.34
62.47
306.05
12.10

2,007.27

41,114.93

iii) P HTA &1 U

31.03.2025

P wuTE ag
T N 11,942.15
BRIIRG RS 7,249.35
3 3,119.17
RRE 307 Qerr 1,057.22
pio| 191.71
b BrEhe 4,051.86
HEHR 940.49
TR URig 168.58
3 219.55
amT 28,940.08

36,964.17

1,408.63
206.32
129.38

25.15
52.04
34.56
26.39
146.81
78.81
244 .47
13.28

2,365.84
39,330.01

B )

31.03.2024
& gAY

Sub-Total

Traded Products:
Imported Urea
Imported DAP
Imported NP / NPK
Ammonia

Phosphoric Acid
Water Soluble Fertiliser
Seeds and Chemicals
Specialty Fertiliser
Natural K

Sagarika / HUMIFFCO
Others

Sub-Total
Grand Total

iii) Raw Material Consumption

12,429.86
5,798.11
3,084.11

960.17
216.06
3,970.44
609.83
354.82
121.27

27,544.67

Natural Gas
Phosphoric Acid
Ammonia

Muriate of Potash
Urea

Rock Phosphate
Sulphur
Sulphuric Acid
Others

Sub-Total

39,107.66

1,238.13
112.46
46.46
2.72
47.56
22.98
156.34
62.47
306.05
12.10

2,007.27

41,114.93

Year ended
31.03.2025
11,942.15
7,249.35
3,119.17
1,057.22
191.71
4,051.86
940.49
168.58
219.55

28,940.08

36,964.17

1,408.63
206.32
129.38

25.15
52.04
34.56
26.39
146.81
78.81
244 .47
13.28

2,365.84
39,330.01

(R in Crore)
Year ended
31.03.2024

12,429.86
5,798.11
3,084.11

960.17
216.06
3,970.44
609.83
354.82
121.27

27,544.67

18
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R 3o feaToT (3T
OTHER NOTES (CONTD.)

30.25 forfRr fqaRur aReR S0 (%) & TR e ST € 37R Fdedn avis a® qUiifded ff¢ 30.25 Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%) and rounded to
ST & (&) G2eTd dch), FamT STa 31=Tel Tebel foram amam &1 nearest crore (upto two decimals), except when indicated otherwise.

30.26 fIBc I¥ & 3iie] Bl AIAM Y P HiBS! b ITRY T P fol¢ MATH TG TR 30.26 Previous year's figures have been re-grouped / re-arranged wherever
IF IeqG / T@'H@H gl considered necessary to correspond with the current year’s figures.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

(Rakesh Kapur) (U. S. Awasthi)
Joint Managing Director Managing Director
& Finance Director

As per our report of even date
For ASC & Associates For G. S. Mathur & Co. For S. Mann & Co. For S. K. Mehta & Co. For J. C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 011863 N Firm Regn. No. 008744 N Firm Regn. No. 000075 N Firm Regn. No. 000478 N Firm Regn. No. 001111 N
(Suraj Prasad Sharma) (Rajiv Kumar Wadhawan) (Subhash Chander Mann) (Rohit Mehta) (Rajesh Sethi)
Partner Partner Partner Partner Partner
M. No. 096806 M. No. 091007 M. No. 080500 M. No. 091382 M. No. 085669

Place: New Delhi.
Dated: April 25, 2025.
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31S oTT dé\oqaﬂfaqqm P024-2025)

VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
(% in Crore)

faazor Particulars For the Year Ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
R EIGEE e ] Revenue from operations 41,243.88 39,474.04
I I Other Income 2,412.70 3,187.39

43,656.58 42,661.43
T Less:
af S dpra Cost of Materials 33,268.38 33,140.28
I Other Expenses 3,613.05 3,483.16
ST T oA T Total Value Added 6,775.15 6,037.99
=g o1 faaon: Applied to meet:
AR} fed 2 Employee Benefit Expense 1,669.21 1,590.49
forfa @pTa Finance Cost 419.48 453.86
I & (fAge) Income Tax (Net) 978.03 839.44
SRR Dividend 125.81 122.60
A Donation 1.00 1.00
TN e FAfY Cooperative Education Fund 15.73 14.43
FEBR JAAN, GAATOT Co-operative Rehabilitation, 1.00 1.00
3R e A Reconstruction and Development Fund
gfarenfd @mr Retained Profit 3,564.89 3,015.17
S T T BT Fd SUGNT Total Utilisation of Value Added 6,775.15 6,037.99
SUTd: RATIOS
B A | 5ieT IR G (Feierd) Value added to total income (%) 14.15
Tt g€ ot & Siigt T g (sifdere) Value added to Capital Employed (%) 18.00
g wuf & i1 o e (sifierd) Value added to Net Worth (%) 23.43
qﬁa;ﬁamshg[wliw(? ) Value added per employee (Z Lakh) 135.56

STST IR gl I8 Tu &, 5 IS 3erm Uaft, ydfer 3R sl d amfes i 9fSd Value Added is the wealth which an Enterprise has been able to create through the
AT 3refere b ?Wﬁ&%?ﬁ%ﬂ@m%mgﬁwqﬂﬁﬁm collective effort of capital, management and employees. In economic terms, value

e Irft 3R Aanit & g B geraR FAdwTe ST &1 SieT T g fheht Ut & B

feae 3R Tfafafe= &1 AT P71 v Aeeaquf THT 81

added is the market price of the output of an enterprise less the price of the goods
and services acquired by transfer. Value Added can provide a useful measure in

gauging performance and activity of the Company.
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b "o PRODUCTION AND SALES
3cT@ol/Bd PRODUCTION / PURCHASE 202021 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
it Ammonia
- Setlel - Kalol 3.93 343 404 3.86
- R | - Phulpur - | 414 3.62 363 4.03
- TR | - Phulpur - I 599 483 7.04 6.79
- 3fige-| -Aonla- | 6.25 6.92 6.53 6.99
- 3fige- 1| - Aonla- Il 6.79 6.36 6.82 6.44
- 3fad - Imported 0.05 0.00 0.00 0.08
g Urea
- elel - Kalol 6.24 545 6.62 6.19
- GeIgR- | - Phulpur - | 7.06 6.40 6.50 7.05
- BagR-1 | - Phulpur - I 10.64 8.38 12.24 12.00
- 3fige-| -Aonla- | 11.04 12.07 1152 12.26
- 3fige- | - Aonla- Il 177 1131 1192 1135
- 3Tt / e we! - Imported / OMIFCO 38.27 38.01 24.96 19.80
Tfis NPK
- Sigal - Kandla 16.72 11.25 10.28 965
-IRIE - Paradeep 6.88 5.30 6.54 4.37
- 3t - Imported 1.30 147 372 1.25
St DAP
- Siga - Kandla 6.23 12.22 14.65 9.27
- ORI - Paradeep 13.00 14.65 15.34 16.81
- 3yt - Imported 2.09 349 2.22 -
A g (@ aee) Nano Urea(in Lakh Bottles) 290.00 47512 87.43
F et e aee) Nano DAP(in Lakh Bottles) - - 4.26 91.14
faspr SALES
S Ammonia
- el - Kalol 0.13 0.05 0.09 0.03
- 3Tfad - Imported 0.05 0.00 0.00 0.08
i Urea
- el - Kalol 6.40 5.34 6.60 6.18
- GeqR-| - Phulpur - | 7.30 6.19 6.52 6.90
- BAR- | - Phulpur - I 10.95 8.09 12.24 11.82
m:l -Aonla-1 11.31 11.70 11.96 11.67
- 3figer- - Aonla- I 11.83 1143 11.84 11.00
- 3R / 3THE e - Imported / OMIFCO 39.11 33.55 27.67 20.25
TS NPK
- igal - Kandla 17.88 1143 958 10.10
-TRIGH - Paradeep 6.04 6.80 5.76 477
- 3yt - Imported 1.27 1.44 310 1.65
Sodt DAP
- pisell - Kandla 745 10.20 15.77 10.22
- URTEY - Paradeep 14.79 14.23 15.05 16.55
- 3yt , - Imported 2.25 3.11 1.98 0.63
A g (@ aie) Nano Urea(in Lakh Bottles) 215.20 326.53 204.78
F e o ate) Nano DAP(in Lakh Bottles) - - - 44.67
[EEIE2) VALUE OF SALES
S Ammonia
- Satlel - Kalol 38.28 2443 68.25 17.40
- 7RI - Imported 1151 0.57 0.00 25.15
i Urea
- el - Kalol 334.60 279.37 345.15 322,92
- g | - Phulpur - | 38141 323.95 341.07 361.19
- AR | - Phulpur - I 572.34 423.16 640.38 618.35
. m: | -Aonla-1 593.72 614.31 626.00 610.43
- 3fige- - Aonla- 619.54 600.03 619.47 575.01
- Tl / g - Imported / OMIFCO 2,044.87 1,756.53 1,447.08 1,058.61
TS NPK
- igal - Kandla 3,839.58 2,585.94 2,656.81 2,770.41
- IR - Paradeep 1,009.36 1,330.29 1,415.57 1,031.00
- 3Tt - Imported 285.62 34771 781.82 363.45
Sodt DAP
- pisell - Kandla 1,608.83 2,264.97 3,948.83 2,550.49
- URTEY - Paradeep 3,217.47 3,183.13 3772.22 4,130.74
- 3yt - Imported 490.53 692.94 49488 155.43
Frgfen Nano Urea = 366.76 514.44 306.92
5t St Nano DAP 228.10
I, 7T 9 3U-3TS Seeds, Chemicals, Power & 202.92 243.22 261.36 359.98
Bye-Products
3 Total 15,250.58 15,037.31 17,933.34 15,485.57

(Quantity in Lakh Tonnes)
2024-25

2025-26
(Budgeted)

3.35

5.45

11.40
11.60
10.90
22.00

1417
6.50
2.20

10.00
14.50

500.00
250.00

(Quantity in Lakh Tonnes)

5.45

7.35

11.50

11.75

11.00

2215

14.07

6.90

2.20

10.00

14.50

500.00

250.00

(R in Crore)
52.44 -
46.46 -
314.54 284.64
409.55 383.87
574.48 600.61
621.04 613.66
671.11 574.49
927.44 1,156.82
3,567.80 4,553.53
1,485.41 1,668.55
346.71 520.82
2,461.40 2,518.43
3,971.55 3,651.72
0.51 -

500.93 796.40
493.10 947.98
356.60 376.03

16,801.07 18,647.55
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IFFCO-TOKIO GENERAL IFECO KISAN FINANCE LTD. INDUSTRIES CHIMIQUES DU
INSURANCE COMPANY LTD. SENEGAL

[irreo san IKST

IFFCO KISAN SUVIDHA LTD. IFFCO KISAN SEWA TRUST

Ml

AT TG A AT

IFFCO NANOVENTIONS PVT. LTD.

R
&

COOPERATIVE RURAL
DEVELOPMENT TRUST

INDIAN POTASH LTD.

=

.
[

IFFCO e-BAZAR LTD.

.
D

INDIAN FARM FORESTRY IFFCO MC CROP SCIENCE

DEVELOPMENT COOPERATIVE LTD. PVT.LTD.

_

~

OMAN INDIA FERTILISER COMPANY

\‘

NEW AGE &

NEW AGE FINANCIAL ADVISORY IFFCO KISAN SEZ LTD.

PVT. LTD.

~

| N
B

KISAN INTERNATIONAL
TRADING FZE

. A
@ iCLL.

PG Ll 118 T LI IR

NATIONAL COOPERATIVE IFFCO KISAN LOGISTICS LTD.

EXPORTS LTD.

\‘

\‘

JORDAN INDIA FERTILISER
COMPANY

‘

BHARTIYA BEEJ SAHAKARI
SAMITI LTD.

N

G C

RS v aen T v e

CSC e-GOVERNANCE SERVICES

INDIA LTD.
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INDIAN FARMERS FERTILISER COOPERATIVE LIMITED
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Contact us
Website: www.iffco.in
Email Id: admin@iffco.in | coop@iffco.in
Contact Detail: 011-26510001

Head Office
IFFCO Sadan, C-1, Distt. Center,
Saket Place, New Delhi -110017

@ X.com/IFFCO_PR
@ X.com/drusawasthi
ﬁ facebook.com/IFFCO.PR

G www.youtube.com/@IFFCO_Ltd




